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2020

HFR LA Master Trust

1,000.000 2,073,263| 2,073,263,163 1,957,370| 1,957,369,545 85.81
Monex 2006 Fund

Thomas H. Lee Parallel

Fund VI, L.P.(USD) 1.000 37,772,183 37,772,183 41,956,725 41,956,725 1.84

Blackstone Capital

Partners V-AC L.P. 1.000 4,385,124 4,385,124 10,375,933 10,375,933 0.45

(USD)

Carlyle Japan

International Partners 1.000 57,776,440 57,776,440 5,323,734 5,323,734 0.23

11, L.P.(JPY)

J.C. Flowers 11 L.P. 1.000 5,486,340 5,486,340 286,372 286,372 0.01
HFR LA Master Trust Monex 2006 Fund 2020

WAN Funds VI PLC-Wan GLG Alpha 28,466.000 10,956 311,973,127 11,422 325,128,397 16.61

Select Alternative ucITs T ’ T ’ e )

Janus Henderson Absolute

Return Income Fund WCITS 273,225.000 1,168 319,170,240 1,153 315,083,348 16.10

Kames Capital-Absolute Return 265,403.000 1,203 319,384,654 1,184 314,312,993 16.06

Bond Fund UCITS

LYXOR NEWCITS PLC-

Lyxor/Tiedemann Arbitrage WCITS 25,926.000 12,332 319,707,750 11,992 310,896,328 15.88

Strategy Fund

MontLake UCITS Platform ICAV-

Mygale Event Driven UCITS Fund WCITS 24,832.000 12,723 315,923,197 12,457 309,328,373 15.80

Lunyna-Ranius Merger Arbitrage 24,935.000 12,496 311,592,435 11,955 298,105,628 15.23

UCITS Fund UCITS e ’ ’ ’ ’ T )

HFR LA Master Trust Monex 2006 Fund

2020

2020
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2019 2020
3,413,560,119 8,227
2010 12
3,181,850,551 7,668
2011 12
3,368,206,108 8,880
2012 12
3,834,526,275 10,615
2013 12
3,670,405,022 11,334
2014 12
3,621,202,993 12,483
2015 12
10
3,228,753,444 12,034
2016 12
11
2,956,469,678 12,227
2017 12
12
2,709,042,026 12,260
2018 12
13
2,360,675,227 11,660
2019 12
2019 2,546,481,344 12,027
2,532,105,703 11,959
2,524,417,005 11,923
2,509,459,836 11,852
2,499,895,764 11,807
10 2,487,063,994 11,747
11 2,376,511,471 11,738
12 2,360,675,227 11,660
2020 2,355,433,962 11,634
2,345,931,847 11,587
2,260,961,793 11,167
2,281,146,254 11,267
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0 0 414,937
) ) (414,937)
0 0 414,937
) ) (414,937)
0 35,644 379,293
) (35,644) (379,293)
0 18,067 361,226
©) (18,067) (361,226)
0 37,397 323,829
) (37,397) (323,829)
0 33,743 290,086
) (33,743) (290,086)
0 21,777 268,309
10 ) (21,777) (268,309)
0 26,520 241,789
H ©0) (26,520) (241,789)
. 0 20,819 220,970
) (20,819) (220,970)
» 0 18,504 202,466
) 18,504 202,466
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Monex-HFR 2006
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2,245,663,938 2,197,886,161
174,428,510
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3,011,359
2,720,507
302,278
407,306

7,346,069

18,623,974

2,360,675,228

202,466 11,660

711247



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Monex-HFR 2006

2019 12 31

3,918,870
20,485,322
1,280,333
816,431
11,522,994
12,755,074
514,755
1,632,862

11,233,814

64,160,455

(64,160, 455)

51,346,277
(57,600,344)

(58,145,638)

(64,399,705)

(128,560,160)

721247



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Monex-HFR 2006

2019 12 31

(64,160, 455)
51,346,277
(57,600, 344)

(58,145,638)

(128,560,160)

18,504 (219,806, 638)

(219,806,638)

(348,366,798)

220,970 2,709,042,026

202,466 2,360,675,228

731247



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Monex-HFR 2006

2019 12 31

(128,560, 160)

(30,061,979)
57,600,344
(3,998,693,192)
4,118,878,706
58,145,638
(838,942)
(485,050)
(471,905)
(52,434)
(4,088)
446,325

75,903,263

(219,806, 638)

(219,806,638)

(143,903, 375)
318,331,885

174,428,510

741247



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Monex-HFR 2006
2019 12 31
2006
21
2006 21
Monex-HFR 2006
2006 12 15
2006 10 12
15
2013 12
2013
HFR LLC
Monex PE PE 2006 12 15
PE PE
100
MUFG
HFR
HFR MUFG

HFR

751247



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HFR HFR
2019 2019 2019
HFR HFR LA Master Trust HFR LA
Master Trust Monex 2006 Fund 2019 24 HFR LLC

HFR LA Master Trust
90.32 UCITS
1940
ETF
HFR LA Master Trust Monex 2006 Fund

HFR LA Master Trust UCITS
HFR
ASU 2013-08
Topic946
ASC Topic946
ASC 946
GAAP

Monex-HFR
2006 Monex PE

761247



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HFR 2,132,131,813 HFR LA Master Trust
HFR LA Master Trust
UCITS
1940
ETF HFR LA Master Trust Monex 2006 Fund

HFR LA Master Trust

HFR LA Master Trust
HFR LA Master Trust

65,754,348

HFR LA Master Trust

15
10 HFR LA Master Trust
1,000,000

PE

HFR LA Master Trust Monex
2006 Fund

771247



31

2019 12 31

GAAP

GAAP

90

781247

0.80

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 2019 12



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10
2019 12 31
0.50
0.45 0.05
0.03 15,000
HFR
HFR LA Master Trust 0.85
HFR LA Master Trust Monex 2006 Fund HFR
0.75 2.50
0 20

791247



7,500

2.50

12 15

Topic820

36,000

ASC

10,000

2012

Topic820

80/247

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0.10
0.02
0.02
2.50
10
2021
Topic820
Topic820
ASC946



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019

HFR

LA HFR LA Master Trust

UCITS

1940
ETF

81/247



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 12 31

HFR

2019 12 31 59,920,518
58,145,638

82/247



2019 12 31

2019

3,000,000

0.40
2019

2019

2019

10
2019

12

12

12

12

27

31

31

31

31

2020 30

65,530,275

48,211,436 443,895

48,241,370
84,493,910

777,957

83/247

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 12 31

2018 12 10



11

2019

2019 12 31

2020

84/247

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

12,260

(301)

(299)
(600)

11,660

(4.89)

(4.89)

(2.52)

(2.52)

(2.52)

2020 26



Monex-HFR

2019 12 31

HFR 90.32

90.32

90.32
HFR LA Master Trust Monex 2006 Fund Class C 2,187,575,303

2,187,575,303
HFR 2,187,575,303

85/247

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2006

19,499.713 2,132,131,813
2,132,131,813

2,132,131,813
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2.79
Blackstone Capital Partners (Cayman) V-AC L.P. 4,424,590 11,351,462
Carlyle Japan International Partners Il, L.P. 14,723,774 9,160,122
J.C. Flowers 11 L.P. 15,006,781 226,897
Thomas H. Lee (Alternative) Parallel Fund VI, L.P. 23,933,490 45,015,867
58,088,635 65,754,348
2,245,663,938 93.10 2,197,886,161
0.30
2020 2,103,005,200 19,300,000 6,984,531
6,984,531
2019 12 31
HFR LA Master Trust Monex 2006 Fund Class C
GLG ALPHA SEL ALT-IN H USD 28,466 309,169,226 319,217,226 12.21
JAN HND ABS RET INC-U ACCUSD 273,225 314,554,110 321,379,340 12.30
KAMES ABS RTRN BD-C-USD-H-A 265,403 314,903,834 322,205,324 12.33
LUMY-RAM MG ARB UCITS-BUSDA 24,935 311,873,615 320,214,796 12.25
LYXOR/TIEDMNN ARB ST-A USD-A 25,926 316,300,559 318,305,406 12.18
MYGALE EVENT DRIVEN UC-USDI 24,832 315,973,590 323,187,598 12.37
2019 12 31
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MONEX-HFR PRIVATE EQUITY FUND & HEDGE FUND INVESTMENTS 2006

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 21, 2019
(Expressed in Japanese Yen)

Assets

Investments, at fair value (cost ¥2,245,063,938) ¥ 2,197.886,161
Cash and cash equivalents 174428510
Unrealized gain on forward foreign curmency contracts 6,984,531
Total Assets 2379290202
Liabilities

Investment Advisor Fees Pavable 4,836,455
Investment management fee pay able 3,011,359
Distributor Fees Pavable 2,720,507
Agent Company Fees Payable 302,278
Management fee pavable 407 306
Accrued expenses 7,346,069
Total Liabilities 18,623,974
MNet Assets ¥ 1360675228

MNet asset value per Unit (202,466 Undts issued and

outstanding) ¥ 11,660

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

87/247



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MONEX-HFR PRIVATE EQUITY FUND & HEDGE FUND INVESTMENTS 2006

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 21, 2019
(Expressed in Japanese Yen)

Expenses

Administration fees ¥ 3,018,870
Investment advisory fees 20,485,322
Agent company fees 1,280,333
Custody fees Bl6,431
Distributor fees 11,522,904
Investment management fees 12,755,074
Trustee fees 514,755
Management fees 1632862
Other expenses 11,233,814
Total expenses &4, 160,455
Met investment loss (64, 160, 455)

Met realized and net change in unrealized gains/(losses) on investments,
forward foreign currency contracts and foreign currency transactions

Met realized gain on investments and foreign currency transactions 51,340,277
Met change in unrealized loss on investments (5T7.600,344)
Met change in unrealized loss on forward foreign curency contracts (58.145,638)

Total net realized and net change in unrealized loss on investments and forward
foreign currency contracts and foreign currency transactions (64,399, 705)

Met decrease in net assets resulting from operations ¥ (128 560, 160)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MONEX-HFR PRIVATE EQUITY FUND & HEDGE FUND INVESTMENTS 2006

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 21, 2019
(Expressed in Japanese Yen)

MNet decrease in net assets from operations

Met investment loss ¥ (64, 160,455)
Met realized gan on mvestments and foreign currency transactions 51,346,277
Met change m unrealized loss on investments (57,600,344
Met change m unrealized loss on forward foreign currency contracts (58,145,638)
Met decrease in net assets from operations (128,560,160)

Met decrease in net assets from capital transactions

Redemption of Units (18,504 Units) (219,806,638)
Met decrease in net assets from capital transactions (219 806,638)
Met decrease in net asseis (348 366, 708)
MNet assets at beginning of year (220,970 Units) 2700042026
Net assets at end of year (202,466 Units) ¥ 2360675228

See notes to consolidated financial statements,
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MONEX-HFR PRIVATE EQUITY FUND & HEDGE FUND INVESTMENTS 2006

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 21, 2019
(Expressed in Japanese Yen)

Cash Oows from operating activities

Met decrease in net assets from operations ¥ (128, 560,160)
Adjustrments to reconcile net decrease innet assets
froam operations to net cash provided by operating activitics;
Met realized gain on nvestments (30,061,979
Met change in unrealized loss on investments 57,600,344
Purchases of investments (3.998,693,192)
Proceeds from disposition of investments 4118878706
Met change m unrealized loss on forward foreign cumency contracts 58,145,638
Decrease in Investrment Advisor Fees Payable (B3804
Decrease in Investment management fee payable (485,050)
Decrease in Distributor Fees Payable (471,205)
Decrease in Agent Company Fees Payable (5243
Decrease in Management fee payable {4,088)
Increase in Accrued expenses 446,325
Met cash provided from operating activities 75,903,263
Cash Mows from financing activities
Redemption of Units (219,806,638)
Met cash used in financing activities (219,806,638)
Met Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (143,903,375)
Cagh and cash equivalents at beginning of year 318,331,885
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ¥ 174,428,510

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MONEX-HFR PRIVATE EQUITY FUND & HEDGE FUND INVESTMENTS 2006

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 21, 2019
(Expressed in Japanese Yen)

1. Organization

Monex Fund of Funds Series I (the “Trust™) is an open-ended umbrella wnit trust scheme established under the laws
of the Cayman Islands by a master trust deed made by Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited (the “Initial Trustee™ ) and
Butterfield Fulerum Group (Cayman) Limited (the “Initial Manager™) dated July 21, 2006, which allowed for the
creation of various Series Trusts.

Pursuant to the master trust decd and a supplemental trust deed dated July 21, 2006 made between the Initial Trustee
and the Initial Manager, Monex-HFE Private Equity Fund & Hedge Fund Investments 2006 (the “Series Trust™) was
created as a seres trust of the Trust and commenced operations on December 15, 2006, The Series Trust was registered
under the Mutual Funds Law of the Cayman Islands on October 12, 2006, The term of the Series Trust is limited to
fifteen vears, The assets and liabilities of the Series Trust are segregated, with a unitholder®s interest limited to the
umitized class in which the investor owns units, The Senes Trust operates independently of any other Series Trust m
the Trust and constitutes a separate investment with no beneficial interest in or hability to any other Series Trust in
the Trust.

A supplemental trust deed dated July 12, 2013 appointed Butterfield Trust Cayman Limited (the “Trustee™) to assume
the responsibility of the Initial Trustee. A supplemental trust deed dated August 6, 2013 appointed Butterfield Bank
(Cayman) Limited (the *Manager™) to assume the responsibility of Initial Manager.

HFE. Asset Management, LLC has been appointed as investrment manager to the Series Trust (the “Investrnent
Manager™), Astmax Assel Management, Inc. has been appoimnted as investiment adviser to the Series Trust (the
“Investment Adviser™), Monex Inc. has been appointed as agent compary for the Manager and distributor of Units
(“Agent Company™ and “Distributer™),

Monex PE Trust (the “PE Trust™) 15 a Bermuda unit trust established by a Trust Deed dated Decemnber 15, 2006, The
Trust Deed was entered into by Butterfield Trust {Bernmuda) Limited (the “PE Trustee™) and the Investment Manager.
FPE Trust is wholly owned by the Series Trust and is an investment vehicle through which the Series Trust purchases
private equity investments,

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited serves as the Series Trust's administrator (the “ Administrator™), Butterfield
Trust (Bermuda) Limited serves as the Series Trust™s custodian (the “Custodian™).

The Series Trust is designed as a multi-manager investment vehicle in which capital 1s allocated among a select group
of trading managers (the *Trading Managers'™) and private equity funds (*Private Equity Funds™). Capital is allocated
to Trading Managers through various investments in Bermuda unit trusts (the “HFR Master Trusts™) that have been
established by the Investment Manager. The Trading Managers utilize various investment strategies and also have the
ability to invest in derivative financial instruments. Butterfield Trust (Bermuda) Limited {the trustee of the HFR
Master Trusts) and MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited (the administrator of the HFRE Master Trasts) are
affiliated with the Trustee and Administrator of the Series Trust. Private Equity Funds invest in various companies,
including listed or unlisted equities in Japan, the U.S. and'or other markets.

Dueto significant redemptions from the HFR Master Trusts from affiliated funds, the Investment Manager voluntarily
liquidated the underlving HFR Master Trosts effective February 1, 20019, March 1, 2009, or April 1, 2009, and as such
HFE Master Trusts ceased operations. The HFR LA Master Trust — Monex 2006 Fund, a class of the HFR LA Master
Trust, commenced operations on April 24, 2009 and mvested in portfolio of Liquid Altermative Funds selected by
HFE. Asset Management, LLC that are managed by third party investment managers according to a smgle strategy.
The Liquid Alternative Funds held in the HFR LA Master Trust (90.32%) may include, UCTTS (Undertaking for
Collective Investment in Transferable Securities Directive) funds, registered investment companies (including mutual
funds and other 1.8, Investment Company Act of 1940 funds), and exchange traded funds (ETFs).
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The Series Trust’s investment objective is to obtain capital appreciation on its assets by investing in HFR LA Master
Trust = Monex 2008 Fund and Private Equity Funds that employ various strategies. In managing the Series Trust’s
net assets, the Investment Manager may distribute allocations or change the allocation of assets among existing UCITS
in HFR. LA Master Trusts. The Series Trust has committed a set amount of capital to each Private Equity Fund. Thus,
there iz no reallocation of assets among the Private Equity Funds. The Investrent Adviser provides investment advice
to the Investrment Manager and assists in the investment decisions.

Capitalized terms herein are as defined in the respective Offering Memoranda of the Series Trust or HFR Master
Trusts, unless otherwise noted,

The Series Trust is classified as an investment company as defined in Accounting Standards Update (*ASLU™) 2013-
08, fivestmert Companies (Topic 946): Amendments to the Scope, Measiremert, and Disclosure Requirements. The
Series Trust applies the guidance set forth in Accounting Standards Codification (*ASC™) Topic 946, Finarcical
Services — Investment Compemies (" ASC 9467 in it consolidated financial staternents and related notes.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with aceounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The consolidated financial statements are expressed in
Tapanese Yen. The following are the significant accounting policies adopted by the Series Trust.

fal Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Monex-HFR Private Equity Fund & Hedge Fund
Investments 2006 and its whelly owned subsidiary, Monex PE Trst, All significant intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation,

B Investment tremsac ions and valuation

Investments in the HFR. Master Trust Fund of ¥2,132,131,813 are recorded al fair value based on the Series Trust's
pro-rata interest in the net assets of the HFR LA Master Trust, all of which are valued at fair value, The HFE LA
Master Trust can engage in trading of UCITS (Undertaking for Callective Investment in Transferable Securities
Directive) funds, registered investment ¢ompanies {including mutual funds and other U.S, Investment Company Act
of 1940 funds), and exchange traded funds (ETFs), HFR LA Master Trust - Monex 2006 may hold Liquid Alternative
Funds. Risks to these HFR LA Master Trust arise from the possible adverse changes in the fair value of such interests
and the potential inability of counterparties to perform under the terms of the contracts, However, the risk to the Series
Trust is limited to the amount of the Series Trust's investment in the HFR LA Master Trust. Net gain or loss on
investments in HFR LA Master Trust included in the consolidated statements of operations is net of management fees
and performance-based compensation if applicable.

Investments in the Private Equity Funds of ¥ 65,754,348 are recorded at fair value based on the Series Trust’s pro-rata
interest m the net assets of the Private Equity Funds, all of which are valued at fair value as determined by the
investment manager (or equivalent) of the underlving fund, another party of the Private Equity Fund in charge of
valuation or an independent third party, Valuation procedures for marketable securities rely on observable market
inputs including closing exchange prices or recently executed trades, Valuation procedures for non-mark etable
investments melude discounted cash flows analysis, comparable public market valuation, and comparable acquisition
valuation, Other factors, such as the cost of underlying investments, developments since the acquisition of the
investments, comparisons to similar publicly raded investments, subsequent purchases of the same investrment by
ather investors, the current financial position and operating results of the issuer may also be considered, The estimated
fair values of the Private Equity Funds' investments could differ significantly from the values that would have been
detertnined had a ready market for the securities existed. Furthermore, there is no assurance that upon liquidation the
Frivate Equity Fund will realize values presented in the report. The risk to the Series Trust is limited to the amount of
the Senes Trust’s investment i each of the Private Equity Funds, Met gain or loss on investments in Private Equity
Funds included in the consolidated statements of operations is net of all fees and performance-based compensation.
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Investment transactions are accounted for on a trade date basis. Realized gains and losses on investments are caleulated
using the specific identification method. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are recorded in the consolidated
statement of op erations.

In order to redeermn Units of HFE. LA Master Trusts (U5, dollar-denominated), Dealing Days could be monthby, first
business day of each month and weekly, twpically Wednesday. Redemption notice must be given 5 business days prior
to the Dealing Day for weekby redemption and 15 business days prior to the Dealing Day for monthly redemption,
Weekly redemptions may be subject to a 1080 cap, Partial redemptions are not permitted if the value of the Series
Trust's rernaming Units inan HFR LA Master Trust 15 less than 51,000,000, The Investment Manager may wave,
reduce, or otherwise modify the redemption notice period or the minimum balance at its discretion,

Investments in Private Equity Funds are considered illiquid. The ability to transfer such interests is restricted in
accordance with the terms of the agreement which constitutes such Private Equity Fund. Certain Private Equity Fund
interests, held by the Series Trust and PE Trust directly or indirectly, may not be transferred without the prior written
consent of counterparties to the agreement, which may withhold such consent for any reason or for no reason. The
Series Trust may not withdraw from such a Private Equity Fund,

As the Series Trust reaches the end of the five year lock-up period (Mote 4) and thereafter, it is anticipated that the
Series Trust will allocate a larger percentage of its portfolio to HFR LA Master Trust — Monex 2006 Fund, which are
generally more liquid investments than the Private Equity Funds.

The MNet Asset Value utilized as of the Valuation Day may differ from the Net Asset Value calculated in accordance
with GAAP and included in these consolidated financial statements, based on the timing of receipt of information
from the underlying Private Equity Funds.

fc) Forward foveien currency contracts

During the vear ended Decemnber 31, 2019, the Series Trust used forward foreign currency contracts 1o hedge against
the exposure of the underlying investments. The contracts obligate the Series Trust to exchange currencies for an
agreed-upon price on an agreed future date, These contracts are reported at fair value, representing the urrealized gain
or loss on the contracts as measured by the difference between the forward foreign exchange rates at the dates of entry
into the contracts and the forward rates at the reporting date, and are included in the consolidated staterments of assets
and liabilities. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are inchuded in the consolidated statement of operations.

fdl Casih and cash equivedents

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts held in banks. The Series Trust defines cash and cash equivalents in the
consalidated staternent of assets and liabilities as fimds held in liquid investments with original maturities of 90 days
or less. This would meet the definition to be considered as a Level 1 Investment type.

fe) Investment income and expernses

Interest income and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis,

i Foreign currency travslefion

Investments and other assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Japanese Yen at
exchange rates at the reporting date. Purchases and sales of investments, foreign currencies, and income and expense
itemns dencminated in foreign cwrrencies are translated into Japanese Yen at the exchange rate on the respective dates
of such transactions.

The Series Trust does not isolate that portion of the results of operations resulting from changes in foreign exchange
rates on investments from the fluctuations arising from changes in fair value of investments held. Such fluctuations

are inchided with net realized and unrealized gain or loss on investments, forward foreign currency contracts and
foreign curmency transactions m the consolidated statement of operations.

-13-
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Included in net realized gains (losses) on investments, forward foreign currency contracts, and foreign currency
transactions are foreign exchange gains or losses arising from sales of foreign currencies and currency gains and losses
realized between the trade and the settlement dates on investment transactions.

(gt Allocation of prafits and losses to Linits
Profits and losses of the Series Trust for each fiscal period are allocated to each Series of Units in proportion to the

respective balances at the beginning of that fiscal period. The fiscal period for the Series Trust begins on Jamuary 1,
2019 to December 31, 2019,

iy Llye of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the conzolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

3. Expenses

fad frvestment advisory and performance fee

The Series Trust pays the Investment Adviser an investrment advisory fee of 0.80% per annum of net assets, accrued
monthly and payable quarterty.

The Series Trust pavs the Investment Adviser a performance fee of 10% per anmum of the difference between the MNet
Asszet Value per Unit at the end of a Caleulation Period and the High Water Mark per Unat, multiplied by the number
of Units outstanding at the end of such Calculation Period, The MNet Asset Value per Unit must exceed both the High
Water Mark per Unit and the Hurdle Amount for perfformance fees to be deermed pay able, There were no Performance
fees accrued for the vear ended December 31, 2019,

(b Irvestment menigement fee

The Investrnent Manager 15 paid a management fee equal to 0,502 per annum of the Series Trust's net assets, accnoed
monthly and payable quarterly.

fe} Distribuor and agent compeany fee
The Distrbutor and Agent Company receive a distributor fee and agent company fee of 0,45% and 0.05% per annurm

of net assets, respectively, accrued monthly and payable quarterly out of the assets of the Series Trust, The Distributor
and Agent Company are also entitled to be reimbursed for out of pocket expenses,

(d} Mamagement e

The Series Trust pay s the Manager a management fee of 0,03% per annum of net assets, acerued monthly and pavable
quarterly, subject to a minimum annual fee of TS5, 000,

fe) Mamagement fees, incertive allocation and fees paid to HFR Master Trusts and Private Equity Funds

The Investment Manager receives from each HFE LA Master Trust — Monex 2006 Fund, in which the Series Trust
invests, rmanagement fees is 0.85% per annum of the net asset value of each Sub-series of the HFR LA Master Trust,
The fees and allocation are reflected in the net asset value of the HFR Master Trusts,

The Series Trust is indirectly subject to asset-based fees and performance arrangements paid at the Private Equity
Funds® level Management fees range from 0.75% to 2.50% per annum of the net asset value or committed capital

-14-
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balance of each Private Equity investment and a carried interest allocation ranging from 096 to 20% may be paid to
each general partner (or equivalent) of the Private Equity Funds, subject to certain performance conditions.

o Administrator jfee

The Administrator receives an administration fee of 0.10% per annum of net assets, acerued monthly and payable
quarterly, subject to a minimum annual fee of T78536,000. The Administrator is also entitled to be reimbursed for out
of pocket expenses.

(&) Trustee fee

The Trustee receives a fee of 0.02% per annum of net assets, accrued monthly and payable quarterly. The Trustee is
also entitled to be reimbursed for out of pocket expenses.

Rl Custodicn_fee

The Custodian receives a fee of 0.02% per annum of net assets, accmed monthly and payable quarterly, subject to a
minirmun annual fee of TS$7,500. The Custodian is also entitled to be reimbursed for cut of pocket expenses.

(i Ciher expenses
The Series Trust will also bear its own operating expenses, including legal, audit and accounting fees.
4. Units

Units are offered during the Imitial Offering Penod at ¥10.000 per Unit, plus a subscription charge not exceeding
2.50% of the subscription price. The subscription charge is pavable to the Distnbutor. Following the close of the Initial
Cfering Penod, Units will not be available for issue,

Units are subject to a five vear holding period or “lock-up™ from the close of the Initial Offering Period. After the five
year lock-up period, each Unitholder may request a repurchase of Units by the Investment Manager on the relevant
Repurchase Day. The first Repurchase Day was the fifth Business Day in May 2012, Units will be repurchased at the
Met Asset Value per Unit calculated as at the Valuation Day immediately preceding the relevant Repurchase Day.

A repurchase charge of 2 5006 of the applicable Net Asset Value per Unat wall be charged and retaned by the Series
Trust on any repurchases of Units prior to the seventh anniversary from the Closing Date, The Investment Manager
may lirmit the number of Units that may be repurchased on any Repurchase Day to 10% of the total number of Units
of the Series Trust outstanding on such Repurchase Day, In this event, the limitation will apply pro rata so that all
Unitholders wishing to subrmit Units for repurchase on that Repurchase Day may have repurchased the same
proportion of such Units (but rounded down to an mtegral number), Repurchase Motices in respect of all Units not
repurchased on that Repurchase Day will be cancelled. Unless previously terminated pursuant to the Trst Deed, the
Series Trust will terminate on December 13, 2021,

5. Investments
fal Fair vale measiremenis

In accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC™) Topic 820 (“Topic 8207), Fair Falue A asurement,
the Series Trust defines fair value as the amount that would be received to =ell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the reporting date. Topic 820 also establishes a fair value
hierarchy based on the observability of market prices used to measure fair value. Investments with readily available
quoted prices in an active market or those for which fair value can be measured from actively quoted prices generally
will have a higher degree of market price observability and a lesser degree of judegment used in measuring fair value.
The Trustee is ultimately responsible for the valuation of all securities held by the Series Trust.

-15-
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Topic 820 permits the Series Trust, as a practical expedient, to estimate the fair value of the Series Trust’s investments
as the net asset value per share or its equivalent if the net asset value of the investments is calculated in a manner
consistent with the measurement principles of ASC 946, The Series Trust uses the practical expedient to estimate the
fair value of all the investments.

Investment assets and liabilities reported at fair value are classified in one of the following categories:

Level 1. The values for securities classified as Level 1 are based on unadjusted quoted prices for identical
securities in an active market. Since valuations are based on quoted prices that are readily-accessible at the
measurement date, valuation of theze securities does not entail a significant degree of judgment.

Level 2, The values for securities classified as Level 2 are based on queted prices in non-active markets for
which all sigmificant inputs are cbservable either directly or mdirectly. Level 2 mputs may also mnchide
pricing models whose inputs are ohservable or derived principally from or comroborated by observable market
data,

Lewvel 3. Values for securities categorized as Level 3 are based on prices or valuation techniques that require
irgputs that are both significant to the Gair value and unobservable, These mputs reflect the Series Trusts” own
assurmplions about the assumptions a markel participant would use in pricing the security, Little if any market
activity exists for Level 3 securities.

There have been no transfers of investment assets to the Level 3 classification during 2019,
Each of the mvestments in Private Equity Funds is estimated to be liquidatedrealized over the next 1-4 years,
The following are the strategies in which the Series Trust invests, through its investments in the HFR. Master Trusts:

LA Master Trust Strategy: The investment objective associated with the HFE LA Master Trust (“Trust™) is to
achieve capital appreciation by investing in liquid allemative funds, which may inchude, withowt limitation,
investments in UCTTS (Undertaking for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities Directive) funds, registered
investment companies (including mutial funds and other 1940 Act funds), and exchange traded funds (ETFs)
{collectively, “Liguid Alternative Funds™ with each fund being referred to as a “Ligquid Alemative Fund™y
Motwithstanding the terms of the Confidential Offering Memorandum, no third party Trading Manager will be
appointed to trade the Trust, theugh the Investment Manager shall have the diseretion to appeint a Trading Manager
to trade the Trust's portfolio of assets. The Investrment Manager will select the Liquid Alternative Funds to be included
in the Trust’s portfolio. Each Liguid Alternative Fund will pursue a separate fund strategy, which may include without
limitation, relative value arbitrage, macro, event driven, and equity hedge strategies.

Eelative value arbitrage strategies involve multiple arbitrage investment stratezies. The overall emphasis is on making
spread trades that derive retums from the relationship between two related securities rather than from the direction of
the market. Generally, these strategies employ offsetting long and short positions in similar or related securities when
ther values, which are mathematically or historically interrelated, are temporarily distorted. Profits (or losses) are
realized when the relative valuation of the two securities changes. In addition, relative value arbitrage strategies
inchide a methodology to make decisions regarding which relative value strategies offer the best opportunities at anmy
given time and weighting strategies accordingly in their overall portfolio,

Macro investment strategies include a broad range of sub-strategies in which the investment process is predicated on
movements in underlying economic variables and the impact these have on equity, fixed income, hard currency and
commmodity markets. Macro investment strategies employ a variety of techniques, both discretionary and systematic
analysis, combinations of top down and bottom up theses, quantitative and findamental approaches and long and short
term holding periods.

Event Driven strategies tvpically include positions m companies curmently or prospectively involved in comporate
transactions of a wide variety including but not lomited to mergers, restructurings, financial distress, tender offers,
shareholder buvbacks, debt exchanges, security issuance or other capital structure adjustments. Security types can
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range from most senior in the capital structure to most junior of subordinated, and frequently invelve additional
derivative securities. Event Driven exposures include a combination of sensitivities to equity markets, credit markets
and idiosyneratic, company specific developments. Investment theses are typically predicated on fundarmental
characteristics, with the realization of the thesis predicated on a specific development exogenous to the existing capital
structure.

Equity Hedge strategies typically include positions, both long and/or short, in primarily equity and equity derivative
securities, A wide variety of investrment processes can be employed to amrive at an investrment decision, including both
quantitative and fundamental techniques. Strategies can be broadly diversified or namowly focused on specific sectors
and can range broadly in terms of levels of net exposure, leverage emploved, holding penod, concentrations of market
capitalizations and valuation ranges of typical portfolios,,

The Private Equity Funds in which the Series Trust will invest include the following strategy:

Buyout Strategy: Buyout includes the purchase of a company or a controlling interest of a corporation”s shares or
product line or some business. A leveraged buvout 15 accomphshed with borowed money or by issuing more stock,
The strategy includes mvesting in high growth businesses in both control and non-control transactions.

(b Derivative fincricial instrime s and risk mcnagement

The Series Trust may buy and =ell forward foreign currency contracts. Forward foreign currency contracts are over-
the-counter contractual commitments to purchase or sell a specified amount of foreign currency at an agreed fisture
date at a predetermined price. Forward foreign curency contracts expose the Series Trust to credit and market risks.
Credit risk arises from the potential mability of counterparties to p erform under the terms of the contract. The estimated
credit exposure at December 31, 2019 was ¥Mil The Seres Trust 15 exposed to market nisk to the extent that adverse
changes occur in the exchange rate of the underlving foreign currency. This market risk is in excess of the amount
recognized on the consolidated statement of assets and liabilities.

In addition, investments are made via the respective HFR Master Trusts with Trading Managers which may utilize
derivative finaneial metruments with off-balance sheet risks. Leverage may alzo be used by the Trading Managers.
However, the Series Trust’s exposure to such risk is limited to the amount of its investments,

The fair values of all forward foreign currency contract assets are reported in unrealized gam on forward foreign
currency contracts in the consolidated staterment of assets and liabilities. The fair value of all forward foreign cumrency
confract liabilities is reported in unrealized loss on forward foreign curmency confracts in the consolidated statement
of assets and liabilities.

During the vear ended December 31, 2019 the Series Trust recognized net realized loss of ¥59,920 518 and change in
unrealized gain of ¥58,145,638 on forward foreign currency contracts, These respective amounts are included in the
net realized gain on investments and net change in unrealized loss on forward foreign contracts in the statement of
operations. Due to the low volume of forward foreign currency contract activity, no netting arrangements are
necessary, and no collateral is held/posted by the Series Trust. The outstanding notional on the forward foreign
currency contracts held by the Series Trust as of December 31, 2019 iz included on the consolidated schedule of
investments. This amount is representative of the outstanding notional throughout the year.

6. Taxation
Under current Cayman Island law, the Series Trust is not required to pay any taxes in the Cayman [slands on either
income or capital gains, as each investor is individually liable for the taxes, if any, on its distributive share of the

realized income, gain, loss, deductions, or credits.

It is management’s belief that the Series Trust is not engaged in a United States trade or business and will not be
subject to United States meome or withholding taxes in respect of the profits and losses of the Series Trust,

-17-
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As of December 31, 2019, the Series Trust has not recognized a liability in connection with amy uncertain income tax
positions taken by the Series Trust.

7. Revolving Credit Facility
On August 27, 2019, the Trustee, on behalf of the Trust, entered into a Revolving Credit Facility Agreement (the

“Agreement” or the “Facility™) with The Bank of N.T. Butterfield & Son Limited (the “Bank™) The Agreement
supersedes and replaces an earlier agreement dated December 10, 2018 and expires on June 30, 2020,

The Agreement allows the Trustee to obtain advances from the Bank in an amount up to £3,000,000, subject to certan
lirmitations, in order to finance the settlement of foreign exchange transactions and short term investment requirements.
Amounts bormowed by the Series Trust are secured by the assets of the Senes Trust, The Series Trust pays interest on
amounts borrowed by way of overdraft at the Bank's US Dollar Prime rate. An annual commbment fee of (04080 of
the imused portion of the maximuom available under the Agreement will be pavable quarterly in amears,

Az of and during the year ended December 31, 2019, no amounts were outstanding under the Agreement.

8. Unfunded Commitments

At Decemnber 31, 2009, infunded commitments related to the Series Trugt's investments in Private Equity Funds
denormnated in Japanese Yen totaled ¥65,530,275 and m Private Equity Funds denominated in U5, Dollars totaled
approximately ¥48.211 436 (US5443,895), Unfinded commitrments are inception to date,

9. Distributions Subject to Recall

Al December 31, 2019, distnbutions subject to recall related to the Series Trust's investments in Private Equity Funds

denorminated in Japanese Yen totaled ¥48,241,370 and in Private Equity Funds denominated in ULS, Dollars totaled
approximately Y84.493 910 (USDET77,957), Recallable distributions are mception to date,

-18-
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110, Financial Highlights

Below are the per unit cperating performance, total return and ratios to average net assets of the Series Trust for the
yvear efided December 31, 2019, Total returm is calculated based on the change in net asset value for the year, The
ratios to average net assets are calculated for the Series Trust as a whole. An individual investor’s return and ratios to
average net assets may vary from those presented based on the timing of the subscriptions and redemptions, eligibility
to participate in new issues, and the existence of loss carry forwards. The ratios do not reflect the Series Trust's
proportionate share of income and expenses of the underlying investments.

Net asset value, January 1, 2019 ¥ 12,260
Income from myvestment operations
Met investment loss (301)
Met realized and unrealized loss on investments and
foreign currency transactions (299)
Total from investment operations (GO0
Met asset value, Decemnber 31, 2019 ¥ 11,660
Total return
Total return, before performance fee (4. 89%%
Performance fee =
Total return, after perfonmance fee (4, 8%
Ratio of net investment loss to average net assets (252%

Ratio of expenses to average net assets

Expenses, before performance fee (2.520%%
Performance fee -
Total expenses and performance fee (25200

11. Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through June 26, 2020, the date these consolidated financial statermnents were
available to be issued,

Since the start of January 2020, the outbreak of coronavirus, which is a rapidly evolving sitiation, has adversely
impacted global commercial activities. The rapid development and fluidity of this situation precludes any prediction
as to its ultimate impact, which may have a continued adverse impact on economic and market conditions and trigger
a period of global economic slowdown. The Investment Manager is monitoring developments relating to coronavirus
and is coordinating its operational response based on existing business continuity plans and en guidance from global
health organizations, relevant governments, and general pandemic response best practices.

-19-

99/247



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MONEX-HFR PRIVATE EQUITY FUND & HEDGE FUND INVESTMENTS 2006

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 21, 2019
(Expressed in Japanese Yen)

Investments in HFR Master Trusts (90.32%):
Bermuda Unit Trusts (90.32%):

Liquid Alternative (90.32%):
HFE LA Master Trust — Monex 2006 Fund Class C (cost: ¥
2187,575,503)

Total Liquid ARlemative (cost: ¥ 2,187, 575,303)

Total Investments in HFR Master Trusts {cost: 2,187,575,303)

100/247

Units Fair Value
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MONEX-HFR PRIVATE EQUITY FUND & HEDGE FUND INVESTMENTS 2006

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 21, 2019
(Expressed in Japanese Yen)

Domicile Fair Value
Private Equity Funds (2.79%):
Buyout Strategy:
Blackstone Capital Partners (Cayman) V-AC L.P,
(cost: ¥ 4,424,590 Morth America ¥ 11,351,462
Carlyle Japan International Partners 11, L.P.
{cost: ¥ 14,723,774 Morth America 9160122
J.C. Flowers 11 L.P.
{cost: ¥ 15,006,781) Morth America 226,897
Thomas H. Lee (Alternative) Parallel Fund V1, L. P Asia 45015867

(cost: ¥ 23,933,490)

Total Investments in Private Equity Funds
{cost: ¥ 58,088,635)

¥ 65,754 348

Total Investments (cost: ¥ 2,245, 663,938) (93.10%): ¥ 2,197 886161

Forward Foreign Currency Contracts (0.30%):

Japanese Yen, due to settle on 01092020 (notional 6,984,531
¥2,103,005,200, foreign currency consideration 19, 300,000)

Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Foreign Currency
Contracts ¥ 6,984,531
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MONEX-HFR PRIVATE EQUITY FUND & HEDGE FUND INVESTMENTS 2006

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 21, 2019
(Expressed in Japanese Yen)

Percentages are computed based on net assets,

The following table catezorizes the fair value of investments that are greater than 5% of the net assets of the Series Trust
on a look-through pro-rata basis as of December 31, 2019,

Held through HFR LA Master Trust = Monex 2006 Cost Fair Value | % of MNet
Fund Class C Units (In Yen) iIn Yen) Assets

GLG ALFHA SEL ALT-IN H USD 28466 | 309,169,226 | 319,217,226 12.21%
JAN HND ABS RET INC-U ACCUSD 273,225 | 314,554,110 | 321,379,340 12.30%%
KAMES ABS RTEMN BD-C-USD-H-A 265403 | 314,903,834 | 322,205,324 12.33%%
LUMY-RAM MG ARB UCITS-BUSDA 24935 | 311,873,615 | 320,214,796 12.25%
LYXORTIEDMNN ARB 8T-A USD-A 25926 | 316,300,550 | 318305406 | 12.18%
MYGALE EVENT DRIVEN UC-USDI 24,832 | 315,973,590 | 323,187,598 | 12.37%

The Series Trust is unable to obtain a complete investment holding detail on each Private Equity Fund investment in order
to determine if the Series Trust’s proportional share of any investments held by the Private Equity Fund exceeds 5% of
the Series Trust's net azsets as of December 31, 2019,

See notes to consolidated financial statements. (conchided)

102/247



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018 12 31

Monex-HFR 2006

2018 12 31

2,335,787,473 2,345,610,040
318,331,885

65,130,169

2,729,072,094

5,675,397
3,496,409
3,192,412
354,712
411,394

6,899,744

20,030,068

2,709,042,026

220,970 12,260
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Monex-HFR 2006

2018 12 31

23,812,092
14,936,624
13,394,302
1,488,256
1,651,613
3,963,870
597,884
825,806

10,706,561

71,377,008

(71,377,008)

100,483,248
(359,457,934)

91,010,347

(167,964,339)

(239,341,347)
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2006

(71,377,008)
100,483,248
(359,457,934)

91,010,347

(239,341,347)

(267,869,348)

(267,869, 348)

(507,210, 695)

3,216,252,721

2,709,042,026




EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Monex-HFR 2006

2018 12 31

(239,341,347)

(211,906,987)
359,457,934
(2,631,252,511)
2,855,573,402
(91,010,347)
(374,951)
(277,356)
(210,911)
(23,435)
(11,175)
(22,037,848)
(195,450)

18,389,018

(267,869, 348)

(267,869,348)

(249,480, 330)
567,812,215

318,331,885
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Monex-HFR 2006
2018 12 31
2006
21
2006 21
Monex-HFR 2006
2006 12 15
2006 10 12
15
2013 12
2013
HFR LLC
Monex PE PE 2006 12 15
PE PE
100
MUFG
HFR

HFR MUFG
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HFR
HFR
ASU 2013-08
Topic946
GAAP
HFR
HFR

239,471,996
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2018 12 31

90

GAAP

0.80

10

2018 12 31
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0.45 0.05

0.03
15,000

HFR

HFR

1.50 2.10

10 20 HFR
HFR

0.75 1.50

0.10

36,000

0.02
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ASC946

HFR

HFR

328,948,682

286,312,589
42,636,093
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111,423,739

2018 12 31
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3,000,000

2018 12 31

2018 12 31

2018 12 31

2019 30

131,060,550
23,007,442 209,721

48,241,370
28,227,426 257,303
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13,302

(307)

(735)
(1,042)

12,260

(7.83)
(0.00)
(7.83)

2.38

2.38
0.00

2.38

2019 25
2019

HFR
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MONEX-HFR PRIVATE EQUITY FUND & HEDGE FUND INVESTMENTS 2006

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
DECEMBER 31, 2018
(Expressed in Japanese Yen)

Assets

Investments, al fair value (cost ¥ 2,335 787 473) ¥ 2,345,610,040
Cash and cash equivalents 318,331 B85
Unrealized gain on forward foreign currency contracts fi5,130,169
Total Assets 2,729,072,094
Liahilities

Investment advisory fee payable 5,675,397
Investment management fee payable 3,496,409
Distributor fee payable 3192412
Agent company fee payable Tz
Managemeni fee payable 411,39
Accrued expenses 6,899,744
Total Liabilities 20,030,068
Met Assets ¥ 2,708,042 026
Net asset value per Unit (220,970 Units issued and outstanding) ¥ 12,260

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MONEX-HFR PRIVATE EQUITY FUND & HEDGE FUND INVESTMENTS 2006

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(Expressed in Japanese Yen)

Expenses

Investment advisory fee ¥ 23 812,002
Investment management fee 14,936,624
Distributor fee 13,394,302
Agent company fee 1 488,256
Management fee 1,651,613
Administration fee 3963870
Trustee fee 507,884
Custody fee 825806
Other expenses 10,706 561
Total expenses 71,377,008
Net investment loss {71,377,008)

Realized and unrealized gains {losses) on investments, forward foreign
currency contracts and foreign currency transactions
Net realized gain on investments, forward foreign currency contracts

and foreign currency transactions 100,483,248
Net change in unrealized loss on investments (359,457.934)
Net change in unrealized gain on forward foreign currency contracts 91,010,347

Net realized and unrealized loss on invesimenis, forward foreign
currency contracts and foreign currency transactions (167,964,339)

Met decrease in net assets resulting from operations ¥ (239,341,347)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MONEX-HFR PRIVATE EQUITY FUND & HEDGE FUND INVESTMENTS 2006

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(Expressed in Japanese Yen)

Net decrease in net assets from operations

Nel invesiment loss ¥ (71,377,008
Net realized gain on investments, forward foreign currency contracts

anl foreign currency transactions 100,483,248
Net change in unrealized loss on investments {359,457 934)
Net change in unrealized gain on forward foreign currency contracis 91,010,347
Net decrease in net assets from operations (239,341,347)

Net decrease in net assets from capital transactions

Redemption of Units (20,819 Units) (267.869,348)
Net decrease in net assets from capital transactions (267 B69,348)
Net decrease in net assets (507,210,695)
Met assets at beginning of year (241,789 Units) 3.216,252,721
Net assets at end of year (220,970 Units) ¥ 2,709,042 026

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MONEX-HFR PRIVATE EQUITY FUND & HEDGE FUND INVESTMENTS 2006

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008
{Expressed in Japanese Yen)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net decrease in ned assets from operations {239.341,347)

Adjustments to reconcile net decrease in med assets
from operations to net cash provided by operating activities:

Met realized gain on investments (211,906,987 )
Met change in uarealized loss on investments 359,457 934
Purchases of investments (2,631.252.511)
Procesds from disposition of investments 2,855 373402
Met change in warealized gain on forward foneign currency contracts (90.000,347)
Decrease in investment advisory fee payable (374,951}
Drecrease in investment management fee payable (277,356)
Drecrease in distributor fee payable (210911}
Drecrease in agent company [ee payable (23435)
Decrease in management fee payable (10,173)
Drecrease in performance fee payable (22,037 848)
Drecrease in accrued expenses {195 450)

Net cash provided by operating activities 18,389, 018

Cash Mows from financing activities

Faid on redemptions of Units (267,869,348)
Met cash used in financing activities (267,869 348)
MNet decrease in cash and cash equivalents (249,480, 330)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 367 812,215
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ¥ 18,331,885
——

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MONEX-HFR PRIVATE EQUITY FUND & HEDGE FUND INVESTMENTS 2006

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(Expressed in Japanese Yen)

1. Organization

Monex Fund of Funds Series | {the “Trust”) is an open-ended umbrella unit trust scheme esiablished under the laws
of the Cayman Islands by a master trust deed made by Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited (the “Initial Trustee”) and
Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Cayman) Limited (the “Initial Manager™) dated July 21, 2006, which allowed for the

creation of various Series Trusis.

Pursuant to the master trust deed and a supplemental trust deed dated July 21, 2006 made between the Initial Trustee
and the Initial Manager, Monex-HFR Private Equity Fund & Hedge Fund Invesiments 2006 (the “Series Trust”) was
created as a series trust of the Trust and commenced operations on December 15, 2006. The Series Trust was registered
under the Mutual Funds Law of the Cayman Islands on October 12, 2006, The term of the Series Trust is limited to
fifteen years. The assets and labilities of the Sedes Trust are segregated, with a unitholder’s interest limited to the
unitized class in which the investor owns units. The Series Trust operates independently of any other Series Trust in
the Trust and constitutes a separaie invesiment with no beneficial interest in or liability to any other Series Trust in
the Trust.

A supplemental trust deed dated July 12, 2013 appointed Butterfield Trust Cayman Limited (the “Trustee”) o assume
the responsibility of the Initial Trustee. A supplemental trost deed dated Auwgust &, 2013 appointed Butterfield Bank
(Cayman) Limited (the “Manager”) to assume the responsibility of Initial Manager.

HFR Asset Management, LLC has been appointed as investment manager to the Series Trust {the “Investment
Manager™). Astmax Asset Management, Inc. has been appointed as invesiment adviser to the Series Trust (the
“Investment Adviser”). Monex Inc. has been appointed as agent company for the Manager and distributor of Units

(" Agent Company™ and “Distributor”).

Monex PE Trust {the “PE Trust”) is a Bermuda unit trust established by a Trusi Deed dated December 15, 2006, The
Trust Deed was entered into by Butterfield Trust {Bermuda) Limited {the “PE Trustee™) and the Investment Manager.
PE Trustis wholly owned by the Series Trust and is an investment vehicle through which the Series Trust purchases
private equity investmenis,

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited serves as the Series Trust's administrator (the “ Administrator”). Butterfield
Trust (Bermuda) Limited serves as the Series Trust’s custodian (the “Custodian™).

The Series Trustis designed as a multi-manager investment vehicle in which capital is allocated among a select group
of trading managers {the “Trading Managers”) and private equity funds (“Private Equity Funds™). Capital is allocated
to Trading Managers through various investments in Bermuda unit trusts (the "HFR Master Trusts”) that have been
esiablished by the Investment Manager. The Trading Managers utilize various investment strategies and also have the
ability to invest in derivative financial instruments. Butterfield Trust (Bermuda) Limited (the trustee of the HFR
Master Trusts) and MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited (the administrator of the HFR Master Trusis) are
affiliated with the Trustee and Administrator of the Series Trust. The audited financial statements of the HFR Master
Trusts are available o the Series Trust's Unitholders upon request. Capital is also allocated to Private Equity Funds.
Private Equity Funds invesi in various companies, including listed or unlisted equities in Japan, the U.S. andfor other
markets.

The Series Trust's investment objective is to obtain capital appreciation on its assets by investing in various HFR
Master Trusts and Private Equity Funds that employ various strategies. The Investment Manager actively allocates,
and from time to time reallocates, the Series Trust's assets among the various HFR Master Trusts. In managing the
Series Trusi's net asseis, the Invesiment Manager may increase or decrease the number of HFR Masier Trusis
receiving allocations or change the allocation of assets among existing HFR Masier Trusis. The Series Trust has
committed a set amount of capital to each Private Equity Fund. Thus, there is no reallocation of assets among the

=10 -
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Private Equity Funds, The Investment Adviser provides investment advice to the Investmeni Manager and assisis in
the investment decisions.

Capitalized terms herein are as defined in the respective Offering Memoranda of the Series Trust or HFR Master
Trusts, unless otherwise noted.

The Series Trust is classified as an investment company as defined in Accounting Standards Update (*ASU™) 2013-
08, Investment Companies (Topic 846): Amendments to the Scope, Measurement, and Disclosure Reguirements, The
Series Trust applies the guidance set forth in Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 946, Financial
Services - Investment Companies ("ASC 9467} in its consolidated financial statements and related notes.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The consolidated financial statements are expressed in
Japanese Yen. The following are the significant accounting policies adopted by the Series Trust.

{a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Monex- HFR Private Equity Fund & Hedge Fund
Investments 2006 and its wholly owned subsidiary, Monex PE Trust. All significant intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

) Investment transactions and valuaiion

Investments in the HFR Master Trusts of ¥2,106,138,044 are recorded at fair value based on the Series Trust's pro
rata interest in the net assets of the HFR Master Trusis, all of which are valued at fair value. The HFR Master Trusis
can engage in trading of securites and derivative financial instruments, including futures, forwards, options, and other
derivative financial instruments. Risks to these HFR Master Trusis arise from the possible adverse changes in the fair
value of such interests and the potential inability of counterparties to perform under the terms of the contracts.
However, the risk to the Series Trust is limited to the amount of the Series Trust’s investment in each of the HFR
Master Trusts. Net gain or loss on investments in HFR Master Trusts included in the consolidated statements of
operations is net of management fees and performance-based compensation.

Investmenis in the Private Equity Funds of ¥ 239 471,996 are recorded ai fair value based on the Series Trusi's pro-
rata interest in the net assets of the Private Equity Funds, all of which are valued at fair value as determined by the
investment manager {or equivalent) of the underlying fund, another party of the Private Equity Fund in charge of
valuation or an independent third party. Valuation procedures for marketable securities rely on observable market
inputs including closing exchange prices or recently executed trades. Valuation procedures for non-marketable
investmenis include discounted cash flows analysis, comparable public market valuation, and comparable acquisition
valuation. Other factors, such as the cost of underlying investments, developments since the acquisition of the
investments, comparisons to similar publicly traded investments, subsequent purchases of the same investment by
other investors, the current financial position and operating results of the issuer may also be considered. The estimated
fair values of the Private Equity Funds' investments could differ significantly from the values that would have been
determined had a ready markei for the securities exisied. Furthermore, there is no assurance that upon liquidation the
Private Equity Fund will realize values presented in the report. The risk to the Series Trusi is limited to the amount of
the Series Trust's investment in each of the Private Equity Funds. Net gain or loss on investments in Private Equity
Funds included in the consolidated statements of operations is net of all fees and performance-based compensation.

Investment transactions are accounted for on a trade date basis. Realized gains and losses on investments are calculated
using the specific identification method. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are recorded in the consolidated

statement of operations.

In order to redeem Units of HFR Master Trusts {U.S. dollar-denominated), in many cases, a redemption notice must
be given between 5 and 15 business days prior to the Dealing Day. Dealing Days range from weekly to monthly,
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depending on the terms of each respective fund’s Offering Memorandum. Weekly redempiions may be subject to a
10% cap. Pantial redemptions are not permitted if the value of the Series Trust's remaining Units in an HFR Master
Trust is less than $1,000,000. The Investment Manager may waive, reduce, or otherwise modify the redemption notice
period or the minimum balance at its discretion.

Invesimenis in Private Equity Funds are considered illiquid. The ability to transfer such interesis is restricted in
accordance with the terms of the agreement which constitutes such Private Equity Fund. Certain Private Equity Fund
interests, held by the Series Trust and PE Trust directly or indirectly, may not be transferred without the prior written
consent of counterparties to the agreement, which may withhold such consent for any reason or for no reason. The
Series Trust may not withdraw from such a Private Equity Fund.

As the Series Trust reaches the end of the five year lock-up period (Note 4) and thereafter, it is anticipated that the
Series Trust will allocate a larger percentage of its portfolio to HFR Master Trusts, which are generally more liquid
investments than the Private Equity Funds.

The Net Asset Value utilized as of the Valuation Day may differ from the Net Asset Value calculated in accordance
with GAAP and included in these consolidated financial statements, based on the timing of receipt of information
from the underlying Private Equity Funds.

(e} Forward foreign currency contracts

During the yvear ended December 31, 2018, the Series Trust used forward foreign currency contracts to hedge apainst
the exposure of the underlying invesiments. The contracts obligate the Series Trust o exchange currencies for an
agreed-upon price on an agreed future date. These contracis are reported at fair value, representing the unrealized gain
or loss on the contracts as measured by the difference between the forward foreign exchange rates at the dates of entry
into the contracts and the forward rates at the reporting date, and are included in the consolidated statements of asseis
and liabilities. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are included in the consolidated statement of operations.

{d) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts held in banks. The Series Trust defines cash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated statement of assets and liabilities as funds held in liquid investments with original maturities of 90 days
or less.

fel Investment fincome and EXPEIISes

Interest income and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis,

n Fareign currency translation

Investments and other assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Japanese Yen ai
exchange rates at the reporting date. Purchases and sales of investments, foreign currencies, and income and expense
items denominated in Foreign currencies are translated into Japanese Yen at the exchange rate on the respective dates
of such transactions,

The Series Trust does not isolate that portion of the resulis of operations resulting from changes in foreign exchange
rates on investments from the fluctuations arising from changes in fair value of investmenis held. Such fluctvations
are included with net realized and unrealized gain or loss on investments, forward Toreign currency contracts and
foreign currency transactions in the consolidated statement of operations.

Included in net realized gains (losses) on investments, forward foreign currency contracts, and foreign currency

transactions are foreign exchange gains or losses arising from sales of foreign currencies and currency gains and losses
realized between the trade and the setilement dates on investment transactions.

-12 -
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(g} Allocation of profits and fosses to Units

Profits and losses of the Series Trust for each Fiscal Period are allocated to each Series of Units in proportion to the
respective balances at the beginning of that Fiscal Period.

) Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

3. Expenses
{a) fnvestment advisery and performance fee

The Series Trust pays the Investment Adviser an investment advisory fee of 0.80% per annum of net assets, accrued
monthly and payable quarierly,

The Series Trust pays the Investment Adviser a performance fee of 10% per annum of the difference between the Net
Asset Value per Unit at the end of a Calculation Period and the High Water Mark per Unit, multiplied by the number
of Units outstanding at the end of such Calculation Period. The Net Asset Value per Unit must exceed both the High
Water Mark per Unit and the Hurdle Amount for performance fees 1o be deemed payable. There were no Performance
Fees accrued for the year ended December 31, 2018.

(B} Investment managenient fee

The Investment Manager is paid a management fee equal to 0.50% per annum of the Series Trust's net assets, accrued
maonthly and payable quarterly.

{r} Distribwior and agent company fee

The Distributor and Agent Company receive a distributor fee and agent company fee of 0.45% and 0.05% per annum
of net assets, respectively, acerued monthly and payable quarterly out of the assets of the Series Trust. The Distributor
and Agent Company are also entifled to be reimbursed for out of pocket expenses.

(e} Management fee

The Series Trust pays the Manager a management fee of 0.03% per annum of net assets, accrued monthly and payahle
quarterly, subject to a minimum annual fee of US$15,000,

el Management fees, incentive allocaiion and fees paid fo HER Master Trusts and Private Eguity Funds

The Investment Manager receives from each HFR Master Trust, in which the Series Trust invests, management fees
ranging from 1.50% to 2.10% per annum of the net asset value of each Sub-series of the HFR Master Trust and an
incentive allocation ranging from 10% to 20% per annum of Net New Profits allocable to each Sub-series during a
Performance Period. The fees and allocation are reflected in the net asset value of the HFR Master Trusis,

The Series Trust is indirectly subject to assei-based fees and performance arrangements paid at the Privaie Equity
Funds® level. Management fees range from 0.75% to 1.50% per annum of the net asset value or committed capital
balance of each Private Equity investment and a carried interest allocation ranging from 0% to 20% may be paid to
each general partner (or equivalend) of the Private Equity Funds, subject to certain performance conditions.

-13-
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{0 Administrator fee

The Administrator receives an administration fee of 0.10% per annum of net assets, accrued monthly and payable
quarterly, subject to a minimum annual fee of US$36,000. The Administrator is also entitled to be reimbursed for out
of pocket expenses.

{g! Trustee fee

The Trustee receives a fee of 0.02% per annum of net assets, accrued monthly and payable quarterly. The Trustee is
also entitled to be reimbursed for out of pocket expenses.

() Custodian fee

The Custodian receives a fee of 0.02% per annum of net assets, accrued monthly and payable quarterly, subject 1o a
minimum annual fee of USET7,500. The Custodian is also entitled to be reimbursed for out of pocket expenses.

(i) Other expenses
The Series Trust will also bear its own operating expenses, including legal, audit and accounting fees.
4. Units

Units are offered during the Initial Offering Period at ¥10,000 per Unit, plus a subscription charge not exceeding
2.50% of the subscripiion price. The subscription charge is payable to the Distributor. Following the close of the Initial
Offering Period, Units will not be available for issue.

Units are subject to a five year holding period or "lock-up™ from the close of the Initial Offedng Period. After the five
year lock-up period, each Unitholder may request a repurchase of Units by the Investment Manager on the relevant
Repurchase Day. The first Repurchase Day was the fifth Business Day in May 2012, Units will be repurchased at the
Wet Asset Value per Unit calculated as at the Valuation Day immediately preceding the relevant Repurchase Day.

A repurchase charge of 2.50% of the applicable Net Asset Value per Unit will be charged and retained by the Series
Trust on any repurchases of Units prior to the seventh anniversary from the Closing Date. The Investment Manager
mvay limit the number of Units that may be repurchased on any Repurchase Day to 10% of the total number of Units
of the Series Trust outstanding on such Repurchase Day. In this event, the limitation will apply pro rata so that all
Unitholders wishing to submit Units for repurchase on that Repurchase Day may have repurchased the same
proportion of such Units {(but rounded down to an integral number}. Repurchase Notices in respect of all Units not
repurchased on that Repurchase Day will be cancelled. Unless previously terminated pursuant to the Trust Deed, the
Series Trust will terminate on December 15, 2021,

5. Investments
{a) Fair value measurements

In accordance with Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 820 ("Topic 8207), Fair Valve Measurement,
the Series Trust defines fair value as the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the reporting date. Topic 20 also establishes a fair value
hierarchy based on the observability of market prices used to measure fair value. Investments with readily available
quoted prices in an active market or those for which fair value can be measured from actively quoted prices generally
will have a higher degree of market price observability and a lesser degree of judgment used in measuring fair value.
The Trustee is ultimately responsible for the valuation of all securities held by the Series Trust.
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Investment assets amnd liabilities reported at fair value are classified in one of the following categories:

Level 1. The values for securities classified as Level 1 are based on unadjusted quoted prices for identical
securities in an active market. Since valuations are based on quoted prices that are readily accessible at the
measurement date, valuation of these securities does not entail a significant degree of judgment.

Level 2. The values for securities classified as Level 2 are based on quoted prices in non-active markets for
which all significant inputs are observable either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs may also include
pricing models whose inputs are observable or derived principally from or corroborated by observable market
data.

Level 3. Values for securities calegorized as Level 3 are based on prices or valuation techniques that require
inputs that are both significant to the fair value and unobservable. These inputs reflect the Series Trusts” own
assumptions about the assumptions a market participant would use in pricing the security. Little if any market
activity exists for Level 3 securities.

Topic 820 permits the Series Trust, as a practical expedient, to estimate the Fair value of the Series Trust's investments
as the net asset value per share or its equivalent if the net asset value of the investments is calculated in a manner
consistent with the measurement principles of ASC 946. The Series Trust uses the practical expedient to estimate the
fair value of its investments in HFR Master Trusis and Private Equity Funds. The Series Trust values forward foreign
currency contracts using inputs other than quoted prices that are observable, All forward foreign currency contracts
are classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy at December 31, 2018.

The HFR Master Trusts” net asset values are binding, the Series Trust has the ability to transact at the closing net asset
value at the measurement date, and the Series Trust has transparency into the underlying investments of the HFR
Master Trusis,

Each of the investments in Private Equity Funds is estimated to be liquidated/realized over the next 1-2 years.

The following table summarizes the changes in investment assets measured at fair value for which the Seres Trust
has classified the investments as Level 3:

ASC Type Private Equity Fund
Balance, Jarmary 1, 2018 ¥ 328,948,682
Transfers in -
Transfers Out -
Purchases -
Sales (286,312,589)
Realized and unrealized gains (losses), net {42,636,093)
Balance December 31, 2018 -

Changes in unrealized gains (losses) included in earnings
related to investments still held at reporting date ¥ -

The following are the sirategies in which the Series Trust invests, through its investments in the HFR Master Trusts:

Convertible Arbitrage Strategy: Convertible arbitrage includes strategies in which the investment thesis is
predicated on realization of a spread between related instruments in which one or multiple components of the spread
is a convertible fixed income instrument. Such sirategies employ an investment process designed to isolate attractive
opporiunities between the price of a convertible security and the price of a non-convertible security, typically of the
same issuer.

-15-
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Event Driven Strategy: Event driven is also known as “corporate life cyele” investing. The strategy involves
investing in opportunities created by significant transactional events, such as spin-offs, mergers amd acquisitions,
bankruptey reorganizations, recapitalizations and share buybacks. The uncertainty about the outcome of these events
creates investment opportunities for trading managers who can correctly anticipate their outcomes. Generally, these
extraordinary corporate events fall into three categories: merger arbitrage opportunities, distressed securities
situations, and special situations. Instruments include long and short common and preferred stocks, as well as deht
securities and options.

Hedged Equity Strategy: Hedged equity, also known as long/short equity, combines core long holdings of equities
with short sales of equities as well as limited use of options and CFTC-approved futures coniracts primarily for
hedging purposes. Hedged equity porifolios may be anywhere from net long to net short depending on market
conditions. Profits are made when long positions appreciate and stocks sold short depreciate. Conversely, losses are
incurred when long positions depreciate andfor the value of stocks sold short appreciates.

Macro Strategy: Macro managers trade a broad range of strategies in which the investment process is predicated on
movements in underlying economic variables and the impact these have on equity, fixed income, hard currency and
commodity markets. Managers employ a variety of techniques, both discretionary and systematic analysis,
combinations of top down and bottom up theses, quantitative and fundamental approaches and long and short term
holding periods. Macro strategies are predicated on predicted or future movements in the underlying instrumenis.

Merger Arbitrage Strategy: Merger arbitrage focuses on invesiment opportunities that arse from corporate
transactions and business combinations of varied nature, consisting of but not limited to, acquirer/target and mergers
between business entities. Transactions can be cither friendly or hostile, involving related or unrelated business
entities. Trading Managers will seek profit opportunities arising from inefficiencies in the market for such securities
and other obligations, as a function of ongoing transaction developments determining ultimate realized value. Profits
in this sector result from the market’s lack of understanding of the true value of the securities following the corporate
transaction.

Relative Value Arbitrage Strategy: Relative value arbitrage involves the realization of a valuation discrepancy in
the relationship among multiple securities. Trading Managers employ a variety of fundamental and quantitative
techniques to establish investment theses, and security types include equity, fixed income, derivative or other
instruments. Relative value strategies may include forms of fixed income strategies, which are typically
quaniitatively driven o measure the existing relationship among instruments and, in some cases, identify atiractive
positions in which the risk adjusted spread between these instrunents represents an attractive investment
opportunity. Although relative value strategies may also involve investments in opportunities created by
transactional events, the investment thesis depends on the realization of a pricing discrepancy among related
securities, as opposed to the outcome of the corporate ransaction.

The Private Equity Funds in which the Series Trust will invest include the following sirategy:

Buyout Strategy: Buyout includes the purchase of a company or a controlling interest of a corporation’s shares or
product line or some business. A leveraged buyout is accomplished with borrowed money or by issuing more stock.
The strategy includes investing in high growth businesses in both control and non-control transactions.

(b} Derivative financial fnstruments and risk management

The Series Trust may buy and sell forward foreign currency contracts. Forward foreign currency contracts are over-
the-counter contractual commitments to purchase or sell a specified amount of foreign currency at an agreed future
date at a predetermined price. Forward foreign currency contracts expose the Series Trust to credit and market risks.
Credit risk arises from the potential inability of counterparties to perform under the terms of the contract. The estimated
credit exposure at December 31, 2018 was ¥65,130,169. The Series Trust is exposed to market risk to the extent that
adverse changes occur in the exchange rate of the underlying foreign currency. This market sk is in excess of the
amount recognized on the consolidated statement of assets and liabilities.

- 16 -
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In addition, investments are made via the respective HFR Master Trusis with Trading Managers which may uiilize
derivative financial instruments with off-balance sheet risks. Leverage may also be used by the Trading Managers.
However, the Series Trust's exposure to such risk is limited to the amount of its investments.

The fair values of all forward foreign currency contract assets are reported in unrealized gain on forward foreign
currency contracts in the consolidated statement of assets and liabilities. The fair value of all forward foreign currency
contract liabilities is reported in unrealized loss on forward foreign currency contracts in the consolidated statement
of asseis and liabilities.

I]unng the year ended December 31, 2018 the Series Trust recognized net realized loss of ¥111,423,739 and rhnnp,e
im unrealized gain of ¥91,010.347 on forward fﬂmgn currency coniracis. These respective amounis are included in
the net realized gain on investments and net change in unrealized gain on forward foreign contracts in the statement
of operations. Due to the low volume of forward foreign currency contract activity, no netting arrangements are
necessary, and no collateral is held/posted by the Series Trust. The outstanding notional on the forward foreign
currency contracts held by the Series Trust as of December 31, 2018 is included on the consolidated schedule of
investments. This amount is representative of the outstanding notional throughout the year.

6. Taxation
Under current Cayman Island law, the Series Trust is not required to pay any taxes in the Cayman Islands on either
income or capital gains, as each investor is individually liable for the taxes, if any, on its distributive share of the

realized income, gain, loss, deductions, or credits.

It is management's belief that the Series Trust is not engaged in a United States trade or business and will not be
subject to United States income or withholding taxes in respect of the profits and losses of the Seres Trust,

As of December 31, 2018, the Series Trust has not recognized a liability in connection with any uncertain income tax
positions taken by the Series Trust.

Generally, the Series Trust is not subject to LL5. Federal, State, and local or non-LL5. income tax examinations by tax
authorities for the years before 201 5.

7. Revolving Credit Facility

On December 10, 2018, the Trustee, on behalf of the Trust, entered into a Revolving Credit Facility Agreement (the
“Agreement” or the “Facility”) with The Bank of N.T. Butterfield & Son Limited {the “Bank™). The Agreement
supersedes and replaces an earlier agreement dated August 29, 2017 and expires on June 30, 2019

The Agreement allows the Trustee to obtain advances from the Bank in an amount up to $3,000,000, subject to certain
limitations, in order to finance the setilement of foreign exchange transactions and short ierm investment requirements,
Amounts borrowed by the Series Trust are secured by the assets of the Series Trust. The Series Trust pays interest on
amounts borrowed by way of overdraft at an interest rate 5.30°%. An annual commitment fee of 0.40% of the unused
portion of the maximum available under the Agreement will be payable quarterly in arrears.

As of and during the year ended December 31, 2018, no amounts were outstanding under the Agreement.

8. Unfunded Commitments

At December 31, 2018, unfunded commitments related to the Series Trust's investments in Private Equity Funds

denominated in Japanese Yen totaled ¥131 060,550 and in Private Equity Funds denominated in US. Dollars totaled
approximately ¥23,007 442 (USS208,721).
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9. Distributions Subject to Recall

At December 31, 2018, distributions subject to recall related to the Series Trust’s investments in Private Equity Funds
denominated in Japanese Yen totaled ¥48,241,370 and in Private Equity Funds denominated in U.S. Dollars totaled

approximately ¥28,227 426 (US§257,303).

10, Indemmifications

In the normal course of business, the Series Trust enters into contracts that contain a variety of representations and
warranties that provide indemnifications under certain circumstances, The Series Trust's maximum exposure under
these agreements is unknown as this would invelve future claims that may be made against the Series Trust that have
not yet occurred. The Series Trust expects the risk of future obligations under these indemnifications to be remote.

11. Financial Highlights

Below are the per unit operating pedformance, total return and ratios to average net assets of the Series Trust for the
year ended December 31, 2018, Total return is calculated based on the change in net asset value for the year. The
ratios to average net assets are calculated for the Series Trust as a whole. An individual investor’s return and ratios to
average net assels may vary from those presented based on the timing of the subscriptions and redemptions, eligibility
to participate in new issues, and the exisience of loss carry forwards. The ratios do not reflect the Series Trust's
proportionate share of income and expenses of the underlying investments,

Net asset value, January 1, 2018 ¥13.302
Income/(loss) from investment operations
Net investment loss (307)
Net realized and unrealized loss on investments, forward foreign
currency contracts and foreign currencies 15
Total from investment operations 1.042
Net asset value, December 31, 2018 Y12.260
Total return
Total return, hefore performance fee (7.83)%
Performance fee {0.00)
Total return, after performance fee {783} %
Ratio of net investment loss to average net assets L.38%
Ratio of expenses to average net assets
Expenses, before performance fee 2.38%
Performance fee 0.00%
Total expenses and performance fee L8N

12.  Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through June 25, 2019, the date these consolidated financial statemenis were
available to be issued. As of April 1, 20019, the HFR Master Trusts that the Series Trust was invested in were liquidated
by the Investment Manager. A portion of the proceeds from the liquidation were redeployed to a newly launched HFR
Master Trust that will invest in liquid alternative funds as directed by the Investment Advisor and agreed upon by the

Investment Manager.
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2020

4,386,361,801

2,105,215,547

2,281,146,254

202,466

11,267
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2020 16,450,000 17 5,801
16,450,000
10
75
2013 11 26
2020

3,278,573,609
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12 31
2019 2018
133,793 14,298 156,036 16,676
623,614 66,646 762,301 81,467
757,407 80,944 918,337 98,143
24,878 2,659
967,591 103,406 837,341 89,487
924,423 98,793 817,565 87,373
1,892,014 202,200 1,654,906 176,860
1,104,689 118,058 1,012,235 108,178
46,804 5,002 48,186 5,150
12,056 1,288 13,157 1,406
7,336 784 7,368 787
551 59 551 59
397 42
18,217 1,947 25,453 2,720
3,839,074 410,282 3,705,468 396,003
782,079 83,581 715,417 76,457
2,693,087 287,810 2,652,140 283,434
3,475,166 371,391 3,367,557 359,891
1,626 174 1,922 205
60,167 6,430 63,649 6,802
61,793 6,604 65,571 7,008
3,536,959 377,995 3,433,128 366,898
1.00
16,450,000
2018 1.00
16,450,000 16,450 1,758 16,450 1,758
277,466 29,653 269,643 28,817
8,199 876 (13,753) (1,470)
302,115 32,287 272,340 29,105
3,839,074 410,282 3,705,468 396,003
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12 31

2019 2018
3,524 377 3,476 371
22,309 2,384 20,457 2,186
20,671 2,209 18,630 1,991
5,347 571 5,098 545
2 0 120 13
51,853 5,542 47,781 5,106
56,446 6,032 54,535 5,828
54,624 5,838 45,837 4,899
11,901 1,272 7,019 750
122,971 13,142 107,391 11,477
8,407 898 4,182 447
8,407 898 4,182 447
114,564 12,243 103,209 11,030
1,893 202 1,297 139
116,457 12,446 104,506 11,169
571 61 341 36
@ © 6 1
2 0
569 61 349 37
168,879 18,048 152,636 16,312
29,787 3,183 29,055 3,105
13,732 1,468 13,739 1,468
4,300 460 5,242 560
4,334 463 4,213 450
2,109 225 1,850 198
1,101 118 1,014 108
1,070 114 987 105
4,623 494 4,566 488
61,056 6,525 60,666 6,483
107,823 11,523 91,970 9,829
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2019 2018
107,823 11,523 91,970 9,829
(56) ® (73) ®
22,579 2,413 (8,996) (961)
(571) (61) (341) (36)
129,775 13,869 82,560 8,823
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12 31
2019 2018
16,450 1,758 16,450 1,758
2019 16,450,000
2018 16,450,000
269,643 28,817 237,673 25,400
107,823 11,523 91,970 9,829
(100, 000) (10,687) (60,000) (6,412)
277,466 29,653 269,643 28,817
(13,753) (1,470) (4,343) (464)
(56) (6) (73) ®)
(56) ®) 3 ®
22,579 2,413 (8,996) (961)
(571) (61) (341) (36)
22,008 2,352 (9,337) (998)
8,199 876 (13,753) (1,470)
302,115 32,287 272,340 29,105
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12 31
2019 2018

107,823 11,523 91,970 9,829
17,374 1,857 17,493 1,869
(1,893) (202) (1,297) (139)
(571) (61) (341) (36)
33 4 (824) (88)
7,236 773 (11,527) (1,232)
(296) (32) 917 98
(3,484) 372) 17,129 1,831
126,222 13,489 113,520 12,132
24,878 2,659 24,943 2,666
(4,320) (462) (3,113) (333)
(93,908) (10,036) (47,786) (5,107)
109,999 11,756 68,450 7,315
(220,144) (23,527) (357,675) (38,225)
111,247 11,889 219,332 23,440
143,841 15,372 141,834 15,158
(366, 355) (39,152) (132,636) (14,175)
(5,483) (586)
(294,762) (31,501) (92,134) (9,846)
107,610 11,500 419,047 44,784
(100, 000) (10,687) (60,000) (6,412)
7,610 813 359,047 38,371
(160,930) (17,199) 380,433 40,657
918,337 98,143 537,904 57,486
757,407 80,944 918,337 98,143
8,703 930 3,265 349

3,347 358
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TDR

TDR

TDR
TDR

30

1461247
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180

30
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15
50
10
10
2019
ASU 2016-02
842)

2019

12
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ocClI

0ClI

AOCI
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AFS
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0TC

oTC

0TC
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12

2019 12 31

2016 FASB 2016-13
CECL
SEC GAAP

2019 12 15
CECL

326
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PCl )
PCD
PCD
CECL
2020 ASU 2016-13
CECL
PD LGD
EAD
2019 12 31 2020
3.0
2020
2019 2019 11  FASB ASU  2019-04 ASU  2019-11 326
815
825 805-20
ASU ASU 2016-01
825-10) ASU 2016-13
326) ASU  2017-12
815 ASU  2016-01 2019 12 15
)
ASU  2016-13 ASU  2016-13
ASU  2017-12 ASU  2017-12
ASU 2016-13 ASU  2019-04 ASU 2019-11
2019 FASB 2019-05 326)

326
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326
326-20
825-10
ASU 2016-13
2019 FASB 2019-01 842)
ASU 2016-02 842
942
250
2019 12 15
842
250 250-10-50-1 250-10-50-3
842 ASU
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
24,453 16,723
109,340 139,313
623,614 762,301
732,954 901,614
757,407 918,337
2019 12 31 20.1 2018 25.8
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
24,878
24,878
AFS HTM
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
898,566 9,670  (1,613) 906,623 664,541 1,687  (11,771) 654,457
3,348 81 3,429 3,046 18 3,064
55,508 (1,149) 54,359
13,290 (399) 12,801 13,290 (665) 12,625
55,504 6  (1,176) 54,334
44,600 188 (140) 44,648 59,674 (1,172) 58,502
959,804 9,939  (2,152) 967,591 851,563 1,711 (15,933) 837,341
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
924,423 19,488 (277) 943,634 817,565 2,068  (14,694) 804,939
924,423 19,488 (277) 943,634 817,565 2,068  (14,694) 804,939
2019 12 31 2018 12 31 AOCI AOCL
2019 12 31 AFS 2018 12 31
46.8 AFS 0.03

12

12
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2019 12 31 12 12
85,107 (460) 125,749 (1,153) 210,856 (1,613)
202 202
12,891 (399) 12,891 (399)
28,531 (140) 28,531 (140)
85,309 (460) 167,171 (1,692) 252,480 (2,152)
46,411 @) 46,111 @0
46,411 @) 46,111 Q@17
2018 12 31 12 12
141,343 (522) 372,832 (11,249) 514,175 (11,771)
14,914 (114) 39,445 (1,035) 54,359 (1,149)
12,625 (665) 12,625 (665)
49,317 (1,176) 49,317 (1,176)
16,182 (352) 42,320 (820) 58,502 1,172)
172,439 (988) 516,539 (14,945) 688,978 (15,933)
332,551 (5,441) 285,162 (9,253) 617,713 (14,694)
332,551 (5,441) 285,162 (9,253) 617,713 (14,694)
2019 12 31 AFS HTM AFS HTM
15.64 23 2018 84 79.6
OTTI 0.81 2018
2.34
FFELP
FFELP
97 100%

FFELP
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AAA ) Aaa
LTV
11 22 59 63
2019 12 31
12 10 10

906,623 906,623

202 3,227 3,429

12,891 12,891

44,648 44,648

202 3,227 964,162 967,591

924,423 924,423

924,423 924,423

202 3,227 1,888,585 1,892,014

202 3,227 1,888,585 1,892,014

202 3,227 1,888,585 1,892,014
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2018 12 31
12 10 10
654,457 654,457
3,064 3,064
54,359 54,359
12,625 12,625
54,334 54,334
58,502 58,502
3,064 54,359 779,918 837,341
817,565 817,565
817,565 817,565
3,064 54,359 1,597,483 1,654,906
3,064 54,359 1,597,483 1,654,906
3,064 54,359 1,597,483 1,654,906
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
2,960 3,002 2,751 2,707
3,123 3,177 3,558 3,467
AFS
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
AFS
55,256 49 (129) 24,975 D)
55,991 651
194,357 544 (116)
111,247 700 (129) 219,332 544 (203)
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31

33,101
127,509 12,670
66,096 147,691
5,475 10,156
232,181 170,517
(1,688)
232,181 168,829
179,304 180,420
57,509 48,909
236,813 229,329
236,813 229,329
7,765 6,975
26,253 23,623
3,043 2,242
30,174 27,751
67,235 60,591
67,235 60,591
569,550 555,362
(181) (203)
569,369 555,159
1,105,779 1,015,799
(181) (1,891)
(909) (1,673)
1,104,689 1,012,235
30
15
30 2019 12 31
4.92 2018 5.71
2019 12 31
30 59 60 89 90
33,101 33,101
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127,509 127,509
66,096 66,096
5,475 5,475
232,181 232,181
445 445 178,859 179,304
57,509 57,509
445 445 236,368 236,813
7,765 7,765
26,253 26,253
3,043 3,043
16 16 30,158 30,174
16 16 67,219 67,235
2,646 1,466 2,146 6,258 563,292 569,550
3,091 1,482 2,146 6,719 1,099,060 1,105,779

30

2018 12 31
30 59 60 89 20

3,750 3,750 8,920 12,670
231 231 147,460 147,691
10,156 10,156
231 3,750 3,981 166,536 170,517
837 837 179,583 180,420
48,909 48,909
837 837 228,492 229,329
9 5 14 6,961 6,975
23,623 23,623
2,242 2,242
114 4 118 27,633 27,751
123 9 132 60,459 60,591
3,861 1,069 3,319 8,249 547,113 555,362
5,052 1,078 7,069 13,199 1,002,600 1,015,799

30

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
20 2
3,750 3,750
31 31

31 31 3,750 3,750
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1,632 568 2,200 1,683 194 1,877

1,663 568 2,231 5,433 194 5,627
2019 12 31

33,101 33,101

127,509 127,509

64,665 462 938 31 66,096

5,475 5,475

230,750 462 938 31 232,181

158,922 19,957 425 179,304

57,509 57,509

216,431 19,957 425 236,813

7,765 7,765

26,253 26,253

3,043 3,043

30,172 2 30,174

67,233 2 67,235

561,911 6,007 1,632 569,550

1,076,325 20,421 7,370 1,663 1,105,779
2018 12 31

8,920 3,750 12,670

146,535 191 965 147,691

10,156 10,156

165,611 191 965 3,750 170,517

168,311 11,635 474 180,420

48,909 48,909

217,220 11,635 474 229,329

6,975 6,975

23,623 23,623

2,242 2,242

27,742 9 27,751

60,582 9 60,591

545,713 7,966 1,683 555,362
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989,126

11,835

9,405

5,433 1,015,799

90
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
969 231,212 4,715 165,802

425 236,388 474 228,855

7 67,228 11 60,580

6,487 563,063 7,991 547,371

7,888 1,097,891 13,101 1,002,608

2019 12 31 2018 12 31

2,375 645 115 429 3,564 5,545
1,715) (385) 95 112 (1,893) (1,297)
8 112 21 141 409
(374) (211) @37 (722) (1,093)
294 260 111 425 1,090 3,564
181 181 1,801

294 260 111 244 909 1,673

2019 12 31
0.092

TDR

2018 0.341
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2019 12 31
969 969 969
969 969 969
425 425 425
425 425 425
1,440 (181) 1,259 3,259 4,699 (181) 4,518
1,440 (181) 1,259 4,653 6,093 (181) 5,912
2018 12 31
965 965 965
3,750 (1,688) 2,062 3,750 (1,688) 2,062
3,750 (1,688) 2,062 965 4,715 (1,688) 3,027
474 474 474
474 474 474
1,015 <) 978 3,852 4,867 <) 4,830
4,765 (1,725) 3,040 5,291 10,056 (1,725) 8,331
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
967 69 985 68
1,875 1,875
2,842 69 2,860 68
450 31 454 42
450 31 454 42
2
2
4,879 189 6,495 155
8,171 289 9,811 265
TOR
TDR
2019 12 31 12 90
2018
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
TOR
8 1,258 200 1,458
TDR
8 1,258 200 1,458
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
TDR
938 965
425 474
3,067 192 3,184 204
TDR 4,430 192 4,623 204
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accretable yield

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
4,531 (901) (661) 2,969 6,001 (1,239) (711) 4,051
45 28 (28) 45 25 42 42) 25
(1,577) 247 177 (1,153)  (1,495) 191 92 (1,212)
166 166 105 105

(495) 262 (233)
2,504 (198) (512) 1,794 4,531 (901) (661) 2,969

2014 11 HSBC

1671247
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31

105,780 145,205 250,985 72,619 166,126 238,745

37,101 32,712 69,813 89,998 48,613 138,611

127,509 127,509 10,982 10,982

607,292 32,556 639,848 593,688 19,018 612,706

59,055 18 59,073 53,346 18 53,364

153,322 153,322 176,942 176,942

14,622 14,622 15,538 15,538

917 917 795 795

1,105,598 210,491 1,316,089 1,013,908 233,775 1,247,683

(909) (909) (1,673) (1,673)

1,104,689 210,491 1,315,180 1,012,235 233,775 1,246,010

2019 12 31 2018 12 31

156,443 156,443 129,331 129,331

2,063 2,063

2,225 175,806 2,087 180,118 1,908 202,060 11,586 215,554

382,999 382,999 524,110 524,110

27,318 883,832 208,404 1,119,554 18,138 730,418 222,189 970,745

33,101 33,101 82,974 82,974

11,848 11,848 10,099 10,099

5,732 5,732 623 623

65,000 65,000

3,483 3,483 3,099 3,099

12,859 12,859 14,367 14,367

69,328 69,328 109,891 109,891

98,031 98,031 63,043 63,043

757,407 1,105,598 210,491 2,073,496 943,216 1,013,908 233,775 2,190,899

(909) (909) (1,673) (1,673)

757,407 1,104,689 210,491 2,072,587 943,216 1,012,235 233,775 2,189,226
2019 12 31 33.01 2018 21.32 S P A
2018 AA 2018 2019

12 31 0.00 2018 2.64
2019 12 31 2018 12 31

168/247
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3,449 3,449 3,053 3,053
46,295 (12,381) 33,914 44,746 (11,329) 33,417
3,979 (3.287) 692 3,914 (3.125) 789
44,533 (35,784) 8,749 42,123 (31,196) 10,927
98,256 (51,452) 46,804 93,836 (45,650) 48,186
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
1,057 1,396
244 360
4,798 4,960
6,099 6,716
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
551 551
551 551
20
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
16,517 (4,461) 12,056 16,517 (3,360) 13,157
2019 12 31 2018 2019 12 31
2018 5.4 5.0
2019 1.1 2018 1.0
2024 12 31 5.5

169/247



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
782,079 715,417
2,213,240 2,172,941
2,995,319 2,888,358
10
22,086 23,256
12 5,023 4,517
12 506 507
10 27,615 28,280
10
409,439 390,129
12 36,489 49,308
12 6,304 11,482
10 452,232 450,919
479,847 479,199
3,475,166 3,367,557
2019 12 31 0.2 2018 0.5
2019 12 31 0.25 2018 0.26
11
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
1,593 1,541
1,593 1,541
12

1707247
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
63,443 64,711
1,809 30,002
65,252 94,713
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
143,601 143,601 137,424 136,544 880
1,638 1,638 1,638 1,638
145,239 145,239 139,062 138,182 880
2019 12 31
89.7 2018 109.8 2019
12 31 2018
200
110 2019 12 31 143.4 2018
136.0

1717247
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2029

2019 12 31

934
77

1,011

2,346
907

2019 12 31

3,419

3,446

6.03
5.25

1721247
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2019 12 31
2020 1,048
2021 778
2022 566
2023 378
2024 242
2025 1,047
4,059
(613)
3,446

2018 12 31 1.347
14
2019 12 31 2018 12 31

38,653 35,968

16,684 17,982

55,337 53,950

1,109 585

56,446 54,535

2,79 2,540

15

1SDA

2019 2018
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2019 12 31

98 405,205 853 (701) 152

98 405,205 853 (701) 152

2018 12 31

1741247
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146 571,778 7,111 (6,907) 204
146 571,778 7,111 (6,907) 204
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
2019 12 31
853 853 853
(701) (701) (701)
152

1751247



EDINETOOOO

OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018 12 31
7,111 7,111 7,111
(6,907) (6,907) (6,907)
204
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
152 204
152 204
16
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
906,623 906.623 654,457 654,457
3,429 3,429 3,064 3,064
54,359 54,359
12,891 12,891 12,625 12,625
54,334 54,334
44,648 44,648 58,502 58,502
954,700 12,891 967,591 824,716 12,625 837,341
853 853 7,111 7,111
701 701 6,907 6,907

FFELP
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
12,625 12,625 12,493 12,493
266 266 132 132
12,891 12,891 12,625 12,625
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
12,891 12,625

1771247
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2018 12 31

757,407 757,407

924,423 943,634
1,104,689 1,106,674

2,995,319 2,995,319

918,337 918,337

24,878 24,878
19,211 817,565 804,939 (12,626)
1,985 1,012,235 1,012,206 (29)

2,888,358 2,888,358

479,847 480,148 (301) 479,199 479,453 (254)
17
2019 12 31
12

733 24 757
178 22 2 41 1,649 1,892
806 9 48 93 149 1,105
85 85
1,717 31 50 134 1,798 109 3,839
302 302
2,213 782 2,995
356 75 42 7 480
62 62
2,569 75 42 7 1,146 3,839

(852) (44) 8 127 1,798 (1,037)

(852) (896) (888) (761) 1,037

1781247
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2018 12 31
12

902 16 918

25 25

209 17 3 122 1,304 1,655

708 143 127 32 2 1,012
95 95

1,844 160 3 249 1,336 113 3,705
272 272

2,173 715 2,888

308 106 54 11 479
66 66

2,481 106 54 11 1,053 3,705

(637) 54 (51) 238 1,336 (940)

(637) (583) (634) (396) 940

18
CIMA
2011 CIMA 11
2019 12 31 21.12 2018
20.68

1797247
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
2,224 84,882
35,697 30,913
33,101
227 34
7,256 8,616
6,907 28,173
2,432 3,035
697 681
538 416
493
40
1,056 818
2,415 1,915
1,416 1,577
2019 12 31 0.734
2018 0.673
25
2.5 3.00 2029 15
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2019 12 31 152.9 2018 253.6
47.7 2019 12 31
47.4
20
2018 29
DBIT 100
GTS
DBIT
2018 29
,239
,202
15 ,958
788
,948
,260
551
0.788 1.515 0.727
2018 15
2018
21
2020 20
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheats
Ag ot 31 Dacember fin thousands of Unitad States dodars)

wie 2018
Asasls
Cash and demang doposits with bavks 133,73 155008
Cash eyibainn 623,614 TEL3N
Tots! cash dus from banks 757,407 o157
Shaor sarm investments . 2ETE
Dbt securites
Fovadabie for sale 867,501 BaT M1
_Heid o ety 524,423 BI75ES
Total investments In deid securities 1592014 1,554 508
Loass and pasticipasions recatvable, net ol afowance for credi losses 1,104 539 1.082.235
Fremises, equipement and compuler sofwars 4580 48,155
Intargibia aeets 12055 13,187
Actrued inderest 738 7,368
Goodaill L) 551
Assets held b gale . 7
Oty assas. _laT 25,453
Todal assels kR 705468
Liabiftles
Cusitamir desposits
Non-iniens baaring T TI5A45T
Intarest baaring 2,593,087 LE52 140
Tekil Guion dipasits JATE 66 3367 55T
Accnaed inlemsd 1626 e
e bt (AL 53543
Tiorald other kabibes. £1.783 65,571
Tatal abilies A5 3433128
Shareholdar's equity
Common share capital (51.00 par, sutherisad shares 18,450,000 (2015: §1.00 par, authorsed shaces 13,450 000} 15450 16,450
Petainad samings BT ABS 5,843
Acturried ofer & ncoms 515 {13.753)
Tedsl shareholder's sgulty ErRRE] T340
Tetal lizhilities and sharehalder's equity 3.835,074 375458
Shgreed on behalf of the Board by:

Wichasl A. MeWaii Erwin Dikwu
Managing Dlrector Chief Financial Oficer

Tha accompanying notes on pages § 1o X3 am ar integeal part of these consoidated fnantl! statesunis.
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Butterfield Bank {Cayman) Limited
Consolidated Statements of Operations
oy the yesr ended 31 December ('n thousands of Unled States dodiars)

201 2018
Hon-daterest incame
At manapemen: 3524 3475
Bariking bk ] WA
Fongign exchange revanug 2ETY 18630
Trss 5,347 5,008
Qithesr non-indesest income ] 120
Total non-interest income 51,851 47781
Iriterest Income
Intnrest and dess on laans 55448 54505
Investmanis 5 45837
_Deposts wih banks 11501 g
Tokad isvleresd income 122871 10731
Intaresl axpende
Dapans 3407 4,182
Total interest expense 407 4182
Hel intemst income before provision fos credil recoveries 114,564 103,208
Frowision dor cradit ecovenes 1593 1297
Het interest incomse afver provision for credit recoveries 1E457 14508
Hel realized gain on avalabls for sala vesimanis ! k0|
et emadsed (055) Gain On 5okt of premises, equipmen and comprast Sofeans [ti] 8
Mt reaksd pain o othar sl astats owned . 2
Tetsl othwer gains k] KT
Todsl net revenus 168,579 152,635
Horeinberest expense
Salaries and other employss banafis 0,87 25,055
Tachnokegy and comnunkcations 13732 13738
Propesty 4,300 5042
Professional and cutside serdces 414 4113
Hon-ncome s 2108 1850
Ameetgation of BiangEne assals 1409 104
Marketing LOTD wr
Ot gapansis 4623 4565
Tatal non-ntarest axpans 51,084 il
Heti 107 823 41,870
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the yearended 31 Dacamber (Tn thousands of Untled Sfates dollars)
Ling item in thve Cansalidated Staiemant of operations, if any, b} it
Comprehensive income
Had income 107823 38 ]
Accretion of nat unfealised gara o0 held T matnly rvesiments
Transhsmed from avalsbbe-iorsals megimens {5a8) k]
Hel uneaksed gasmsYlosess] ansing during tha period 25T [8.558)
Reciassifeaten of malksed gains 10 net income: Net reaksad igains) losses on avalable for sals imvesiments {37 (341
Total comprshansive inoams 18775 82,580

The accompanying nodes an pagas & fo 33 ane an integrad parl of thess conscboaled francil siatemants.
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholder's Equity

Fov the yaar ended 31 Decembar fin holsasds of Unded Slafes dollars)

019 pat]
Comman share cepital eoed and culstanding
Authorisad, sausd and fully paid (2015 85450000 shares: 2018: 15.250.000 shares) 16450 16,450
Ratzinad camings
Ealercs &1 beginning al year i Lok 231673
et incoma for yaar 1072 51,870
Cash dividands declaned and paid (100, 000) B0,000)
Balance af end of year 2TTARS H.E41
Azcumulaled ather comprehengive floss ) income
Balanca 8l begnning of year (1375 4.4
Held lo maturity investment adjestments
Arrviiaden of Aet A I el nooms [55) .
Het change in uramontised gaing on held to maturity investments [56] TE]
Avadlatsde for sale investment sdjustments
Groas wnnsatised gains (osses) 22,579 (8.5
Trangler of salied foains) t ned incoma [Tl (241}
Nelchange in unrealised and realised gains (osses) on avalable for sale ivestments Fraii [ER LT
Balance &t end of year 8,198 [13.753)
Tolsl shareholdar's equity WEA18 17340

The Bocompasying roles on pages 6 o 33 am an integral part of thisa consoidated francal sliienants,
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Butterfield Bank {Cayman) Limited
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

fror the year ended 31 Dacember fin Mousands of Unifed Stales dolacs)

2018 pupl]
Cash fiowes Bromn oparating sctiiive .
et wcoma 107,823 91570
Adjrstments o reconcila red incema to apiraling cash Bows
Depracation and armonisation 17374 17453
Praviion ot czadit moowares {1,893} {1.=n
Hel reaksed igains) lowses of pvalabis Iy 55k Pvistmenis: 15T} (341
Changes in opesaling assats and Rabiites:
Decreasa (incaase) in accred niansst recshabls 1 (524)
Dacroase (ncaease) in ofher mssis T.236 (11,580
Dacrpase iNomata) in pooues ineres) payabe (296} w7
ncrease in ofher Rabdites [3.484) 17,129
Cash provided by aperating acliites 125,702 113,520
Cash flows from Invesling activities
Mg i ifn shor tem imnasimenls 2HETE 24043
AddSons i pramises eguipmant and compuler softwans [4.320) 3113}
M (fnormass] decreass in loans and paricipetons reciivable [33,908) 147,785
Hald 1o matrity measinents: proceeds om matusties and pay downs ] G450
Heid ta matuity invastmants: purchasas (220,144 [357.675)
Avadanis for sale invesiments: procaods fom sakes 1.7 219332
Avaigts for sae vestvmnts pracesds from matusites and pay downs 143,841 141 A4
Avaiabia for sale investments: puchases (365,355 [132636)
Bl cash dishursad for business g : (5483
Cash [wsed) provided by investing actiities (2.5 (52.134)
Cash flows from financing activities
Nal nomaste [dacreada] in demand s B daposil Babdtias 107,810 15,047
Cash divicends pald {100,030 {E0.000)
Cagh peovided by (used) Eransing sctivities 7510 355,047
Net (decrease] increase in cash due from banks {150,930 80833
Cash due from banks at beginaing of year 918337 537.504
‘Cash due from banks sl end of year 75T AD7 918,337
Supplemental disclosure of cash Now information
Cash nieres! pad M3 325
Supplemental diselogun of non-cash items
Extnguishment of loan in exchange for avalabie lor s bvestmants M7

The accomaanying nobis on pages & 1 33 A an ntagral pan of ©ese consolldsted finanta siatamants,
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Butterfizld Bank {Cayman) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemants
For the year andad 31 Decamber (in lhousands of Unifed States dollars)

Nete 1: Nature of buginass

Butierfiedd Bank (Cayman) Limed {the “Bark’) is o ful sanics sommunily beek and & provicer of specisisad wealh mansgament serdces. Senices offored incude retsll, prvats 4
copoate hatking, beasory, assel managament and pertanal § insStuticnal tust senvces in e Cayman Isands.

The Bank was incorpocated on 22 Mowember 1357 under th laws of the Cayman slands and i a wholr-cwnnd subsidiary of The Bank of N.T, Butiefield & Son Limited [ButierelT’), &
corgany inconoeaied In Sarmuda. Busereid i 2 puticly tadaed comombion wih shans ted on e New York Stock Exchangs and tha Bemipda Stock Exchange. Tha Bubierteld
Group & faguiased by the Bermuda Mosetary Auhiodty [BVA), whie ihe Bask i epgulited by B Coysan Blands Menetary Autharty (TS ) Beth sagulakns opemis 0 aoconianca wits
Bage! prnciples

The Bank holds a category 'A' banidng Boence and 8 (rust oence under the Banks and Trust Companies Law of e Cayman islands, In sddtion, the Bank i Bosnoed under e
Securbes and mresimant Business Law
The Bank owna directy s indrectly he flowing sutsidaries:

Field Direcions {Cayrman) Lisited Field Sacrelaries [Cayman] Limaad Finid Nominaes (Cayman) Limied
Butterfisid Tnast{Cayman) Limited Butiarie’d Feduiary Services (Cayman] Limaed

The Bank =3 sTuchsed it oparalions in order that & will not ba deemsd 1o e engaged in tade of business wihin the U5 b purpeses of U5, federal fax e, o subiect i baxation in
ary jursSeion.

Wote Z: Significant Accounting Policies
8. Easis of Preseniation and Use of Estimates and Assumplions

The accoenting ed fnancil reportng polcies of the Bk and i subjidianes confonm 1o generally acoentad acoounting principles in T Unied States of Amarica ("GAAFT). The
peapamben of fnandial statentnt in ataoriincs with GAAD reguies mansienal 1 make eslimates and assovptons st sfect tha mpoted amounts of assets and Rabilies and
dickeune of contingent assats and Estiltes ot the das of the Fnancial sitemants and the repored amounts of revenues and axpenses. during the year. and achual reslts could difler
kam ihage aslmales,

Griteal acoounting estimades ans Sose thin nequine management 13 make subjectie of complex judgments about the efiect of maners that ane sherenty uncertain and may change i
subyegquent perods. Changes Tt may fe requred i the underying assumpbons o ealtimates i hese anaas could have 3 materal imoact on the futune Snancial cendition and resuls
ol apdeaiiong. Mandgemin belisvag that the mast criteal sscounting poficies vpon which tha Baslt's feancial conditicn and pardormance depands, and which invoves the mast complax
af SUjBCHae Gaciiong of sisesmanty, g0 33 Rlows

w Al for ol kosses
«  Fairwalue and impaimment of Snancial insnamens
o dmpaimes]al inlasgibie astaty
«  Share-based payments
b. Basis of Conscdidation

T Conetidated Fingrcial Stlement includy e agounts of She Bank and i magnly-owned subasdianas, and hose vanabis inmnes! entifies ('VIEST) where the Corpany s the
primary benaciary. The Bank has n interest ' any YiEa which are recunsd o be consclidated. Intercompany accounts and trardacions fave been elimnaled. The Back ooradlidales
subaidanes where i holda, deeclly of indrecty, mone tnan ST% of the wobing rghts orwhers i esescizes cordrol. Enties whers the Blask holds 207 & 50% of the voling fighls andder
has e abilly o exercse sgnécant infuence, ame accounled for under the equily method, and tha peo raia shane of thilr income (loda) i included in o nofatleng | inose.

. Fareign Comrengy Translation

Azsats and HabBties arsng from kewign cumency fransactons s tasslaied imo United Sles dotars ol the rates of exchange peevaling al fhe balanca sheel date whils sesocisted
rrvenues and expensss v ransiated to Uned Staies dolars at M rales of enchangt priveing Mroughoutl the yedr. The fesuling gans of koases are incuded in foregn aachangs
revinue in T Consofidaned Siatement of Operations,

d. Asgets Held ln Trust or Costody

Secunfies and propidies (ot T cash and deposis hid with e Bank] held in ust, cusiody, agency o fduciany capacity B cusiomens am oot included m The Comsclidaled
Banci Shisets bitausd e Bark i aat e Banafican of S2ee ssets.

¢. Cash Dus from Banks

Cash due fom banks inciuds cash on hard, cash Bems in e process of collection, amounis due Tom comaspondent barks and highly Squid invesiments thal ane readly convedble 1
ko arounts of cash and weich ara subject 30 an insigniicacs risk of changa in far value Such iniesirents ans thote weth o mataity of Bved moohs or lass o e dale of
Boqusition and Includa unresircied em deposits, carificaes of deposd, and tneasury bils

§. Shet Tern lnvestments

Short-term investments have maturbes of less Ban oo year from the date of acquisBon, &e oy subiact 39 8 insigniSan rak of change in fai value ang comprise tenm depesds,
carifcae of daposits and trsasury bils with & maturily greatir than Bies months e the deie of scquaiion. Treasoey bils are raporied a1 amortised cost
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Buttarfield Bank {Cayman) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued]
fin thousends of Unted Sfates dollars)

Mote 2: Significent Accounting Policies [continwed)
g. imvesiments
Irwastments in dabl sacurtes am classifiad as sraliable dor 3t (AFE) or haid o matsty (HTMTL

Inepsbents s classlied prirddly @3 AFS when uied 1 mankgs the Bak's sspiaunt % inleres! rale and Ruidity monmemants, b5 wel a3 b maka salege njerdanm inaslments.
AFS investments are carmed 31 fir value in B Consoloaled Balwnce Sheels with unrealised gais and sses reporied a5 net lncrease o decreass o Accumulsted Oiner
Comprehensie IncomadLess) (ACCT).

Investments dhat the Bank has the posiive intent and bty %o hoid 1o matetty are classibesd as HTM 2nd ame camied at amonised cost in the Consoldined Bafancd Shinds.
Unracogrised gaing and ksses on HTM securies ane deciestd in the nows bo T consoidaiad fraacial staemenss, The specific idecification method i used 10 deténming raalised’
ghing and logeas on AFS imgstimails, which ans included in nel meaBsad gains on BFS ifvesiveents in he Consalidatad Sletemnan] of Oparatons.

Inlenest inoome, induding ameoeisation of premiunss and discounts, on securibes for which cash Bows ans rof considened wdertain ane included in islerest incoma in P Contolidabed
Sintemants of Opamatdons. For saowrifes with uncerialn cash Fows, e vestments am accounied for under the cost necovery mesthod, whesety all prindips’ and coupon paymish
recieed ant appled as o redussion of the aonised cost and camying amount. Acgrual of lncomi & suspendid in respect of debt securites thal & in defaull, o from which i & endluy
that futume inneees? paymants wil be seceived as schaduled.

Recognitian of other-than-temponry impairments

For dabl seeunties, managemen oosders & decling in i vales o be ofer-than-lenporary whon il doss ol expeel I resover (he entite amivtised oost basis of the sacurity.
Impestments in debl securites in unrealised loas poafions are aralysad a5 pad of management’s ongoing Bssessment of offer-than-tlemporry impaiment [FOTTIL Whan managsment
intands i sell such socurlies or 8 5 moe Exely han not that the Bank wdl be required 1o 558 the secutios before recavezing the amortsed cosl i mongnaes an impanmant loss aqual
I tha full cillarance batwsen he amorised cost bash and the ler vake of thosa securiies. Whaen managerment does ol intend bo 520 o & I5 miom Toply than not that the Bank will hold
such securiies unil recovering S amodised cost, management datemings whather any credil losses mis! i idenldy any OTTI, Under cectain dincums tanoess, managament will pedom
& qualiatvs deférmination and considers a varkaty of lactons, inchuding the langth of binwe and xdent ¥o which the b valat has bien S8 than cost advésse Gondiions spacifically
refatad to the industry; geographic ama or Snancial cond Non of th e o underying coliateral of 8 Security; paymén stnacune of the securly: changes ko the: raling of e seourly by
3 ratng agenty; B velatily of fe b vales changes: and changes in teir valus of e Sacurty aher the balince shest cat. ALETOSWEl, PANagamEn esimass cazh fows ower e
mmr;-hunfuumwmhmmmmthmmmummwmmdwmnammmm
and HTM imvegimants s maognsed in nel income. For AFS ienesimenis, the decrazss in [ay valua relafing io factors othar tan credd losses afe recognisesd in ADCL Cash fiow
ealiralas Laoe indo account expectations of nelsvant market and economic date a3 of B end of S repoding period, Including, for examygie, undarlying loan-level data, and stnciurl
fealures of secorisalon, such as suborcnalon, extsas apread, ower collaerafsation or other fwms of credil enhancement The degres of judgmen! involved i detenmining the
recowermbie vaks of an invesiment securlly ks dapendent upon the avaliability of chaervabla marked prices or cbservabla market paramedes. When atoenable markel prices end
parametars do nof enist judgment is nacassary Jo estmala recovirabls vale which ghves fse o addad unceriainty in the assessmant Th aisessment tkns nio consdpafion faclars
such as MnmmhMMMMwmwmmwMHmmwm

Managemants fair valsatons may incude inputs and essumptions had se less obsenvable o requies greater esfmation, erety resuiting in values which may be greater or lowar than
e aciual vales gl which he bwestments may be ullmalely sold of fhe ulimate cash fows Tl may be moovened. if the aspemptions on which managenen] based itz [ak valvations
changa, [he Bark may expererca additonal OTT] or readised lossas or gains, and the period-io-paricd changes in valuae could vary signficaily.

h. Loand

Loans aa neporiad al the: prindipal amount oulstanding, ned of alowancs o Cradit Kases, unsamipd income and nel defmed loan fets. Inferes] InCome & moogRised owe e lem of
e ko uging th lfeches inlenesl anethod, oF on & Bt Sogeminnatng & kvl e of retum cver the b of he ke, sxtepd bt loans clesaiiod 25 non-accnaal. Pepsymant pensities,
¥ applicable under e berems of the specifie kol agreament, afe recogised alss upon recepl of payment.

Acquinad laans

Renuired loans are recarded a1 lai vake 2t he dabs of acquisition. Mo Slowance for credi losses B recorded on the scquisition date as the lar vaiue of the acquired assets mooponzies.
assumplions regaming cred® risk. Acquirad knana with evidence of cradit qualty deleriomtion for which i s probalis that the Bank will nof recehee all confraciually eguinid payments
recehable s sccoumed for &5 purchasad credt-impained loans. Gerevaly, acquined loars Lhal mesd the Bani's dalfiniion for non-accnml stalus ane considensd o be crdil-<rgained.

Thex ewcess of e cash fows spacied o be colacied on puncused cedtimpared loams, measwred a5 of e acquisSon daie, over he esimated ter vales o relared 1083 he
accreiabls yeld and [s moognised m st inoome gver T emaining e of the kean using an effective yied mathodotogy, The differents Baween coniradiualy required payraents &5
of tha poquisiticn clate and e cish fowes papecied 1 be collached i rferd 1 28 (he non-socmuable @ferancs which B inciuded as & raduction of the camying amaunt of T purthased
it pained Odtg.

Tha Bank evalusies 3l sach balanca shest dale tha eatirated cash Bows and comesponding camylng vake of purchesed coedi-impaired kzans in the same mareer a5 Tor the
raaguremen! of ivpained lases, B3 s desenbes beiow. The Bank evaluales at each balance sheel date whethes the camying walm of is purchased credil-impaied loans has deczaated
and if a3, recognisas s allowance for cedi lszes In i Corsolidaled Statemants of Coeratfions. For any iIncreases in cash fows axpecied io be colecied, the Back adus's any prcr
recondad sliowance for puechased credit-mpaked loans finst, and Then the amount of accretable yield recognised on a prospecties: Dasis over the purchased cradit-impained kan's
remaning lla.

Pumchased credil-impaleed loans ara nol considanad non-pardiorming and continug i have an actretabio yiald 33 long 5 e iF & reatonabed eoactabon abotl the Bmesg s amount of
cash fows expaced i be collacied.
Pautcipated or Assigned Loana

Thit Bank may @t 48 Webd lender on e keang rom lme lo Sme and may, Fof seslegic of commercial reastns, asagn portoes of such icans to ether market paticpants. Soch
askigrendnts an withoul fighl of recowsa 1o the Banl a5 lead lender and participans/msiness accepd all figks and oblgations of the ulimate berower associted with thes proporional
pamcipation and assgnmen in such ans The Bank reconds ha unassigned portien of the princins cutstanding im such knans on e halance shaat and reconds only its proporionsl
sk o infereal income on Bhe orassgned podkon of B oan i he corsobdaled statement o cpemtions.
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(i heursangs of Unitpd Stalas dodarg)

Mote 2: Significant Accounting Policies [continued)
b Loans feontinued)
Impained lans

A by s congidaned 1o be impined when, bised o cumesd information and events, the Bank deterrnes: £ & will not be: able b oolisc: all amournts due acooedng fo e ke contrect,
Induding scheduled inlerest payments. Impainnd 0 inckide 80 non-accauing loans and all ians modiied in & moubied debt restntadng {TORT) even if il colactabiiy i sxpacied
folpwing the resinuciising.

When a lan s identiSed as impained, the inpalmant is moasunsd based on the presenl vaiue of expecied iuture cash Rows, discousied af e loan's etisctig inecest rate. ool when
tha solee (remaining) source of nepaymant Br the loan & (e oparation or kayuidason of thi: cotateral in thise cases the current S value of the ooiisfersl ess Saling oosts i Loed
aatead of discounted cash fows.

If thi Bank datarmines hat the apesied realsabia vaue of the impaied lose 8 lss than the moomiad investmant i the loan {nol of previous chame-offs, defamed tan faos or costs
and unametised premium o discount). Imgaiment i recognised thmugh an alowangs estmale, W e Bank dalermines that par of tha aSowancs B uncolecibie B amour 5
dhpged ot

Men-accrual
Comirarcil, Commarcial raal estale and Congumer inans {rockoing cradid card consumer 0ans) ace paced o Rom00ns $ians mmedisiy If

& mibe opinion of management, ful payreent of principsl of inkieest i in oo o
+  prncipal or imecest s 5 days past due

Reskiantsl morgjages ans placed on non-aeonal sk imenedstely I

= e opnion of management, full payment of principal or infesest [ in doubt; or
+ when princial o miorest is 50 dans past due. uniess tha foan s wel secumd and any ongoing coliection efians am rersonably expected B result in rpayment of all
ameunts due Lrder e ooeirschusl lens of tha loan,

Inbanes| income on non-accrusl inars & recognesad ony 1o tha exanl £ is received n cash. Cash recabed on non-soonusi inans whane thene & no doublt regarding Rl repayment {na
imgarmaent recognised in the orm of & specife aSowsnon) is first applied s repayment of the: past dut principal amcunt of Th: loan and secondly 1o pasl dut inferes! and lees

Where thene is doubt reganing the ulimate full repayment of the non-accrual loan impaiement recogisan in tha fom of B specific afowance), 2l cash received & appéed fo meduce the
principal amount of the kean. inerest incoms on these keans b recognised only after tha entie ba'ance recesvalia & recoversd and nieres! is actally moshved.

Loans s refumed b acsrual Rl whist

. oo of thie principal or ccnusd niees s past dus haih cansn excepbons) and the Bask expecis repeyment of the remaining conractual ohiigaton, o
" whin P ioan bacomes wall secumd and in he process of collection,

LLoans Modified in a Troubled Debd Restruclising ("TDR")

A modfication of @ kean constiuies 2 TOR when a bomower i expariencing francial difficuly and the modicalion congiiules 2 conoession fnom ongina®y agresd heres, If a

s consicered a TOR, the Bank is required o maks caram devcosunes i e noles of the: Consalidaied Financial Stilements and indivdally evafuale the restruciured lomn
¢ imparmient. Thie Bank empinys varous types of conctssions whan madfying 4 kean thal  woult nod oferwise consider which may nchufe priingion of repdyment pavings, inlamst
e ediucions. principal o intbres lompheness, forbaranoe, and olher acions infended to minimise eondrmic iogs and ko avoid Boestisune or mpaisesion of olaeeal

Commercial and industrial koans modiied in a TOR ofien irvolve tempomy inbanest-only payments, term asfensions, and convering ravohing credit fines 1 temm leans, Addional
collabersd, 3 co-bomower, o a quaranie: i oflan requesiad.

Commercal mongage and consTucton bans modlied in & TOR often involve exending the mafurly dala at an inlerest raie iower than the cument markst mie for new debl wih simsar
ek, of sulstituing or Bcdng 3 new DOMIWEN of Juaranio.

Resshantial movigege modiScations: ganerally Mol 8 shodoeem fdegrence period afler which the rissed payments aie added I the end of he ioan lim, Tetely exending the
mistutity ditie, |efisil contnus b Bacnue of e Mixled pymants and a8 & rsull B elfaches vkl on the Mofgege remaind wiehangad At fe lbearancs perod il Mok an
insigeilicant paymend delay ey typicaly do not meat the teporing crilesa for a TOR.

Whist a loan undemgoes a TOR th delenmiation of I i0an's Socrial wemus nonsciual stus foliowng the modifcation depands on several koo AS with the risk rting pocess, he
ocral states decasion far suth 8 ian B b Sepanie i SREEncT poons Trom the an's TOR analysis and determingtion. Managi=ment considens i REwing in delermining e acoral
stahus of nestrochaed inans:

e loan wis appropraledy @ accrual slabus peine I this restucinng, the bomower has demonstraled pedmancs under the pedvious lems, and tha Bank's ciadi
evalation shows e bomower's clpacly © conlivue to pedonn under the resinactured terma (boln princips’ and indeses! paymants), il & Fesly %ol the Bpproprisis
eonckision @ for the ban 19 remain on accrual af Sa bme of the restuctoring. Thin avaluation mus! inchide cora'demtion ol the bormwer's siustsined historcal repiymint
parformance ko a rersonable pariad pricr i Te date on which the ioan was restrechered. A susisined percd of rapayment performance ganarally would be B minkmum of shy
months and ik irobe payments of cash or cash eguivaients; o

= e dodn was on nonacorual sialus bators the restruchueng, but e bank's credt evekagon shows the bomowar's capacily o mast the restciured temrs. the ban woud
liely ramain as non-acorusl untl the boroaer has demonsialed a reasanabie panod of sustasned mpaymant parkemance. A5 noled above, hs parod ganerally would be
% least 3 months Tty peowiding seasonable assurance as ko e ulmate colection of principal and inlerest in RA under the modified leems). Sustaingd peclomance
Eeeloe the resiruciuing may ba taken inlo acoomt

Losney thaat b Bsder i in @ TOR are msiored o accrusl 3tatus oy when Evenast and pncipal payesents ame beoughl coman for 8 continuous pancd of sic months under the
madified Bima . Howevae, parfomance paod o e modibeaton, of signifzant events thal concade wih the modfication, am irchaded in assesting whather 1ha bormwar <an meal the
new tarma and may resull in the loan being retumed 1o scorual stahus 2% e tme of inan modifcatson or fler & shorter pericemance period. If fha bomowe's ablity 1o meet the revisad
payment schedua & uncertaan, the an remains on ron-accrual siahs.
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Butterfiald Bank {Cayman) Limited
Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements (confinued)
{in ihousands of Unifed States doliars)

Note 2; Significant Accounting Pelicies {continuad)
k. Loans joontinued)

# lpan that s modifed o 2 TOR prior b becoming impaiead will be left o accruad status if full colaciabilly in accondance with The reatructured ferms i dxpechid, The Bank works with
s custores in fese diffeul economic tmes and may enler inioa TOR lorfoans B ane in defaudl or al risk of defaultng, éen if thi ioan i nol mpaied.

A o Wt ag previcuty boen mosBied it a TOR amd i subiaquanty rel=anced unter oment vnderwTiing standands =1 @ mavis! rais with 1o congassion any lenrs & accourbed for s
@ e bzan &0 i i longer recocted as & TOR.

Definquancies

The entee balance of an account is contrachaally delinguent T the minimum payment of princigsd oc mieresl is nod meceivid by the specified due dade. Delinquency i mponied on lbani
it are 30 days or moda pas due.

Chargs dts

Th Bk recogniies change o wha § debarmines f Gans Bné LrooSositie and T3 ganerlly 6iu whet 3 COM Merially eascnalie masng of meimarng 108 loai balemcs htvs
o exhinud

‘Commercial and Consumer loans ane atker fully or partally chargad off down o the far value of collaienl seouing the loans when:

«  management judges tha kean o be uncoliecibie:

w pepayTec B epechid i be peatracted bepond reasonatia me Fames;

« e assat has been classSed as 2 loss by edfier the Bank's intemal loan findfe prooest of il pamy Sppdiens, o
W cugiomern has flad bankupty and the lags becotes evidant owing 128 lack of assas o cash flow.

The eutstanding balance of Commencial and Consumer sial estae secursd loans and residental mongages that ane in exoess of the estimated progerty value, kss cost bo sol, &5
chamged off once Bang s reasonatie assuande thal soch ridiess cubiandng balsnce & nol recoverable.

Cradil cand coneumar boars. (hal ave contraciualy 180 days past dud and ofer consumen kans wib an ouistanding balance under $100.000 that av sontragtusly 160 eays past due are
chamed-ofi

I Alowanca fa: Cradd Lostes

Th Bank maitans a0 alowance ke oud Inesas, which in Fanagemenls 6pron i Soatuats o atasib ol eatmaled credil naled kases in s lending and off-batance sheet coedit
melaled srrangaments at thi Batance shest date. The alwance for cradi losses consists of specic aliowances and a genarad afiowance as foliows:

Spacific Allowances

Specifc afiveances are delsmived on an exposure by exposure basks and mefled! the assocaind eslivased orodit loss. The speclic aliowancs lor oned? ks i compuiad &3 he
diflerenca batween The recorted veatment in the kan and B presenl value of expecied fohae Gash fows bom P loan, The efeclive rbe of rghum o B loan & wed lor discouniing
the cash fows. However, when freciosum of 2 colatorl-dependent koan i probabte, the Bank medsure impaiment hased on the fir wiive of the collstral. The Bank pomiders
estrated costs 10 50, on & dscounted bash, = 5 madsurement of imparmant § hose coat ane expiand 15 iduss B cah Ao dealatils 00 Tepay oF oewisa satsly the loan.
the measunement of an impaised loan i ess than the recorded nvestment in te lan, then Bie Bank recognisss impainment by oreatng an alowance Wil @ CoMesponcng chame
prowision for crodit loases

General Allovance

The sowaace ke et pases afibuted i B recvninny) poitiols 5 esiablshed through vanous analysas Bt essimate the inoured loss al the balance sheit dale inhemnt in the
ending & oftbalance shesl credd relaied amangaments porfiolios. Thasa analyses consigor risfoncal dofaul rales, Geographi, ndumiy and ofher envimerwntl fctys.
Manaqermant may alio cossier evemll portlofo indicatons incheding trends in niemally risk mled exposunes. cash-bass loans, Riginchl and foreciibed wiite-olls, and 4 revin of
invdustry, geographas and portfols conceniraions, inchiding cument dewelopments within hote segments. In addition, Maragerment Gnsiders fhe cument business sirategy and credi
jprocass, inchiding Bmit sefing and complianca, cradil apcrovals, 100 undenwiting Crieria and loan warkgut procadunes,

Bach povtiohn of smalbar balaree, homogenaous loans, imchaing corsumar nstalment. mvolving crecit, and meos! cther consumar loans, & collecivily swksated ko imparent. The
alcwants fof cradil logses atirbutad B fese ang i establismed via 2 process that estmales T peobabl losees inhemnt and Incunad in the portfolo, based wpon varnious iraivies
Managemsnd considers owerall portinko indcalors inchading histonical credit losses; dalinquent [dafined as kodng thal acd mang than 30 ding pas! duel, non-pldoming, and cassified
laavs; frends in wolumes and tems of oans; an evaluation of oversd credit gualily; thi credit process, inchading lending poficies and prodeduned; and edononic, geographicsl, product,
and athar emircnmeantal lackes

| Business Combinations, Goodwill and Intengable Assets

AF business combinations ans accounied e using ihe acousition methed, IenBiabie inlangble a5ae% (mosty cusome ralatonshios) a6 fecognsed separisly om goodwdl snd &
inkinty vaied o foir value using dsoounted cash faw calculyfens and ether resognisad veluation iechniques. Goodwil represents B auness of e 13 valoe of ha considerabon paxd
for e acquisifion of a busingss over e Rair value ol e med aaseds acquired,

Goodwil ks lessad annusly S mpalment 81 S reporting unll level, or masg fraquently i edinks o crumstances Faicite thiss miry ba mpaitnest If e cafyrg amaunl of & fEporng
i, inciuting e alocalsd goodwdl, asceods B3 I valus, goodwl Impaimmiant & melsunid &5 e et of the chifving amount of th reporting unirs aliocatad goodwill over e
impliad fair vaue of the gootwdl. Cther aoquied inlangibie assats with fnite Bres ard aroiioed o9 & stamhiing bass over their easmated el ives, nol exzeadng 15 years,
baargitia assels” eatimated fes 2w m-naluiied ancually and =0 mpamoent 241 i8 carrieg oul ¥ cedain indhcators of impainman exsl

k. Pramided. Equipmest snd Cosputar Saftwans

Land o ciriad o cosd. Duldings, equipfbnd and SOempubsr SoMwars, inthdy leasehald imgeovernants, are camad al cost lass acoumaiated decveciation. The Bank gonarty computes
disgriciation uging the staighl-ng miSod over the esiinaled useful Be of an aeset, which s 50 yesrs for bullfings, and 3 b 10 years for other equipmant For lsasefold Improvements
hit Bank uses e alraghilne mathod over T lessar ol the remairng lamm of the leased [aciity or the estmaled economi: Se of the impovement. The Bark captalses certain oxls

reured during i developmen phise, s3sociaed wel the aoguasiten of dewelopment of intemal wse sofware. Ones e soliware o ready by B5 nlendied use. hese Costs ane
amoised on 8 svakghtdne basa over the sofwany's sapacked useful Bla, which i beween § and 10 years.
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Butterfiald Bank (Cayman} Limited
Motes to the Congolidated Financial Statements (continued)
i thocizands of Lindled States dolfars)

Mote 2: Significant Accounting Palicies (continued)
k. Premises, Equipment and Campuber Sofware {continwad)

I reviews the recoverabiity of the camying ameunt of premises, equipman and competer softwane when indicators of Impalmend exist and an IfEment Cisgs i reoosded
when the Samyng A o the reviewed pese! i desmed nok recoversbba by Tues expected cash Rows ko be darives fam e use 2nd dspostion of Be assel If here b5 3 dsposiion
ut of premrises, equipment 248 compully Softwany, § gan i recorded I B diference of the proceeds on dspailon B m exess of e assels camying value. Cthemise, a lss is
recorded, INthen B & atandonment oulof premzses, squipment and coonputer saftwame, B full caimying value of the 25581 5 secajrisad 24 2 kosa,

I Leasesd

111 he homal coursa of apseston, Bie Bank emas inlo lasiy agreemants eithar 35 P lesson or the lessee. S2arbog on 1 Jaouary 2000 (Te adoption dale of Ba new lease aoouring
guidance Apcounting Suandands Update ('ASU} 201602 Leases {Topls BA2]L $w Bank rcngnised (prospectieely, with mo adisbnest fo prior parods) ighl-ol-use assats and ke
liabiities for operating leases and for firance %ases. Leass Rabities ane rsasured a0 the present walus of fune leasa payments. including temm renewals that ane masonably ceten o
oone, decounted using the Bank's incramental bommwing infenest rad. Right-cluse 0336t 37 measured a3 T camying amount of 2 related lease Babates adjusied &, prepaic o
aocrusd leass payments, unamorissd loss inoasfve received, unamantiaad iitisl diect eosls and any impainrent of he right-cluse asset

O 1 Janisly 3110 e Bank alecisd ®e practoal mopsdant (1) not ko reassess whather any gapered o etng conlrecks 20a of conlan leases: (2) nof %0 massoss the lexe
clemsifiration dor any exgired or existing leases and (3] not b reassass indial divect coais for #ny endsting leases.

The Bark ko theched far pracical enpadient not is separsi lease components brom ron-ease components for ol classes of undedying Bsset,

The Bark also glectad the practicalexpediant not o recogniss & fght-oluse sasat and 8 lease kabity for leases with a tom at inseption of 12 months o legs, including remewal options
el ane raasonably Cavtan W ba exercised (refemed 00 a3 “short i leases”),

. Daidvafies

A8 arhantivees ks mecognizsed on the Censaldaed Balance Shosta at their fair va'us. On the asie il e Sank anters int o decativ contract 2 designates b cecvalva B3 8 hedge
ol e Bair vl &l & ecogniaed Besal of labiy (3 fer veiue hadgals a hedga of B feacasied Sansachon of B vanabilly of cash fiows: that are i be recesved or paid in connection wity
B recogrised assed o Rubilty (2 cash flow hedgel: or a0 Instrumend at is held bor Frading o non-hidg g purpeses (B Batng o pon-hadging inarument).

Al instnamonts uHised a5 4 bedging imskeument in a fair valee hedge or cash flow hedge muest have one or mom underdying nolional amoutt, fo of a mnimal nat inbal ivesivent and a
prowigion for net seftianenl in the contrct B mast the dafiniion of 8 dervative slument.

Tre changes In tha fair vatua for 2 dervabve Sol i designaled and Guaivbes A2 4 L value hedge, siong wit changes in e fair vakae of the hedged assel o kabSly thal a7 alliteeadie
tix the hedged sk, ane recomed in cuiment vear samisgs, The changes in B b vaiue of  derhathe that & designaled and quaifies s 3 cash fiow hedge, 1o T exient B e haoge
ks efiectve, are ecorded in olhor compishensive inpame [POCT and the nefiecive portion s recomiod i currant yoar eamings, Thal 5. reffectvensss om & derhvative That
overcomgansmes Sr changts in e hedged eash fiows 8 reconded in eamings. Howsver, the inefectiveness from a dervalivg sl Lider comipiaaales B rod racodad in eamings. Tha
changts In e [air value of 3 derwvatve thal is designased and quatfes as a loreign cumency bedge o moorded in eiier curven! year eamirga or 021, depanding an whehar e
hegging nelalionahip safstes the omera lor a fair val o cash ow hecgs, Changes in the S vilue of deivatd rading and nos-hadgng instnaments ane reporied i Gorrent year
B,

The Sank fomrolly gocumesss 3 raiatonshias betesan hedging instuments and hedged iems, a5 well &3 35 risk managemen] coEcive and statsdy for undartaiing wanous hedge
angachions, THiS process includes Bnking all desvabves that 2e designalod o5 fak value, cish fiow, o Kobgn curensy hidies b dpeche assals and labdites on T consnldated
afange sheats or S pecc fim commimants cr farecastad Tansactions. The Bank alsa formady assesses wheses the derivatves 1l ae used in hedging iransactions: have bedn highly
ebeciive in otisetling changes i he (a2 vakee or cash fows of hedged ko and whether those darvatnes may be axpected 1 remain haghty afisctive in fiture pedods, For (hose hedge:
relatonships nal are terminated, hege cesignations that are elecled 1o be remowed, fvecasted ansactions that ass no nger expecisd 1 ocour, o the hedge relationship ceses 1
bba highty effecive, e hedge accooning Faabment desorbad i B parkpiaals vl i ha longer appkad and the enduser dervative is lemmicated o Fansfemed %0 e rading
designation. For fair valua hedges. any changes k the samrying vakas of the edgsd iee prior ko the disoontnuance remain as part of the basis of the assel or Fabiity. Whan a cash fow
hedga s decortinged, e nat dervatv Gain (kes) rmaing i ACC] uiass 1S probabia that (e forecasted transacton will nod coour in the originaly speciied lime parod.

n. Colatenal

The: Bark pledgas assets a5 colaten! a3 requived far vanous ransachons invoving ceposit products and darativg Bnancal instruments. Assets hat have been pedged a5 colaten,
inchudrig Ficee that can b soid of repladgad by T seownd pary, continue ko be rpared on the Basi's comalifated balants shisets undar Ihe same Bna £ems &s non-piodged asses
of the sam fype.

o, Employes Fulu Benafis

Tha Bark mainlais & nsteed cefined contibution plan for miwtanfally all emplevess. The Bank and particialing enployess provide an annuad contrbulion bated on aach
paticipaing empioyes's pensonable eavings, Amaunts paid e apiosad in e penod and ang inshded in Salaries and othar emgioyed benefits in e Consalidated Stamsments of
Operatons.

p. Share-Based Comgansalma

Butterlel angages in aquity satbed shan-based pay=ent bansactons in respect of services received bom eh:ok evpioyees. The G value of U S5viods recaived is measuned by
rafaremca (o the fair valua oF (i shames of shive aptions grantad on fe date of e grand. The oost of the ampioyie Siraoes nssshved o nspech o e shares of shars options grasied s
afiocated b tha Bank by Butiefeld aod recogeized in Salades andd olher smployse beredls in e Consolidated Slalemunls of Obiptons tvie e shonar of ha vesting or senvica
paried,

q. Rewenus Recognition
Tng and corpirate senices fees inciuds faes for private and instiulional tngt, Execolorships, Sorporme Bvd Meneded bank actounts. Assel managament fees nchude feos R

invesimant managemanl, imestTent advice and bickerage sancoes. Fass ame mecognised 29 iyl cver 1 parid of e relatonsnip o whan Te Back has renderad all senices 1
e eliants a0 is entited fo coliact e fee from the chent, 35 long a3 thers &0 Ao OREHGEES aictialed wilh tha fea.

1
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Butterfield Bank {Cayman) Limited
Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements [continued)
{i thousands of United States dolers)

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies {continued)
0. Riwenies Récognition {cantinued)

Baniieg sanvicas faes primarily incloda fees for latiers of cradil and oher financlal guizaniess, compirsaling balantes, overdrall acitien and oifer financial senices-relaied producss
a5 weil as credit cand fees. Laniers. of credit and other Enancial guaraniess fees are recognised as revenue oves the peried in which e re‘aled guaranize b oubsianding. Credit caed fees
2rm cormprised of meschant dacout, b fees and membeship fees, ool of inerchlege and rewdeds costs. Credil cavd does ang recgnised i the pariod in which tha sanice b
prrviced. AT ofer fied ok Fecognised a8 revenut in i Den0d i wiikch he Senica i peovided.

Firsign axchanga revenus inciudes fees aamed on cerendy scchanga fansachions which am ricognised whin Such innsscliong ootur, &8 well &3 Jaing 30 05384 recajrsed when
transtating fnancial instrumants held or due In cumencies ather fhan tha local funcional auarendy 8l thi mlis of exchangs prewniling &1 the balsnce shee! dale.

Loan rlarest intome nchuades e sxomsaton of non-redadable ioan srgnation and commitment fees, Thase lees am moogrised as an adjsiment of yield dver Te B of B rehind
lean. Thase kan crhgnation and sommément fees ana offsed by their related direct cost and only the pet amounts ane dafemed and omorised o intens! income.

Interest income, including amontisabion of premioms and dissounts. on debl secunties. dor which cash flows are mot considered uncariain ane Incheded in intarest incoma in the
Conscdated Stabsmants of Operations. Loans placed on non-accnusl s3as A accounied ko under tha cos! recovery method, whangy all prncipal and infeses? panmints moinsd ank
appled s 3 reduction of e amodBed o8l &nd carying amounl.

1. FairValues

Fair yakus i delimen a8 S sxchangs prics that woeid ba recenad for an assed or pald 10 transher a iablity [an ax prios] in B principal or mest advantagenus marke: or thé assat or
kabdity in 37 onderly ¥ansaction batwaen market parfcipants on e measurnint date. Thi Bank delermings T beir values of assels and Labifos bassd on the lair vake hierarchy
which requies an enity o maximise the uss of chearvabla inputs and minkmisa the e of uncissanvabie inputs whin measuring T vaius, The relevand azcouning standarnd decerbes
three lrve's ol inputs that may be wsed 1o messune fair videe Investments classfied as adng and gvadabie for sale. and desvatve assals and Ratelties are recognisad in e
Consoidated Balance Shaok at fair value

Lawed 1, 2 and 3 waluatian inputs
Managamen cixtsifies Bems Bk are reoghsed o 57 valug &N 2 resurting bass based 00 B level of npuls used in their respectiee fairvalus Seamninlion 25 JesorDed below.
Fair wakus inputs a0e considared Live! § when based o eradiusied quatsd prces in sctve markes for idenical assels.

Fair value inpots v congitanad Leved X wihan basod ingiuts nthar than quobed pricas fial am obsevable lor tha asset or Exbilty either dinsctly o indinectly, neluding inputs in rariels
i are nod conaldered to bo acve.

e bom biukers.

The Seltowing methods and aasempbons win used in S Selsmmanaion of B ar vale of nancial mstnarents:
Cash and cash equlvalents
The caerying amount of cash and dapasss with banka, being shor b in nate, is deamed t aquale 1o T fir value,

Cash gouivalents nclude unreshicied teem depots, certlicalis of deposils and eaaury bils with 8 maluily of lesa The threa months from the date of scquisiion and the camying i
ol ot i considensd 1o aporocimaie bair value beeauss they S shid-erm in nature, bear imerest rates that spproeimase market rates. and genarally hive negligibhe credl g,

Shot term Investmants

Shoelbaen Ewistments somisa reatncisd tem and damand deposls and unsesiricled term deposits and traasury bils with less than one vear Bul grases than thies moaths masedy
freny e e of acoquisiion. The camying valse at cost i conaidered fo approximats Sir vakus because they ane shorklerm in niduwe, biar inhenest rates thal Appronmats madel rales,
and genarally haee negigible credil sl

Invesiments

The Tair valets for AFS ivestmants 24 generaly soucoed o M paries. The fair valus of fed incame Secuntes 3 based upon quoted markal values whesa avadstin, ‘salaiad
bid" prices prowided by thind pasty pricing services {"prcing Sendoes”) whede quotd marke! values am nol valable. of by refesente 1 broker of undemwmiar bid indicatcns wherd priong
senaces do nol piovide coverage R & pleltular Secunty, Ta the extent the Bank bebeves oament imding conditions mpresent datresssd tnrsacions, he Bark may elect b utlise
inemaly generabed modals. The prcing serices hpicaly wse masked approaches for valations usiyg primarily Lavel 2 inputs (in tha vast majorty of valuaions), o some form of
casoumied cash fow analyss, Pricing sernices indicals tnet they will enly produce an estmate of Tair vaiue il there s objectvely verBable ndormation avalable ko produce @ valuation.
Staniand inpuls o fhe vakiationg piowided by e prcing serices keied in approoivate onder of priodty for use when avalable inchude: repoded rades. benchmark yislds, beohun'deale
UM, ASUar spEas, het-akied markels, benchad seoribes, bids, offers, and reference data. Tha pricing senvicss may pricfiss inpuls clarantly on any gaen day ke ey Saculity,
Bnd nol all mguts fisted are avalabds foe use i e evaluation procass on any given day for each seosty evaluation. Howses, tha pcing Senvicss aiso monitor marked indicalees and
Induslry and economic events. Whan Sese inpuls aie nos avallable, thay ienify “ouckets” of simiar securises (alocaled by smel dlass bpes, seclons, sub-seciors, contracial cash
fowsletrucias, and credil mting chamacieristics) and apply some form of madb or offer modelied pricing 1o delerming B approprale Securly valug which represants their best essmae
&5 0 what & Buyer in the markelptace would pay for a Mhlwrllt!hmmmmhmmmutmmh mmhitw-d
fwastments where the pricing sanvioes are able 1 oblain suffickent marke? comoberating inforradion i aliw them o peodoce 8 valuabon 21 a repariing dae. In adciion, in the maloely of
cases, although B value may be cblained from 3 parodar picing senice for a security of class of sinllar securlies, These values e comobonted againet values provided by cihar
pricing seevices. 'Whils tha Bank receives values for th: ensiority of T imestmen) securiies 1 olds from pricing senices, L is ultimalely managaments responsibity 1 cstanming
whathir e valus receid and recondid i the fnsacal statements ane repeesaniabve of Bpaoprale (ai vais measwemants.

Brokedealer guotations 3% wed 1o valie feed maturites whess prices ane univalabie dom pricing senices dus i (aciors Soecie i the sacunly such B3 imisad bquidty, leck of
cumerd ianzacicns, o rades ondy [aking place In privately negofialed iransaciions. Thse ane considered Level 3 valustons, a3 sgnilicant inguds uilisad by bookers may be difloud in
omooceale with chservable markel dat, or suffcent inSormation mganding th specic inputs uileed by the beoker wis nol Svaitable 10 3upport a Leval 2 classficalion.

For disciosure purposes, investments neld i matarly are fai valued using the same mathods desorbed above
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)
i thowsands of Unied Sates dofars)

Note 2: Significant Accounting Policias (continued)
r.  Fawr Walues {continusd}
Leans

The majoity of loans are variatle ate and re-prica in response be changes in market rales and hanow management estimatss that the ke vl of ieany = rot sgniScendy d@lferent than
thesr camying amount For significan! feed-rate lean exgosunes, T vakse bs estimated by dscountig e Soume cosh Soas, waing thi oamal rated 81 which Simesr iaang would B2 nade
o bomowess with simiar credil ralings and for the same remaining maturibes, of such laarg. Management includes the eflects of Specifiy peeishons razed against indhidusl luans, which
fartors In & loan's credd quatty, s wel as accrued inbanest « delermising the bair vidue of lnass,

Aceruad imbares]
Tha canyig asounls of actrugd inbins! Mdtivibie and payable e sbeted i appitrmale thar fair vaiues given thelr short-tem natum.
Daposils

Thee Lair value of Sxed-rate deposis has baen estivaiad by dsscountng e confraciual cash fows, using markat inlerest rales offered al the batance sheel dabs bor dapasits of simiar
terrrs. The casmying amount of depos s with no siated maturity dale 5 deemed 1o equmie i the far value.

Desivatives

Derwative comracts can be sxchange iaded o ovar-the-coumter (0TET) derafive contacts and miy nchede Bpoeand, swip & oplon condracts relatng 1 intems) rates o lovegn
cumencies. Exchange-traced derbives trpically f2i within Level 1 of the tir valug hisranchy depending on whither ey any deamed i b sctively raded of not. OTC derivalives are
wahed 1ssing mrknt yansactions and ofher marknt evidenc whestver possible, including ravislbased inpus 1 modsis, modsl caliraton i macket ciearing ransactons, brokar of
dealer quatations or aliemnadiog pricing sources whane an understending of the inputs utlised in 2erhing &1 the valuabons & oblained.

Whene models are used, e salacton of 3 particular mode! 1o vabos an OTC darvathes dopends wpon e contraciusl neons and specific risks inhesen i e Pstruman) as well a3 fw
avakabiity of pricing information in the markat The Bank ganenlly uses similar modils to vt similar ingtiomients, Vakatdion models raquire & varty ol inpuls, incuting conraciual
fierms, mare! prices. yield oures, credil cunves, measunes of volatiEy, prepaynent rites and comeiations of such inputs. For DTG dedvatves that trade in Squid maness, such a5 genenc
forwands, interest mbe Swaps and options, model inputs can genaly be verilad and el sstaction doas rof ivvolve snifcant managesent udgment

Goadwil

Thet Faie vl of repating ueits for whith ocwill is eoogised i dalpmdned when an mpalment assessmant s pafomed by discounting eslimated faure cash Rows wsing dissount
rates refecing valiation-data maket conditons and risks specifc to tha mponng unt

%, Impairmmnd gr Disposal of Long-Lived Assels

ImpaiTmant kesses are necogrised when e camying amount of 8 kag-ived azsat sxceeds e sum of e undscounied cash Nows expecied bom i use and disposal. The impairment
recogrised s measured 85 fe amount by which ne camying amount o the sl exosecs o B2 valus, Long-lved assew that as 1 be dizpoded of ofher (han by sab ars cassified and
accounted for as hewd for use urdl the dale of disposal or abandonment. Assats al Ml cenain criteda an cage i &8 held lor 2ak and are measwed a1 the kewer of hair caTying
amourit of Raif value, less eslimaled Gl o sl

t. Credit Related Arrangaments
In the normeal emase of Businass, fw Bank anlsm ingo varows commitments b meat the cedi requirements of Bs cuslomans. Such commitmends, which ang nt induded & Be
Consohdmed Balance Shess, inciude:
. o emignd creds; which represent undenizkings 10 make cradit avadabie in the form of keans o cther Enancing for Spocific amounls o0 malurses, Subiic! o cedain
LIS,
« Suaruly leflers of credt, which represent rrevocable abiigations be make payments T 1hind parkes in The evenl fhal B cusiome i unabi K mess it hnscisl abigatons: and
« Dipoamentary and commarcal letere of credil, pimasly elabed o the import of goods ino the Cayoon istands by custoress, which ageesent sgraments i honour drafs
prasenied by thind parties upen compdation of specific acikities.

Theissa cradil vangenents ane subject 1o the Bank's nommal credt standams and collateral is obfained where appropriata. The contracaial amounis Tor thess commitments s oul in e
nski in Moba 12 regeesant the makmum paymants the Baak would hawe fo mase should he cotdrects be Ry doren, the courmiesparty detiil, and any colalerdl hitd poe i ba of oo
walua, g many of Srae Brangements wil expine of lermngls wilhoul being drawn upon or ane fuly colalealisad (he contmctudl amous do nol necisskdy repnisen! fulure cash
mquiremants. The Bank doas oot camy any iabdity for thess obiigations.

s Consolidated Stternients of Cash Flows

For tha purpesss of he Comsobdaled Statements of Cirih Flows, cish due o Baaks itk cash on Pand, 335 SIS i (s pockss of coBection, amacs dua from comespander
banks and xghly kquld investments: that o resdily comearitie to kndwn andunts of cash and which ane subject 1o an ivigeificant sk of chenge in fair value,

v. New Accounting Prosouncements

Tt fillousing accouniing diwelopmect wine isubd during the i ended 31 Decembér 3019 or s atonunting standards pending aduption:

In Juna 315, the FASE publsted Accounfing Standands Update 2018-13 Finandal instruments - Crodt Losses. The amandments in this updat provite 8 new impaiment maded,
knereen s thea cumant eopecied credd loss modsl [CEGLT thal i based on axpechnd ksses rathes thin ingumd i, The amdsdments in is updale are also intandad I redaca (he
compiexty avd reduce the rasbar of mpdinment madels ontSes w38 19 actoent fae debt instnuments. For publc busness. entites thal mesd he GAAP defintion of an SEC (e, the
efective date for this update s for £3cal years beginning aSiar 15 Decermber 219, inclating ierim pereds witten thosa fscal years. The CECL modal 5 appheable lo the measurement
o cripgit Igesas on Enancl mgTuments al amonised cost inckeding loan revelvaties and beid do matnty debd secuwrites. I also applies 1o ofi-batance sheet cred!l sxposures not
#oconied Ior a3 ingwrance [oan commiments, standby et of credl, ranciyd gquaraniees, and other sinslar nsvumenss) and nel rwestments in corain leases moognised by 3
lasaar. [n addion, the amisndmenks o Tepws 128 require et lstes on Seafiable-korsale sacuntiss 1o be presenied as @ valuaton slowance aimer Fan as a diact wide-gown
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
WNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuad)
{is thousands of United Stales dolars)

Mote 2: Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
v. HawAccounting Pronsuncements (oontinued)

Fot debt sacovites. the guidance wil ba appled prspeciiely. Exsing purchased cradit-impained [WCT) assets wil by grandfatwernd and classified a3 purchased credi cateroraied
[FEDr) assens ol the date of sdoption. The assals will be grossed up for the allownce For axpeched cedt losses for ol PCD assals 31 e dale of adoofion and wil coninue o

tha noncract discous: In inferest income based on the viekd of such assats 23 of the adoption dee. Subsequent changs in expecied credit krses wil be reconsed thiough the
alowancs. For ol othir assets within the scope of CECL, which st prmanily lans for the Bank, & cumulsire-atisct sdustment wil be racognized in retinad eamings jaccumesated
defici) as of the date of appication.

Tha Bank wil apply the provisions of A5 X115-13 with affect from 1 Janvary 220 The Bank does nol nlend o msitale comparafive information. In addiion 5o the adperiment o
apening accurtulated defici v the measurement of expectnd cradt losses, the standard will also resull in reviskons by sccounting policies and procedeess, ew and addiional financial
statement note diclosunes, changes and amandmants o intarral conbrof documents, the developmint of & new sk model &nd associsid methodolagies, a3 dacussad above. Tha naw
foss madel will Ak requiss the Bank fo coliect and mainsen addiional aarbulis &5 it rebites 1o its Snancial instruments B0 ane wehin 300pe of CECL including fair vakus of collaaral,
expecind poricemancs ovr the Folime of the irstrument and restonabie 3nd suppoftabis isumpBons abou five sconcenc condbions. Changss in e requined aowance for crodit
losses will be recorded in thie consolidaled stalement of operaions,

Tre Bank b previously establshed a warking group with ol members from applicabie departments, inchuding ceedit risk maragemes ad inance, 1o evaluste fue regurements of
this new standasd, to develop a o modal consblnt with Bitime sxpecind kess estmalis #nd 1 design and srplement any changss nequined 5 aarent processes. The desgn and
implamentalicn of Fsd now mpainTIET] pocess has been coenpketed with the meagurement of expecied losses © be primardy based on the produc! of e respectie instumant's
prkmbifty of defaut [P0, lees given defoull {LGDF, 3nd ecposune 3 Sekaull {EAD’), e Misyeicaly incurmed loss rass, respectvely. For available-for-aale securites, any aliowanos
Ror crandit iogaes Is Dased O de mpainant aksetameal. Howsvar i s eotsd that [ha loss model wit conlinue o be enhanced based on exparkence of e relevant poriclios,

Based on wsing data 23, of 31 Decamber 2014, the toal expacted adjushmont &5 a nesul of tha adoption of this updane o1 the opening batince of the Bark's net equily al 1 January 2020
5 a dezrease of $3.0 milicn, The estimaind imgact retates i incrogsss 1= the aliowancs for credll icsaas under e new expecied oedt osy requingments. The Bank wil contioue 1o
Foniar and miing cartiin elements of its iImpairnent prosss i advasce of it O 2020 repoeting.

Iy April 219 & Mowember 2019 respacively, the FASS pubished ASL 201904 and ASL 201511 Codificasion Imprimernenss 10 Topia 326, Firancal Fsinsments—Credi Losaes,
MnuﬂwﬂtﬂuMTnphﬂ‘rs Derivatives and Madging, Topis 508, Francil instruments and Sub-lopis 805.30, Bugingss Combirations—identhabie Assels sod

and Any Nonooniraling interest. Tha amendments clasly, come] and improve vanous aspects of the guidsnce in the following ASU's relsted i financal insinaments: ASLH
e me—c-muﬂ[ﬁmm'm Rncognition and Measunesnent of Firancial Assets and Lishilies, ASU 201611 Financial Instnmants—Credit Losses {Topic
325) Measceament of Credd Losses on Flencidl Instruments, and ASU 201712 Denvatves 2 Hedging (Topis 815) Tarpetsd Improvements 10 Amcouning for Hedgog
Activiges, The amendiments selafing to ASU 2016-01 are ebectie ior Sszal years begising ahier Decamber 15, 2019, including intanm pedods wisin these sl years, early adopfion
i permifiad and il should be applied on & modfied-ranspactive franaiion basia. The amendments relafing bo ASU 2016-13 ane efiecthva a5 noled in ASU 1613, The ameadiments
reisting b ASU XMT-12 ane effecive =3 noled in ASLU 301712 Other than the impact of ASU 2H6-13 as distiosed above, ASL 201904 and ASU 201211 ans not expecied o Rave &
materal krpact on the Banis financal slatements.

in May 2018, the FASE published Actourting Siatdards Updale 201905 Financs! Instaness - Credit Losses (Tope 326 - Tamgited Transiion Rebel, The amendimests i this updaie
prowiide tangesed Wansiion relisf Mat ks an option Tor, and will be avalashe lo, 88 reporing enbiies withi the scope of Tapic 326, It provides eniiies wih an opton o imevocably slact he
fak vakin opfion 1 Sutdopic B25-10, applied on an ingirumint-ty-nstemen, bisis for eighie imsnamants that ane within the scope of Sublop 126-20 upon acoplion of Topic 325, The
o waihas opbion election dods ol soply 1o held i makuly el securifies. The efeciive dabe and Iransiion methodology for the amendmenss in s updaie are the same as in ASU
200613, The: Barnic Pojeh. slcied nid o dddopl B/ elbchie quadance.

It March 2015, the FASE pubiahed Acsouniing Standacds Update 201501 Leases [Topic 342] - Coaffication Improvernents, The amendrents in thes upoate provioe tianficateon on fheg
Bsues reatng b ASL 201802 Leases (Topic 542 {1) detemining the fai vakue of the underring asset by lessos Sl an nol masclactunss or desiers; (2] peesentation on the
airlemnant of cash fows - saks-type and deect financing ‘aases for all laxsars (hal an dapasiiony and lending Anities withia the: sonps of Topis 042: and {3) ransition disciosurss ralsted
i Topic 250, Accounting Changes and Emer Comctions. The rarsiion and effecive daw provisions for this update apply & lssue 1 and Issee 2 and @ eflecti for Facal years
kaginning afier Decambaer 15, 2019, and infirim peniods within thaps fcal years, for pubbc business entlies, sy 3 amendments ana o the ofignal Fansiton requemants in Topic 842
50 clarify thal e transition decisunis for Topes 250, parageapia 250-10:504{b)2) &na paragraph 25010-50-3 are enciaded fom nierm disciosuns sequirements for Tooks B42, The
Bank doas not gnficioala this ASL 1o b &0 inpacl on he Bank.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (conlinusd)
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Mote 3: Cash Dua from Banks

31 December 28 31 Decembar 2058

Unrestricted
Noa-ingerest bearing
Cash and disnand duposis with basks 2453 16,783
InSenest earing
Damand depcshs with banks' 0 140 1333
Cash eguhalents E23614 a2 01

= ntaeps Bianng TIR&5 1514
Tetal epsh dus fram banks TST AN 53T

" Indaest baarng cash due bom sanks incudes cestaln demand deposits with bands as at 31 December 2014 in the awcunt ol $20.1 miton (20 18: 328 8 milicn) Shal are saming interest
at a neglhgiia rale

Mota 4 Short Term Investments

31 Ducembar 2019 31 Decamber 218
Unrestrizted
Ietarest earming
LB repdury B maluring within Boed moaths - 4878
Total shan derm irvestsants - 24,878

Note 3: Investments in debt securities
Amgrtiged Cost, Carrying Amaust and Fair Valug
On the tonsoideted batence sheels. avadlatie Jor sye ('AFET) invesiments are camed at fak value a7 held o malersy (HTWY vestmants am caried 3L amartised cos!

3 December 2849 31 Decemiar A8
Gross Gress Carrying (Grurss Gross Camying
Amoitised  paeaksed  uneealised amourtl  Amorised  wsalsed  unnealized awgint)
et fairs lpsses  Falrwalue sl gaing icssas  Fairvaiug
Awailable for sale
U5 govemment and foderal sqentias 03 566 3570 ik 06,523 a4, 541 1587 [RARESI| G54 457
Hen-LiS goverrment debl saciities 3.8 # - LRy 1028 1% - 304
Corporate dfabl securiing - . . - L5508 - 1145 54155
Aasethacked secuntes - Shudent lsans 13,200 . [335) 12 4w 13,2150 - (65) 12525
Commensal mongage-tacied sacurtes . - - . 55504 L] {1,178} B
Resdantisl g-basked sacuites 44,600 188 1148 44548 T : {1472 58 502
Tatal availsble for sale 53,804 pAE] 12.152) 51 551 E51.553 I [15.933} BIT 41
38 Cecenbar 3019 3 December M8
Amuortised Groaa Gross Amortaed Gmss (Gmss
costCarying  uarealised  ussealleed Far  cosiCamying  unrealised  wenated
wikie G leses varlyz g A ksses  Fak ke
Held Lo maturity i
S overima and kel snsnces D24 4D 19,488 27 43,634 AN 2068 (14534} B4 533
Tetal held bo maturity 92‘.4-2_,3 12435 177} 43,534 217568 2088 (14584} ]

™ For e panods ended 31 Decembar 5315 and 31 Decamber 2018 non-cradil impai-ments recognised in ADCUADCL for el i maturty invesisnnts i sgual 1o SHL

During the year ended 31 Decemter 2015, tane wans il pechases of AFS securtles from its Pamnt Bark During the year ended 31 Decembir 218, the Bank purchaged 545.8
million of AFS securites and 50,03 milicn of accrued Infsrest fom s Passnt Bank ot esterated fak value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)
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Note 5, Investments in debt securities (continued)
Irwasimiaris with unnealfied lesd pasitions

The foliowing tablers show the fairwaloe and gnoss: unisalised kosses of the Bank's valable for Salé and held to maturity Frestnents wilh ueveaiied losses thal an pit dasnet 1o ba
olfer-fhan-iemparardy impained, aggregated by investmant category and length of Sme Sat indiidusd secoriies have been bn a continuous unnealised losa positon. Debt seouiies ae
cawgarised s being n @ continuous loks pasifion for “Less han 12 months™ of *1:2 monins of mose” bassd on e pont i Gme thal ha fsir vae decined below the coat ibasis.

31 Decamber 2019 Lt than 12 monthe 12 mgeiths o mong
Gross Gaoss Todal gross
Fair unrealiged Fair wnrealssed Tatal unreafised
valuz logses valse iosses fa value lnited
Avaitable for sale
L5 pewemment and fedemsl agancies 5007 (458 125149 {1,153y 210,856 {1613
Aspas-bached securities - Shudant loans - - 125 ki) Fl (]
Reesidenfal mongage-hacked securlies : - 285M {1405 H5H {140}
Tota avaitable for sale securities with unmalised losses 85109 {#50) 167,171 [1,692) 52,480 2.152)
Held to maturity
_LIE govemmnnt and federl agenciis : . G411 (277} 46118 rici i
Toksl beld bo maturity securities with unrealised losses - - 46411 ridi) 45011 [rits]
31 Decamber 2018 Leas than 12 mooths 12 moaths oe Mo
Gross Gress Tial groas
Fair unngied Fai unreatsed Total unrealisad
valyn ez ) uirliss inesas i vakee Iosses
Avisable for $als
U5 gowemmant and federal agancies 141,343 (58 Wamal [11.24%) ST {11,771
Corpora debl socuries 14518 [114) 38445 {1,035) 54 350 {1, 4}
Agsel-backed pacunfes - Sndent ans = - 12625 (285) 12628 (BRE]
Commercial morgage-backed securifies . . 43,317 {1178 48317 {1,176}
Risifantsl mongage-backed soc.sities 18182 (35%) 42.350 58,502 {1172}
Toksl availabia for sak seeutifes with uvaaked sses 172435 516,539 (14.545) £88.978 {15,93%)
Hiekd 40 rarkerity
LS govemmen and fisdarsl agencies 32 59 [5.441) 785162 3.253% Bi7,713 {14594}
Toal hald b mabusty secetlies with wnealsed beses 332 551 [5.441) 25062 {9,353} BT, 713 {14 668}

The Bank does rot beeve thal B AFS and HTH wesiment se0urties thal wen it an unnabsed ks positon a3 of 31 December 2014 (and 31 December X015], which wesm composad
o twnnly hepe socurlies mprisensng 15.64% of the AFS and HTM poviclos’ camyleg value (2015 egivy four and T5.6%, respectvely), represeet an OT71. Towl gross unmaksed
Tttt oters 08 196 of thee daie v of atacied securies (2018: 234%) Managemant does nal iniend io sali and R is Nty that managamen] will not be maguibed w 5ol the securias poior
o Peir anlicipated racovey, Unrealised loases wane atirtadsbie primarily ko changes i market inferest rmiles, relatie bo when the irvashment secuntias wens parthased, and nof due o
B2 et quatly of e ewesiment securdies. The issuars conlinge o make Smely principal and Inlenest payments on the securlies. The following describes the processes for identing
crerl i ment i Securily brpes with e mos! signficant unieaksed bessas & shown bn e preceding Bhes.

Management balivas thal all the US gewemment and faderal agencles securiies do nod have any crdit ksses. gven the expicl and mplal guardniees provided by he US lederal
govemment.

Managemnent believes Fat a1 e Non-FS govemment debt securities o not hae any credl ipsses: gaen the axplci guaranies prowided by te S5u] govemment

Investmints n Asselbicked securities - Student oans are composs primadly of securdes colateralsed by Federal Family Ecucation Loan Program koans (FRELP loans”). FRELP
koets benel fiom & US Mdaml govemmend guarantes of al least 57% of defauied pncipat and acenued infersst, with add®ional cedt suppord provided in the fom of gver-
colaipralisation, suboningion and eecess goread, which collacivaly IlE] in excess of 100%. Accordingly, tha vasl majonity of FFELP loan-backed Securiies afa nol exposed o
iraditiondl conguimar chadil sk,

Investmants B Reskdontial morigage-backed securitios relats b by secuntiss which ang raled AAA (lues senisiies) and ARE (o2 sacudily) and possess smilar sgntbeand crodi

achancement s destried abowe Mo credit losses weee recognised on thiess secrlies 5 the weighied average cradit suppon and the wesghled average LTV ratics range froen 11% -
2% andd 55% - §3%, respectively, Cument credit sunpon i Sgnifcantly grealks TN any defingaancies expenicncad on tha undenying mongages.
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Butterfield Bank {Cayman) Limited

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeants (continued)
i thowsands of Uinted Slrves doVars)

Nate 5: Investmants in debt securities (continued)
Invnstment maturities.

The lolowing table presants the remaning e o confraciual metwity of the Bank's secunlies. Tha actual maiuntas may dffer as cerlain securilas ofier prepayment oplicns fo ta
bomeners.

N Decembar 2019 Ramaining Lerm ba mataity
Ma specific
Wahin 3012 1805 5ta 10 Ot ot eingh Carrying
1 manths marths FEHE yismrg 10 yoars rngtuity ET T
Fuailalle for sale
U5 govemmant and fadaral agancis - - . . - 506,823 04,821
Han-LiS governmn del, securites . . 2 387 . v iz
Aszet-hacked sacurities - Studant lang - - - . - 12,851 £2.08
_Resivuntal mogage-backed secyites : : : : : L A4
Total available for saks . . 2 2H7 - S64.1a2 $67.501
Held t0 maturity
LS aovemsmant and faderal spncies . - . . - friirs] fro e
Talal heid ta maturity securilies - - : . . S24.423 24,423
Taolal investmenls . 0 Fiid 3BT b 1888 585 1@@4
Taolal by curmncy
US dotars 0 3,337 . 1,888 585 1892014
Talal investments Fiitd L) : 1880585 1802014
31 Decamiber 2018 Fhu'ha'w' e kg sty
o specife or
Witin w2 1hes 501 e sigle Carning
3 monte mondhs ¥8aia Y. 10 years maturity amaunt
Avalabis lor sake
U5 gomesnmi and Hdess] agencies . . . . - B5AA5T B AST
MorUS govemment dabi securites - 1084 - - - - 1084
Compomita debl securites E - 54.055% . - , 4335
Aagantachid Seouities - St gag . ] . . . 1255 12585
Commencial mongege-backed securbes - - - - - R WM
Residantal modgage-backed securifies - . J B . 58 507 55507
Tetal avalable for sale - 3064 54356 - - 7793 837341
Hirid o masturity
US geovemmaent and federal agances - - - - - 817555 BT 555
Tiotal Freld 1o matarity securities - - - : . BT 565 BT 585
Tkl inw . 304 54 558 - - 1,557 483 1,854,605
Total by curmency
L5 dofars - B M . . 1,557,883 1,654 905
Tetat ifvvipstmdnis - 3064 54 359 - - 1587483 1234005
Pladged Investmants

The Bank pledges cerain LS govemment and fademl agences investmant sacuries o further secur the Sank's Bsued cusiomer deposil pradkcts. The Seoumd party doss nod have e
figha b se or repledga the collateral.

31 Decemoss 2013 I Decarbar 3008
Amortied AerEed
Fledged Investments cosl Fair walut e Fair vl
AvaiEable for sake 255% 1002 2751 b
Haiz by maturity kRirx] 37T 1558 3467
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (confinuad)
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Note 5: investmants in debt securitios (continued)
Sale Procaads ard Realissd Gains and Lossas of AFS Sacuritias

31 Dezember 219 31 Decamber 2018
Sale  Guross realleed  Gross realised Sal Grons  Grogs realsed
AFS securithes sold procesds gains flesses) poeeds  reaiad gang {krasas)
Corporate dett securities 85,25 4 (129) 28975 - {27
Commesial movigage-backed secuciies 55991 551 . B = .
Riygents’ morsge-bidid tacufes . . 194,357 4 (18
Het realised gairs {losses)
recogritad in nef income AT L] [LF+ )] 218332 ol [E
MNote B: Loans and Participations Receivable
Thir igllcwang bt summatses e composiion of & laang and parbeiatons récetvable portioko:
31 December 2013 31 Decwsinhasr 2098
Commercid kans
Batks 33404 -
Govemments 127,509 12Em
Commarcal and industnal 65,096 147 581
Commarcial evandtafly SATS 10,05
Tolal grons somimencial ans 2a A 1rosT
Liss spectic slkowancs for cdi losses on government ki - 158
Met comemercial loans 232181 168 528
Commarcial real estats loans.
Comemarcial medgage 178,304 180420
Conmstructon 5750 £8.009
Tobal gross commencial real esiale loans 236813 Fra b
_ Less spachic atowance for cradif losses o ¢ il il il Kaney . -
Het commercial real estats boans 235813 135,329
Cansumer laans
Aulomobia francing 7765 975
Cepdt cand .13 ] e
Cherdrafs 3043 v ]
Gthar consumir 04T ITTE
Tiral grods consumar xans 7215 B0521
Lerss specific aliowance for credit lasses on coasumes icansg : .
Net o laans 57,215 50,531
Resadential morigage loans SRS 595,352
LLeess specific aliowsnce for credi losses o0 esicential modgadge bans [kl 12031
et residontial morigage kans 569,355 535190
Total grass lpans 110578 1,015,788
Legs spocific alowands for cragi] Dases {181} {1831}
Less ganaral alowance for ensdi isses 1533 {1673
Hel loans 1,104,653 102235

The: principal means of secang residental morgages, peronal, credt cand and cormmencial ioans ane chames over 2esets and guaraniees. Residential and commerdial mongage ks
ane ganaraty repayable over parkads of up S Tty years and pemanal, commertal and sovemment lans 2 gencealy repayable over lenms nol excesding finen years, Amounts owing
on cridi cands e niseohdng and ypically a minieus ameunt 8 dus wehin 30 days foen biling. The effective yiadd on tola! loans as al 3 December 2019 s 4 53% (2018 5.71%)
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (confinued)
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Mote 6: Loans and Panticipations Receivablie (continwed)
Age analyss of pagt dua e {incheding non-scomal loans)
Thit: fofiowing labie sunimarises the past due sists of the bans, The aging of past dus amounts ara delemed based on the conraciual definguency siatus of payments under tha kan

and $is pging may be allected by e tring of tha lel business day Bt period end. An account bs genemaly considered & be confrachesSy deflngurnl when papmants have not been
made i acoondance with tha ioan Bams.

31 Decembar 2019
-5 B0 days ot Tatal past
days Bl = BS diys mie i hogni Tolal Current Total loansg
Commarcial loans
Banis " N 33m I
Govermments - 127 508 137508
Commerncal and aduatnial - LT Lt
Commarcal overdrafts . SATS 5475
Total commersial baans - - Eor b 23281
Commsercial real estate bosas
Commarncial morgage 45 . 445 178,859 179, 504
Cormsineion . - - 57508 57,50
Tots commercisl resl esiste loars $45 - 45 13,558 236,813
Consemer loans
Aubormahle Snancng - - 1784 7,755
Creclt cant . . 26,253 25,253
Ovesdmfis - - 3043 3043
Hher corsumes 16 16 30,158 30AT4
Tolal consurmed loans . 15 . 16 BT.21% 67,235
Regidential marigage loass 1,646 1 E66 2146 §.258 53232 59,50
Tolal gross laans 1.094 1,482 2145 5119 1.0499.060 1,005,719
W Leans kess fan 30 diys past du ank incheded i Cotment
31 Decamber X018
-5 S0daysor  Tolal past due
days &0 - 58 days mang loans Total Cumeny 19 Tokal ans
Cemmarcal icans
Govenimants . 3.750 3 Reri T2ET
Commertsal and indusirial Fa) m T AR 147 6=
Commercial averdsafis - . - 10,15 10,15
Totsl conmencial loans 21 3750 3881 15,505 mT
Commenial real eatate bans
Commarncial modgage Bar T 179,583 180450
Cargtiuchion - - 42308 43.809
Tolal conmecial real ensale kang aar v 238,452 3933
Corsumear lans
Fulomnbly ingndng L] 3 4 E.581 8475
Cradd cand E bt v 153
Ovendrafss . . . L] 1242
Othar g 114 4 18 2TA3L 7151
Todal consumer inans 123 ] . 132 Edse ekt
Residantial morigage loans 3851 1.068 3314 [ ] 547113 S55360
Tl oy loars 5052 1078 1068 13188 1,002 500 15758
i Loans less than 30 days past dos are inciuded in Qumenl.
(]
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
Wotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
i thousanads of Uatled States dolars)

Mote 6: Loans and Participations Receivable fcentinuad)

Mean:Porforming Loans (echading Purchased Credit ivpained Loans)

I Degednbar 2019 31 Decamber 2018
Byzenging loarm past Total non- hizenging loans past Tokal ron-
Hon-sceral loars dis 30 days pesfareming mane  Non-accrual ans due 50 days pariorning laars
Commarcial kans
Govemmants . . ] 750 . 5750
Commensal 57 indusiral #H - i1 - - -
Tolal commarcial loans £l - it 3750 . 3750
Cammarcial real astate kang - - - -
Consumer ans
Aulomotdla Enancing - - - -
Crodt cads . . : .
Crtdrals:
Tatal consumes lnang . . : . g
Ressdental marigage kans 1532 il 2,500 1583 154 18
Tot! nan-perfoaming hans 1663 568 20 5403 134 S6a7

The lable balow presents information aboul e coadit quatly of the Bark's lean porfiolio.

Todal gross
Special fecorded
31 Decembar 2019 Pass Mention  Substmdard  Non- stcnal loans
Commencial loans
[Banks a3am . . . 33001
Govemments 127509 . - E 127,509
Commeesial and industisl BlG2% a5 34 kil S0
Commestial cvardrafis EATS . . . 5475
Tetal commurcial boans 230,750 452 938 kil s e R 3
Coemmerciy] real estale lasns
Commamial morigage 158 3 19857 425 - 179,504
Congtuction 97,500 - . - 57,508
Talal comsmercial real estate lsans Fa Ak 19,857 423 - FECEE]
Consumer loans
Auiamotile fnancing 1.TES - - - 7,768
Cepdd cas FL¥T] - - . 26,251
Overdrafis M3 . . . 343
Qther cotmurmer w72 H - - 30,174
Totdl eonsumas loans E1.1 Fi . . B335
Residential morigage loans akih : 627 1,512 569,550
Todal gross recanded koang 1 076 335 20451 T.3r 1551 1,1%
71 Exchudes pumnased credk-impaned loans,
19
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
fin thousands of United Statas oblars)

Wote &: Loans and Participations Receivable (continued)

Total gross
Spacal FRcnded

31 Decembar 2018 Pass Meshon  Sumtendad  Non- ool lnans
Commescial ans

Govemments 8920 B - TR 1AM

Comndszial and indusyial 146,535 191 s . 147,601

Commencial svardrahs 10.955 - - - HL158
Total commescial bars 15811 15 985 375 .57
Commeseil real astate barsy

Commescial mongage 168,311 11535 474 - 180,420

Consinaction 48508 - - - 48,500
Tl commancial real estabs laans N1 11635 [i B Frers]
Consumer ioans

Automnbie fraecing G275 . . : 6975

Owvendrads 242 - - - 2242

Cithr o ez g . . 27,751
Tedal consuver Dang: 60532 8 . - G059
Resdantial motigags ioans 545713 - T 158 55,360
Joal groes recorded iang 215 155 2405 2353 1osres
1 Excluders purchased credi-impared kans,
Lewns' Cradit Quality

Tt ko ! quilily cladalitaboos Sl oUl abov afs dsfined bk 503 deacrb the credit quakty of tha Group's lenday pomfabs, Toese cheaifeatons 4ach ancimpasy & mngs of
e gracnidar, intemal cat rating grades assigned.

A pass loan shat mean 8 loan Tt ks sapeched 1 be rapaid i agnesd. A loan is classTied 38 pass whise the Bank B nolexpecied ¥ Bk repaymeant Sificuities bocause T prasienl and
projeciad cash Mows ane Suficke 10 repay e debl and T reniymend schedule @3 eslabisherd by B agreament i Deing Rioasd,

A speclal mention loan shall raan a losn under close monioring by e Bank’s menagement. Loans in hummmmwﬁmﬂm#mh
inveasl and prncipa! paymants], bl ace potantaly weak and prasent an undun cendit nsic arposun, bul not 1o he point of jusEying 3 classiication of substandasd

£ subsdandad loan shat mas a lnas whose evdedd mislabaty makes repaymeant daubbul 2w there 8 a thmat of ks 1o the Bariuniess the unraliablity s aveied.

A nom-accrual kan shall sean either management i of S agenion T payment of pincipal of inferest & in doubt o when panssipel o0 et i 00 days pret cue and for residental
ioans whrch are nolwell secuned and i the process of oollaciion.

31 Decamiter 2013 31 December 2018
Indiidually Collactivaly Indhrickaly Collechvaly
Total gross baans avalusted for impainsent ' vahsated avaluated vtk evahsied
Commencial e S64 e 4715 165,802
Comemancial real estate loans 425 #5388 474 228 RS
Corsumer s T 57228 n ED580
Residerrial modgage sty G487 563,063 7591 SATATY
Toksl grass recorded loans b5 1647691 13181 100608
Changes In General ard Spacéfic ARvwances fer Credst Losses
Loan aliowances 14 Detembar A3 31 Decambar 2013
Commarcial Rasidential
Commercial et mslate Consumer morgage
foang foans lgans boans Tobdl inang Tortal e
hBowances at beginning of perisd 2375 (5] 115 45 1,564 5545
Prowision [relsased)reconed duing the peciod (175 (35 &5 e 1.5 1.557)
Ratowines - - 112 H 141 Lhi=]
[ 3] . 1) [137) ] (L0
Aliwances af end of period 254 250 111 425 1,088 3554
Enging Babanse: indivadualy evalinlid b impaumeed ; - i 181 hi] 180
Ending Balance: coliectively evaluaied for impairzent i Fit 111 Fit) 308
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)
{in thousands of Unitad Staes dotlars)

Nete B: Loans and Participations Receivable [sontinuad)
Impatred Loans fexciuding purchased credit impaied loans)

A loan i considensd 1 be impaied when, hased an comend information and events. the Bank determrings hat il will not be able 12 colect all amoonds due acconding %0 the loan coniract,
Wishasinyg Scheduled inlerest paymants. imgalred loans inciade 2 non-ancnaal loans and all isans modfied in a TOR even if fud cofechabiity & anpecied folowng the nestruciudng, Far
the year andad 31 Decembar 2016, (he amount of gress inenest ncoma thn would hinve bean reconed had srpaied icans baan coment wars § G052 méSon [2068; 50,341 misan). The
Labba bt prosents inkormation atind the Bank's impained loans:

Imipaine basd
without an
1 December 2018 Impaired lgans with an alfewance athyrance Total impained [oang
Grods resardad Bpacific Dross recorded Srosa reconded Spacific
lpans allgvaney Fet loang laars loans  afowanes  Hatloans
Caomnwrcial loans
Commercial and industrial . - - 5 5% - 69
Total commaercial leans J o . ] 985 ! 550
Comenercial real estate loans
Cornmmrsial morgage - - . 425 Lre] . A2
Tow commerclal real estabe loans . . 4 Lre 425 - 425
Consumer boans
Amobie fiancing i . r - . -
Lradh cands . E . - 2 i
Othes congimer = # - : = N
Tetal eongumar lbang . . . . . g .
Rusidentlal martgage laans 1440 {181} 1259 3259 4,608 {1811 4518
Total impaired kaans 1440 1181} 1,289 4653 5053 11E1} G312
Impaied bans withoul
31 Decamber 2018 Impaied ians with a0 aliowance &0 allwarc Total impaired koans
Gross recorisd Specihc (s rescondad Gaross racendad
oA [ » Hast losrs loans loans ' a Bt loans
Commenci lnares
Coemarcial pvandrais 1750 [1,638) 262 : TN [1 6881 2052
Tedal commercial kans 3,750 [1.688) 202 985 4715 {1.585) 1oy
Comemnecil ral eatal as
Commestal morgage - . - £74 a7 . 474
Tootal commencial roal pstals loans " - - aTd 474 B 474
Congusnas lans
Cither congumer =
Tzl corswmer lans B : - - L . -
Residectal moigage kans 1,845 {an s a8 4 857 (270 453
Total imaered ians 4,755 (1,755 3,040 5281 0058 [1.735) 8,33

A
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuad)
(i fausands of Unifed Stalas dotiars)

Hote 6: Loans and Participations Receivable [continued)
Aorerage Impained Loan Balances and Rekiled Ressqrissd Ilarest Inzoms
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31 Decembar 2019 knpaired loans 31 Decpmingr 2078 Impared bant
Inderest income Intaresh incoma
Aserage groRs recorded loans racognised’ Average groes recoed bans recognised®
Commarcial loans
Corrmercial and irustnial =T 385 =]
Bwemmants 1875 - | BT5 -
Total commarcial loans i 1BED =}
Cammetcial real estabe loass
Commércial morigags 450 454 42
Total commarcial rezl esiate loans A5 Ell 454 42
Consumar lbans
Rummobla francing - . M
DOthif comaumar = = z
Totd consumer kaang - - F]
Residential morigage loans 4809 183 £453 155
Total impaired loans 8,171 D 2811 55

A1 et income recognized 4 impared lnans redale da kans pesvitusly madPad in 3 TOR

iLoars Modified in a TOR

A a1 31 December 2017, th Bank has NE (2018 One) loang st wene modified within e kst 12 months 200 sutssquantly delasted {Le 50 days or mem past due folowing a

modkcation].
31 Decembar 2% 31 Decembar X118
Pre- Past: Prre Post
madifization Hadidication: modificatian modification Mjificaton: modiicason
Humbar af recorded fnterest recordsd Mumiper of fioeted ety recarded
TDRs pniered inta during the year contracls laans capitaligatian haans eotach ] capfaaton lanis
Resnntial Mofgaqe e - - - i 1,288 b 1458
Tedul loans modified In a TOR - 8 1,288 i) 1458
31 Docember 2018 31 Decamter 018
TDRs outstandang Aeocnal  Mon-accrual Aoyl Hon-atcnaa’
Comminial loans 938 . %65
Commerciyl real Bsiais loans Lo - 474 .
Residental morigage nans 1067 192 3184 04
Total lgans modified in 2 TOR d-,;l-'g 192 4@ 04
%
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Butterfield Bank {Cayman) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
{in thowsands of Unifed Sfates dollars)

Note §: Loans and Participations Receivabie (continued)
Purchiased Credit Impained Lazns

3 Detember 2012 31 Decamber 2018
Nod- hon-
Contractual  accretable  Accrelsbis Carmying  Confachal  acoelabie  Accralabe Camying
principal __ differanca  differance amaunt principal  dilence  difierence amaun
Balance a1 beginning of year 451 =) (58] 1569 5,00 {1.235) i) 405
FAdvances and increases in tne cash Sows sxpacied o A5 bi] (2 45 25 42 fL R3] ]
b ooleiind

Refuctions mesulting from repayments {1.577) FLH L {1,153 [1.455) 191 =2 (1213

Reductions. resulting from changes In alowances for
rradit lossas . 168 B 18 N 105 R 105
Reiyctions fesulting from chagl-ofis (435) i) B (233 N . . .
IBatence &t end of year 1504 {188 [CAF] 1.7 4,531 (B0 {6 1) 2,549

The Bank acquised cerain cradeimpained kans as part of the T Noweriber 2094 aoquisiten of subsiantaly o8 reted isans of HSBC (Caymany Lirdled, The accrecaie diffecsncs {or
“aeoneiabin yid') repoesants the ecess of 8 laa's cash Rovws srpacied bo be coleched dwer th loan's nifial carrying sounl

Mote 7: Credit Risk Concentrations

Concankalions of credit sk in he bnding aod off-balance shea! credil redated arangemants porticlos artsa when a number of auslomess are engagid m Simdar bainess acliviies, ae
I the: same geographic reqkon, o when Sy have sivdar economic features that would causs thek ablity i meel contrachual obiigations i be similady aliecled by changes in economic
condfons. The Banlk regulsrly noniioss vanous segmants of B coodit sk portiolio b assess polential comcentrations of feks and 10 obtain ooliaderal when diemed nesisary. in the
Bank's commarnced porticlio, risk concentratons am prmardy evakated by indusy and also by geographic reqion. In [hit congumer pormols, Concenyions ane permanky evaluied by
products. CradR enposwies. inchade koans, guanantess 0 aceptanees, Kiess o (ot and CommRments: for undrwn Bnes of Credil Uncondiborally carcelably credi cands and
cardrafts Enes of coadit ar suchuded from the tabies Deiow

The lalowng lable gummanses the orest exposure of tha Bask by business sechor. Tha on-batance shoel expos.se smounts discirsed 2o net of specific alivwances and e ofbbalancs
shaal xposse amounts disciesad am gross of collataral heid

1t December 2019 31 Descambar 215
08t balarcw Tolal gradit O taance Torad cradit
Leans shaet EXRO IR Lians shetd Sapding
Banks and francial senices 145,780 145205 05 TREH 166,126 235,745
Commesrcial and merchangsing a0 3n2 - F gk 845,535 48613 138411
Gevamments. 127 505 - 127509 10,352 - 10,252
Indhviduals Sor.ive 12,558 EI9EE SH3 55 1809 B12. 706
Pricasy mduslry and manicining 58,055 i3 2073 53346 18 53,3654
Faal eslate 153, X2 : 153,122 1TESAT . 176,842
Hosplalty ndustry THER . 14522 1553 - 15,538
Trangpon #ndd ConmiTunicaion My - Mr fi -] - 795
Sub-total 1,105,598 o4& L 316,089 1013808 23775 1.247 683
Ganarl aliowarese 08 : ) (1.673) : (673
Talal 1,104,659 10.881 1.315.160 1012235 233,775 1500
3

203/247



EDINETOO OO
O00O000000000000000000000(E30019)
o o o o o o o o o
Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
{in thousands of Unied States dallars)

Note 7: Credit Risk Concentrations (santinued)

The fofieming table summaries the credit exposusa of the Bank by geograghlc regien for cash and cash aguivalens, short-bam invesimisis, lbang nicsivabin ans oflbalasce sheel
exposurs, The cred rak congeniralon by curmanty for immstments & disciosed in Nota 5. Investments.

3 Decembar 3315 31 Deterber 2013

Cashand Cashand

cddh cash

equivalents epevaients

and 4had- and shart
tem Difbalanze Totaf eredit tem Ofibalance  Total credit
A BRI Loang soaet aipagure rwesrerss Loans skt enpauy
Australa 1595443 . . 156,443 129,31 . - 129,331
Brhadm . . . - - 2083 - 2063
Bammuda 2,15 175,605 1,087 180118 1508 Furle-H - 5,554
Canada 39 . . ol 524110 - - 524,110
Cayran kands 27318 883,532 2044 1,19558 18,14 THI4® 22188 570,745
Guarmey . EERT] . 331 835M . . Bo74
Japan 11,84k . . 11843 1005 - - 10,099
it Zesatand 5732 : . 5 g2 - - 523
5L Lucia - . . . . 65000 . E£.000
Bwitearand 1482 . . 343 0% . - 1095
That Baharad . 42,858 - 1185 - P . W e7
United Kingdom 69,338 . . 65,328 108,591 - . 108,881
Urited States 98,031 : - 52831 43043 : . 533
Sub-total THTAOT 1,105 538 210,491 1073496 M6 1015808 20778 248085
Genersl allwancs - o) : )] - HHETH - (1673
Talal THTAN7 1,104 £25 210491 anrasar L3216 1,012,235 TS 2180 8%

At 31 Decamber 2019, 33.01% (2008 21.32%) of tofal cash and cash equivaiects ware phiosd with 2 single Canadian (2048: Casacken] Financial Instison with an S&P rating of A-1
{2018 AA-). AL 31 Coacnmbar 2000, 0.00% {2015 2E4%] of the tofal cash and s squivilents and shon-bir ifvestments waee held in L5 Treasury Sis

Nole 8: Premises, Equipment and Computar Softwara

31 Decesmaber 3009 3 Decembar 2318

Accumulalad Kot carrying Accusrdatnd et canmying

Category Gosl deprecaation amant Gt Chpreinion arreunt

Land KRS : E L] 3053 - 3053

Buadings 45,285 (12383 33514 44,748 {11,328 a7

Ecpépmint 3ama (25T [EF) 29 {3, 125) T8k

Lomputer hardware and sofwasa in use 44,531 [X5,734) 5749 42123 134,105 104927
Total 48,256 (51430 45,504 9343 {45.650) ALN8G

11 Decersber 31 Dacernines

iG] Faigh]

Depreciation

Buyrigings (included in propesty eopecse) 10T 1.5%

Equiprens (nchuded in propecty axpanse) 244 50

Compeiter hastwarg 873 softwars (inciudad in lechoology & communications axpense) T8 4,060

Totsi deprecistion charged Lo son-inlerest aEpensa 603 6,716
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Butterfield Bank [Cayman) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)
{Tn thousands of Linkag Stales collarg)

Nata 9: Intangible Assats

Goodwil 11 December 1013 31 Dacember 2013
Goodwill 1 a3t
Balance at end of year &51 551

B npte 20 Bsineds Combraafions

Custeener relatinship intargiils assets 31 Decasnber 2019 31 Dasaritaes 2018 .
Hel

Sccummlzted  Accumulpled EarTyEng Acumdaled  Accumubled  canying

o] impalrment  amadtisation arniusil Coat impalment  amodmation akend

Customer refationships a7 . [4,861) 12056 16517 : {33600 13157

Cusiomer relalionshps s inrally vahesd based on the prossnt vaiue of nol cash fiows expacind 19 b derived solely Fom e recuming cusiomer basa axisbng as at the dats of
2equisifion. Customar relationship infangble assels may or may notanse Fom contracts. Thert v i intangibla assal impaanmes loszas recognised for the year ended 31 Desembar
2019 {2015 NI Tharm wane no acquisibons of costemer intangTble assets dusng the year ended 31 Decembar 014 [201G: 55,4 milon. of which §5.0 mifion wizs acguined thicugh
Iusiness acquisiion]. During 2349, the amcriss%on mponss amcuntad 12§11 milon [2016: 1.0 miSoq), Tha estmaled aggregate amorisation expirse in totaf for the next fue yeasy
{until 31 Decemeer 2024) s §5.5 milion

Mate 10: Customer Deposits

31 Decarmber 3019 3 Cecomber 2018

Derbnd deposils
Denand deposits - Non-nlants! baaring TELG T15447
Diermated depasiis - Intenest bearing 233340 2172541
Sub-batal - demand depotils 25538 2,866,358
Term deposits hawing a denamination of kess than $100 thousand
Tem ceposils maturiog within sic moerhs 22085 2325
T diepos it bebwien s b twehe months Rler ] 4517
Taie deposts snaturing 3her twehve monihs 306 BT
Sub-total - term depesits having a denomination of less

than §100 thearsand £7 613 T8
Team deposits having a denomvination of $100 thausand or more
Tieemn chigpxarniss maturing within six months 405 AT B
Team doapasis makiing batwesn sk i weke monts 3645 49,308
Tem deposits maturing afes beiha monihs 634 11482
Suh.batal - Jerm deposits having & denomdination of

$18% shousand or mone 15222 4500138
Todal - tarm deposits AT9.B4T Lh it
Total ERLEN L 3,357 557
* A5 a1 11 Decembar 2019, 507 milion (2018: 50.5 mibon) of the tem depoais bear an interest ate of I%.
The effecta ydd on interest bearing ceocats at 31 Decembaer 2018 was 0 25% (2018: 0 26%
Hote 11: Employee Fulure Banefits

1 Degamiber 204G 31 Desamber 3015

Amaual beselil expanse
Dalired contritetion axpense 1553 1,541
Total 1,593 1541

L]
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Butterfield Bank {Cayman) Limited
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)
{in Housands of Linted States doliars)

Maote 12: Credit Related Arrangements and Commitrnents

The Bank enlers inlo coniractual commimants o entend cred®, nornally with fiead sxpiraton dales o lanminaton Ciausea, at speciled rales and for speciic punposes. Substantialy all
of the Banics comeniiments fo estend cedit v colingent upen customens maintaining specic craod standands at the me of nan fndng. Managemenl assesses the cradit sk
associaied with cenaln commitments fo sdend cradt in cefermmining the level of the alowance fior possibie loan losses.

Thie following tabie presarnts e unfunded legally binding Comestments 10 autind Credl with contractual AmoUnts rEpresentng oredi fisk as lolows:

31 Dcambar 2018 31 Dacembar 2018
Comméimants ko axiand crpdi 51443 BT
Docurmantany and cormmgrcial it of cpdif 1,809 30,002
Tatal G55 .13

Cradil Relatod Arrangemants

Standty emers. of credit and laters of guarsnies an Baved & the request of 3 Bank cusiomer in order 1o secune the customer's paymant o parfosnance cbligations o a thisd party.
These guaraniees repressnt an krevocabis obhgation of the Sane i pay the Térd party banebcary upon presantaton of the guarantss and satslacton of the decumeniary mquieenis
shipialed hensin, without vestigation s 1o the waldity of the benefcany’s claim against e customer, Generally, the s of the standy letiers of credit doas nol qxuceed one yaar,
whslar tha tarm of the leters of guaraniea dees nol excesd Four yean. The types and amaunts of cofatanal sacurity heid by tha Bank for these standly leers of cradit and kotiess of
guaranies is geanacally reprasended by deposts with the Bank or  change over assets hild in mutual funds.

The Bark considers the fesa coaclad i connection with the fsuance of slandoy letles of cedt and etiers of guarsnies 1o be representsfve of the fak value of Is chigation
wrdariaian bn Bswng the quaranae. In accomdancs with applcable Bocounting standards relalad to guasanises, the Bank deles fees collecied i commection with T Exsuance of
standby latien of creds and lefens of guaremies. The fees soa then necognisad in income proportionately over the Ba of the cedi apeemens.

The Sollowing lable poesents e acatanding lrancial guarantess with contecial Amounis repesentng cede nei Bs klows:

31 Decembar 2015 1 Decamber 2018
Grias Collatiers] Net Griss CoRateral Hat
Siandby latiars of credd 1e3801 14380 - 137 424 138,544 280
Lasbiars of guaranh 151 1,635 ) 158 155 ;
Totsl 145, £33 145,238 - 138 052 134,182 ]

Golateral i $aown 81 estmaled marke: vakee lass 1aling cosl Whene cash b the collatesad, this is chews gross nclrdng accrisd incomes.

A guatanien i & coniect al conbirgenty quies e quarieior i make payments 1o & tis pary based on {T) chinges in a0 underying inlerest rale, laseign exchange rabe or oiher
variable, mchuding (e ocouminds of Ren-conanse of an event that is refabed b on Based. Rabdy oc equity securily hald by the quaraniaed party, (i) & indemniication provided o the
third party wifh e chaecisristos Esied above, (B} anothet ently's faduee 1o perdom under an cbligatng agresment, or (iv) anoihar andty’s tadure o perdorm relafed & s indebledness,
Az 31 31 Decemnber 3019 me guammniees that the Basi peovided 0 ds cusioenans and ciher Tind parties ware stanchy laters. of crecit and laSars of guaremes with a maeimum polental
amgunt ol fee payments of $32.7 miken (25 510808 milion). The camying value of thesa amounts on tha 11 Decambar 2018 Consolidated Balance Sheat wane SHI (2018: SKI

Tha Bank has @ Incilly by one of its cosiodiang, whasely B Bank may offer up to $200 million of sissy leners of fradd 1o B9 customens on 8 lully sesured Bass, Under he sadand
lerras of the [aciity, ®a cusingan has tha Aght ko sst-ofl against secunibes held of 190% of the wilsad facsity. A 31 Decamber 2019, $143 4 mison (2015: $135.0 millon) of standby
lemars of el wene Esued undar S iy,

Legal Procesdings
Thane ase o farmbar of 2ciong aod bagal proceadings panding againgt the Bank and ils subsadianes which agse in e nomal course of 9 busness Management, aher reviewng 3t

acliong &g proceedings, peoding Agans? of ivvabing the Bank and fs sutaidanes, considers Pl the resokoton of S mafers woutl not be matenal i fe consabdaisd Tnancal
poafon of he Bank.

206/247



EDINETOO OO
DOO000000000000000000000(E30019)
OOo0Oo0Oo000O0oooooooon

Butterfiald Bank {Cayman) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)
(i fcesandls of Unied Slates doldars)

Mota 13: Leases

Tha Barik esers inks opsraling lease agreements eifer as the lesses or thi: lssor, primarty for ofice and paning spaces. The tamns of the areing leases, ncluding renewal opfions
thet an eakcrably cesiin S be axercised, antand up B0 the year 2009, Certain krase paymants wil be adusted during fre rlsted lases hers basad on movements in e reevant
CONSATES price index.

Tear ended 3t
Leasa Codts Dectmber 2019
Opemling lease costs =21
Shishm ke ool il
Tofal lease cost 141
Dperating lease ncome ;
Oilher mformatian for the peciod
Fight-class-a5tats radyied iy new oparaling lease kabiltes 1,345
Dprarting cinh fows from oparting lases o
Asal
Other infomation ai end of period Ducamiar 2010
penaing leases right-ciusse 2550t (nclded in ol a3se on the balances sheets) 3418
Oparaing kases Extaties (included in other Rablites on the bafande shad) 1445
Wisighled aversge remainkg lease ke for cpenating kies (i pears) £.03
‘Weghind aversge decount sty kot perativg laxies 5.05%
Cammitmants.
Trw iollowing table surmmartses thi maturity analysisof ha Bank's commiiments for long-enm laases: -
rating
Year ending 31 Decembas 2015 Luases
e 1043
ol T
2 566
23 KHE
M2 42
2125 A tweseabier 1,047
Toll commiteenls 4055
Less: affact of ing caish fiows o their presan vaie 613
Operaling lease lisbilities ]

Pt pagsberan Y07 promisan aased on & kmg-ionm basis lor the year ended 31 Cacember 2018 amounied fa $1.347 milian.

Note 14: intesest Income
Laans
Thz following table presents the components of loan el income:!
31 December 2019 31 Daceambir 2018

Cantachaal hlersat eamed on mongages 36653 35,968
Contraciasl infarest eamed on ofer leans 16584 17,982
Subilotal condractual intsrest samad 55,337 53,050
Asmodisation of kean ofenation fes inel of smorisnd oosls] 1,408 585
Total loan interest income 56445 54 535

Balance of unamortised boan fees included In leans as a1 year ¢nd 2704 2,540

Fi
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Butterfield Bank {Cayman) Limited
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continuad]
fin thewsands of Uniled States doliers)

Mota 15 Accounting for Derivative instruments and Risk Management

The Bark uses deshathes lor sk managamend puposes and o meel S nitds of B8 custmens. The Bank's darvathe confracts princigally invaive over-ha-couner (OTCT
transacions Ak Beg privately negota’sd batween the Bank and th counterparty 10 B conlract and include intenest rale contracts and frsign qechange contracts, The Bank may pursus

to recuce s eaposuse i credt losses on dervaives By estirng inlo Imemational Swaps and Dedvafives Associafion master agreements [150+s”). Depending on the
natyre off B dervative tmnsaction, bikatem! collateral drrangaments min' be used s wal, Waan e Bank is engaged in mons fhan one culissdng deriaive Sansaction with the same
countamarty, and alsa has a lagaly enforceabie msbir peting agreement st that countarparty, the not marked o marked expesuns represents the pefing of tha positive and nogative
exposires with that cournarparty, When ihent i & et negative exposus, the Bank agards its cradi expadine 1 the courdirpary &8 being 2en. The nel marked 1 marke! postion Wik &
partcular couremparty represents & neasonabie measure of Cradi fiak when theee is 8 kgally enforceabl master netfing ageeement betwaan e Bank and that countimany. For he
years anced 2019 and 2018, tha Baok leciad oL 10 et its dervarive fansacions.

Corlain of these bgreaments. contan credit nst-reiated contingent featunes in which the courstmaty has the option 1o acceleniy cash salement of the Bank's i dethabie RabEbes
with the travserparty I S gvent e Bsn's creit rafing Lalls balow speciindg lwnls of the Eabilitas reach ceral lavels.

Al dertative finanicial isinements, whelher sesignated 23 hodges or not, aos reconded on e consclidaled balance sheat 1 fair valse within ofher assels of other fabistes. The
asounting for changes i th e vales ol a dervative In the Consolidased Stalesrents of Operasiont dapends on whether the contract has been dasignaled as @ hedge and quaifies for
hisdge scctundng.

Hotionat amounts

The notions! amounts ane rot ecorded &5 astels of Rabiitas on e Coraoidsied Balancs Shests &5 ey rprasent the tace amount of the contract o which a rate o price: 5 appied i
getnmin S amount of cash Fows 1o ba exchangad. Fofional ameunts rpresent the volume of sutstanding ransactions and oo not sapresant the polental gain e kst assocated with
ekl rigk of tradil rigk of Such insteuments Crad! risk ks fevited ko the pesitive fairvalue of te dervatve insrument, which s significangy less tan the nofional amount

Fair valus

Decwative nstruments, in thi absenoe of any ceenpensating up-ironl cash payments, gendarady B Ao marke! value al inception. They obiain value, positvg or negaive, & relevant
gchanga rnes changs. The polensisl ke dervatives to increase or gecrease in vilee a5 8 result of the foregoing Tactors s genésaly refiimad 1 83 marel fisk. Market fisk is Panaged
within cleady dalingd pammeters a8 prescribed by sanior masagement of B Bank, The fai valss & fafinkd aa the profh of loss sssociated with neplecing the derivative conlracks at
Eeiraiiing masmiad prices

Fisk mraviagarent darvatves comprse of darvalives. not lormally designaiad as hadpes. Thest are eméed inkd 1o manage foreign exchangs risk of the Bank's wipeste. Changes n
the tasr valus of danative instruments nol foemally cesigraled a5 hedges an recognised in loneign exchange revanue.

Client sarvice derivatives

The Bark enters ito freign exchangs contract pimarty b meal e foreign dnchanga nasds of iy customens, Fomign enchange Conticts a6 QUisemina 10 enchange spacitc
amows of cursancies 3 3 lukes duls 3t 8 speciied rate of exchange. Ghianges in e tair valve o client sanvices dervaive instrimenss ane roogriss in fonsign exchange income.

The folicwing lable shows the aggrogase nalicnal amounts of deshatve contracts cusstanding and respeciive gross positive or negatve Tair value. Falr valg of durfvatves & pecnmiad m
the Consofated Batings Sheets i Oihes gssels and Other Bablities, Gross positive [air values ane retonded in Oher assels and gross negatie fair valued are reconded in Other
labiities; and S Bank bag ool netind sey deralbves oo the Copsolidated Eixtanos Shistl.

Gross Gross.
Numbeni of Noticaal Fogitive Negatine Met
3 Decembar 2019 Darivative | coniracts amaunks Heit vl fnir valio fair valum
Client services darvaties
_Spot and forwand fansian nchangs 58 405,105 L51) oty 152
Todal decheiivg matrumnants 4 405 205 £53 (7o} 158
s Grmss
Mumbee of Hitonal Bos e Megatie Het
31 Decesriver 2018 Darivative | Canfracts ameunis falr yaus $5ir yrkon fair vakss
Chend sanvies devivaties
and fareard foreign exchanga 145 57178 7 {5.807 i,
Toolal sk gton nalnmens 143 ST1TTE 11 {6507} Fi)

Tr Back hazs rof prowided or receved ey colletaral with respect fo the dervating comyacts held with third pary inatiutons as at 31 Decamber 2013 and 2018,

Ve manage dervaliva mxposws by mosiing the credit fsi assscated wih each counterpatty wsing couriemarty Soeciic chadit risk Bmits, using masier neling amangements when
appropriabe and obtaining collatesal Thess Bt edactng net o offeat in the consoldslod batance sheits certain Gross darvative asiats and labeBes subject lo nelting agreements.
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)
i theosands of Unied Siales ciollars)

Note 15: Atcounting for Darivative Instruments and Risk Management (continued)

Tha Bank #i50 eiscied rot 5y o¥ses camain deshalve assets oo abiites and al colalea's recesd or paid that e Bank of the counterzaries onukd legaly afsat i T et of delaut
I et tabies Bedow, Haiss posdons ane cecucd fom the net fair value presenisd in the congolidaiad balance sheets in onder % presant e et eaposums. The colalenal valss
prEsiied it the folowing lanse am Emited o the retated nel Servative aa5et of Babifly balice anvd, accondngly, 00 not include exoess cofiaberal reoehed or paid.

Less: Ofisef Mot Rair walue

appliad aed Less:
p:mr o Ml:m derivative Less: cash
Gross fair master  comsolidated assets | collateral  Eypogures
valug nntting Baance  lishilitas pot smcaived ! et
1 Desember 713 rcognisd  agreements sheets aifset i cobiatarai
Derivative s9sats
St and Torard Yoralgn erchangs and curmincy swaps B33 - B33 " - 553
Derteaiive Babilities
Spot and ferwaed forsign eschega and cumency swaps {ro1y . 71} . 2 ran
Met posithia 187 vakie 152 :
Wal far valua
peasentad in Luss:
 Less: Ofial tha dedate  Lessicish
Grossfall grofed peder  conpoldaned assets | colaleral Expasums
VELE s netting hatee  Rabies netl recateed [ net ol
31 Daceribes 2018 mognsd  agmemenns srasis offust paid sctatersl
Derivatioe assils
Spot and forward forekgn sechange and cunescy swagm 7111 . 11t : . i
Derivative Fabilities
St and lorwad barign exchange and Bavanty Swizs 15,507 = {5.907) . . 16507
Nt posiine lar value o -

Tha foficwing tablie shows B location and amoust of gaies necorded in the Gonsoligated Sittesent of CRerasons on deraive insumends puisianding

Foe the year andad
31 December 34 Dacamber
Live [rtrumsent Consolidated 5t L of Opeeratsane ling iem il i
Feoward formign guchange Foreign exchange reverns 152 0
Total nel gais recognised In nat kscome 152 HA
A

209/247



Butterfizeld Bank {Cayman) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)

i Fousands of Lnited Stalss dollars)

Hots 16: Fair Valua of Financial Instruments

The dolowing tabla prasents e financlal assets and Rabdites thatl am measured at fak value o 8 recurring basis. Management classifas fese tems Sased on the: e of inputs used in
rer respecive ir va'ue delsemination 23 descrized in Nede - Signilicant Accounting Polciss

Management revesws e pica ¢f each securily monthly, companng markal vakues o expaciabans nd © he pror month's price. Mansgemant's expactaions am based uoon knowiedge

of prevadng markal conditions and dessicpmants feiadng
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Iy specshc issuers andlor gasel classes held in the ivesiment portfclc. Whene thess ane unusual of sgnificant prce

CwBMEnts, of whanes a carain assel dass has parformed out-ciing with aspectations. the matier s raviewad by e Bank's Assed and Lisbdily Commities

Financil melrumin®s in Lewel 1 includa Esbed adquity Shams and acbeily iraded and sedsasmiable shavig of mutual Ands.

Financtl irsiruments In Leavil I include squity securilas nof aclively raded, cadficale of deposits, componle bonds, modgags-backed Sesuiies and ol asselbacked Secues.
intarast mie fwags, caps and forward lorsgn anchange conlracts, and mutual funds nol adtaly raded,

Financial irain/ments in Lewel 3 include saset-taced securites for which ha marked L redathraly Bquic and for which information abeut actusl insding prices is not readiy svadabie
Thene wire ro rarshers betwesen Livel 1800 Level 2or Level 2 and Lewil 3 dunng B yoer ended 31 Dacernber 3019 ant the paar ended 31 Decarrber 2013,

Hems that are recognised at fzirvalue on &

reciarring basis 3t Detembser 2019 31 Dacernbear 28
Fair value Fair vilue
Total casrying Total carmying
amaunt f amount/
Lewel § el d Lgvel 3 Fairvalpe  Lewel 1 Level 2 Lgvel 3 Fair valoy
Finantisl assets
Dt socueiies
Avadabla for sale
U5 govesrmand aevd fedeml agences B 508 B3 B06/623 LECELT) B G54 457
Non-uJ5 government Seid secunities - ER ] 14n L] - 3
Corpostale detr sacuiiies - . . . 54,359 - 54358
Assat-backed secuTie - Sudent kans s 1280 LA 12625 12625
Commandsl morigage-backed securies - . . 543M . S
Residendal merigagebacend
- 44,648 - 44648 56,502 - 56.502
Totnl Availshia foe salke - 954,700 12899 Se7.501 BMTIE 12628 BI7 341
Coiner s - Daarivnbots 251 E5I i . i
Financlal liabilithes
Criner labiijes - Dertvatives kil bl G507 : E.507

The kel 3 Binancial instoments showm 25 Assel backed Seouriies - Student loans i the Jbove (abis is Federal Family Egucation Loan Program (FRELP knana'] quaranteed shigent
Toan secuty and is vadued wsing 2 nembinding teoker quole. The e wvatlus pegvided by e Baokar i e last eding poce of simlar securibes Dol &5 e manket for e secuty t5 My

B Leved 2 clzssifcation & not Supponsd

Livel 3 recanciliation 1 Decemmbar 2019 11 Decermber 2018
. Bplabie
Aviishle far sl
T: gale imeasinwees Total : } Totx
Camying zenount a1 baginning of year 12623 1253 12453 1240
Procests trov Sai | Capitsl distiouions .
Reaksed and innealised lossea nacognissd i metincoma - - -
Realised and nrealised qais moogrisad i
oUher CorTIEhEnamE NGme L 268 132 13z
Transtars. in and out of Level 3 . - - -
Casrying amaunt at end of year 1285 12 531 13825 12635
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)
{in thousands of United States dollars

Note 16: Fair Value of Financial Instruments (continued)
The lolowing table presents quantiative informaton sibouk recumng 1ak vakee measwaments of sssets dass fed witin Leve! 3 of e lair value haaechy.

31 Decembar 2513 31 Decamber 2013
Finarcial estrument Typa ‘Waluation Technlque Fair Vaiue Far Valug
Aesei-backad securitios - Student loans Liradarsead ihivd pary priced 12801 1262
Rems other than those recognised a1 Tair valoe on 2 recurring basis
31 Decembar 2013 31 Dacember 2016
Fair vElue Camying Falr  Appeccistion | Canmyng Fak  Aggreciafon |
bieaarchy amsgunt vatup  (dspresiation] amount vaue  (depreciation)
Financial assets
Cash due from banks Level 1 5T 407 757,407 - 6,357 518,397 -
Sherl term bvistments Level 1 : . . J40TH 14878 -
Imvastments hid b maturty Lewel 2 324,471 243,634 19211 817,555 804,530 12525
Lasans, pat ol alowancs kv cedt keses Lt 2 1,104,653 1,106,674 1885 1012235 126 (22
Financial Habiities
Customer deposs
Demand dapcsits Lawai 7 2565311 2535310 - 253358 2RA31% -
Tonm deposits Lewal 2 473,347 450,148 (3] 479,154 475,852 (2541

Nate 17: Intarest Rate Risk

T fcllowing Lable S615 ool the assats. Eabaities and shanehoddar's guity on e dabs of thie earer of soniraciusl matuily. expectsd rahily of rpdang dale. Use of B il 1 dame
dormoion adoed The Bank's noerest ralg risk position B Beited by e e thatl asioming may chose i ismna her francal insthonents 51 2 dale aacder than the contactol
maturity o repricing Ca%. Examples al this inclute Sxedaate mongages, which 2re shown 22 condraciual matunity but whish may pe-pey earker, and certain hemy depoaits, which ane
Erowi &1 coniractual matunity bul which may be withdrasn belore their conraciual maturty sebpect b0 prepayment pensities and notice perods. Invesiments are shown based on
remaning contraclual maluribes. The ramaining conirachial grincipal malures for morigege-backed secunbes [prmanly US govemment agancess] do nod consider prapayments.
Ramairing expacied matrites wil difer from contraciual matunties because bomowess may hane the ngt to prapay obligatons befons the undardying mangages matur,

31 Decembes 2013 Earlier of cantrachual maburity & rapricisg date
Within 3 Ik [17EF] [ETE Aftar Kon-niarest
in § millians) months megaihs manthy g Sysary beainghmds 0 Tol
Agiets
Canh dus leom barks T3 . B . - 2] ST
Sheoet teem Investments P . . . . . .
Irtsmiens 175 ] 7 a0 1,548 . 1522
Loass 806 8 a8 ] (E] . 1,105
Dthar assets . . : - - 88 8
Total assats 1717 M 50 134 1798 504 1830
Llalsiliths and sharehokse's equity
Shareroidar's aquilty . . : : - %2 0z
Dumad depes & 2,213 . - - - TEz 7995
Tarmn deposts L £ 42 T . . 480
Dthev abdiies - - = . . 7 a2
Total lishilities and shareholders aguity 7 588 75 &2 T . 1148 1838
Interest ke senstivity gay 1852] (4} [ [ .75 {1037 .
Cumulytve intmrast raby sensitvty gan {853 () (55%) {751 1,037 . .
k3]
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continuwed)
{in thoussnds of United States dodars)

Mota 17: Interest Rate Risk (continuad)

] mbar 2 Earfiar of eociraciual eraturity of repricing dasm
Within 3 3ok Gl flod Aher han-ianesl
fin § millians) months manihs monis pears 5 years baaring hans Tzl
Assets
Cash dua fom barks e . 16 918
Shot term ireesimans 5 - - . . - 25
Inveaiments 208 i 3 18 1,504 - 14665
Loans T08 143 - 27 2 H 102
Chher agsats - - - . . =8 85
Takad a4gits 1844 1Ed 3 248 135 113 1,705
Ligbliiths and shareholdas's equaty
Sharehoiders equily - - - . . Fir Il
Demand daposis 2173 - ] - - Ti5 b
Tarm deposis a8 106 54 1 . “ A7
(thar lpbiiens - - - - - 66 B
Total linbilities and sharahaldor's equity 2481 13 54 11 - 1053 708
nesast = sansHivily gap {837} ] {81} 23 1,336 [l -
Curmitative ifleest s sans vty ap BTy 1583 1634) (298] fLn] -

Nota 18: Regulatory Capital
Tha Bank & sdbject t caaltal mgquisements of 156 Bkl |) famsewernk &8 defingd by the Cayman bslands Monatary Authorty ("CIMAT) which ca=e inlo efeclon 3 January A1 mde

Cayman Istands. The measien of capitsl s1angth establishisd by G for the Bank ks ta sk waighted total cagital rado with a minimum of 1% At 3 December 2040 B risk weighisd
caphad rasio wars 21 12% 2008 20/68%).

Mete 19: Related Party Transactions

3 Docamber 2013 31 acernpar 206
Consofdsted Balance Shaet
Assats
Cagh dus from banks - parenl and alffizles ) bedi
Loans fo siaff 15897 03
Lean b affisted enbiy Iz -
Aeerid inlistes) Frid 2
Other assats - afflates 1,256 ag1s
Linhilities.
Cartomar deposits = 35kales and oiher ralatad paries 5,007 28,173
Oihar Bsksities: - parant and afRates 1802 3035
Consalidated Statomend of Operalions
Hon-dmereel Income
Azsal Maragamant 357 =1
Het-nterest Income
Inierest Income = Duoposits with anks 538 415
Interest Ingome - Loass W afflated entifes and ofhee miatid partas a3 .
Interest Expensa - Deposts with banks 4 .
Han-inteest Expanss
Salariaz and £ha¥ benefits 1.056 218
Prefissional and Cutios senmies 2475 1815
Orher expentad 1476 1517

»
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Butterfield Bank {Cayman) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)
(i thousands of United States doflars)

Mote 19: Related Party Transactions [continuad)
The Bank provides, a5 3 banefi fo enployies, loan facikties al prafemesd lending raies and banking services al meduced chages.

The Banik estabiished & pragramea o o loans with praferantial rates w0 eligible Bank emplayess, subject 1 canan condilons set by the Bank and provided il such employees mest
Gt Cesl critenia. Loan payments ane seniced by aulcratisaty debiting the emplyes’s cheauing or savings aceoun with the Bank. Appications 1 ams &ne handid acooedng &
fhe smve poRcies a5 thise for Te Bank's egulae refall banking cBecss. The Bank's abdlity ho offer preferental rales o lang dopends updn @ number of Rclons, inclaoing marksd
condions, reguiations and the Sank's owiral profMabity. The Bask has tha Aght i change s emgioyee loan poicy b &ry time: ehes nolilying pedicipans, The inferesl rata banaft ta
errpiayees for e year ended 3 Docembar 2019 was $0.7H mison (2098: $0.67 rilon).

Signficant bakanoss. doe and from a%iliated enties oher Tan tha Paran Bank are inchedad in Loans ond Bank depdshs, During tha yeas the Eaﬁkﬂtﬁ&??ﬁnﬁmphm
atikate, repayabie in Rull by 15 July 2085 at & verishie inlesest e based on $he Bank of England peimd rate plus 2.5%, subject i 2 fioor of J.00%. The subdrdinatd debl s nexied as &
fcan of a capital nature Sor reguiatony purposes. in the crdnary course of business, the Bank receives from and peovides o s afflaliad and Gher reléted Gopoeations. noimal banking
Sericas 00 Y it i those offered o non-elated parbes. The non-infenest eepenses are comprsed of she based compansation aficosions frem B Pacent Bank alang with
shaned professonal serices alocations and ban and collatersl adminitraton ks 10 parent snd sulsidiary of parent

s
Loan pa

Tres Bank atsigred $47 7 melion of o bosw i ariginated 1 s Guaresey based afifatn. The outstanding balade on thal assinned kan was $47.4 miion s 5t 31 Decsnber 2095,

Mote 20: Businass combinations

O 24 March 2018, the Bark concluded ihe acquisiSon of 10074 of he share capial of Deutsche Bank Intemations Tius! Ca. (Cayman) Limiad ('D8IT7) 23 pat of e Panent Bank's
acquission of Deutsche Bark's Giobel Trust Soldon [GTS7) busingss, excluding its US opantions. The scquisition was underiaken iy enhange the Bark's marks! peasance in the gickal
fust secvioe markt. Subsetuent it the acquistion, the name was changed from DEIT o Bulerield Fiduciary Senvices (Cayman) Limied.

Th assets acquired cordist mainky of ash, sustomer relationship intangibles and acoounts raoenabia. The Babites assumed consis| mamly of defemed revenues and SSeouns
paryable,

The fal value of the nal assts acpuind and aliccabion of punchass IS Summdred & bolows:
Az ol Nareh 79, #7019

Teilal cagh cangideration transfasred T35
Assols acquivad

Cagh cue nom banks 2
Intangkia saseds {estmated vsolul e of 15 years) 4
Oithar agsois’ 88
Tolal assets acquired 7548
Liabilities acquined {ncuded in Crher Sabillties on the balene sheel) 1250
Exgess purchasg price [Goadwill) 551

“Other assels consist of rade recababies with 2 fair value of $0 788 mBion, This inciudes gross recebaties of 51.515 million andl provision for bad debls of 30,727 mésca.

Assal scquisition

On 12 Fabrsary 2018, the Bank had erered il a reladionshop ransher agreement with Doutschn Bank's bankinyg and eustody busingss in e Cayman klands. During 2018, cerlain
CustorT cepos il o ady and eters of credd relabovahips wes iranshamed Lo the Bank; af frarfers wen: cofpiitid Suring thes fourty quartas,

Mote 21: Subsequent Events
The fnancial stalements wesd dvanabis 1 b oo and subdesuent evants have bean evatuated up to 20 Fabroary 2020,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To the Trustee of
Monex-HFR Private Equity Fund & Hedge Fund Investments 2006:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Monex-HFR Private Equity Fund &
Hedge Fund Investments 2006, a Cayman Idlands series trust (the “Series Trust”), and its subsidiary which
comprise the consolidated statement of assets and liabilities, including the consolidated schedule of investments,
as of December 31, 2019, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets, and cash
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements (all expressed in
Japanese Yen).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financia Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financia statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Series Trust's
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Series Trust's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Monex-HFR Private Equity Fund & Hedge Fund Investments 2006 and its
subsidiary as of December 31, 2019, and the results of their operations, changes in their net assets, and their cash
flows for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, at December 31, 2019, the Series Trust held
investments with a fair value of \2,197,886,161 (93.10% of net assets), which was estimated by the Trustee based
on information provided by the underlying fund managers. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Deloitte & Touche
CAYMAN ISLANDS
June 26, 2020
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors of Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited and
its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018,
and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, changes in shareholder's equity and
cash flows for the years then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financiad Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statementsin order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al materia respects, the
financial position of Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2019 and
December 31, 2018, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Cayman Islands
February 20, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To the Trustee of
Monex-HFR Private Equity Fund & Hedge Fund Investments 2006:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Monex-HFR Private Equity Fund &
Hedge Fund Investments 2006, a Cayman Idlands series trust (the “Series Trust”), and its subsidiary which
comprise the consolidated statement of assets and liabilities, including the consolidated schedule of investments,
as of December 31, 2018, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets, and cash
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements (all expressed in
Japanese Yen).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financia Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financia statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Series Trust's
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Series Trust's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Monex-HFR Private Equity Fund & Hedge Fund Investments 2006 and its
subsidiary as of December 31, 2018, and the results of their operations, changes in their net assets, and their cash
flows for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, at December 31, 2018 the Series Trust held
investments with a fair value of \2,345,610,040 (86.57% of net assets), which was estimated by the Trustee based
on information provided by the underlying fund managers. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Deloitte & Touche
CAYMAN ISLANDS
June 25, 2019
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